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4 CORPORATE INFORMATION

MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED
Corporate Identity No (CINRELZI093DLI992PLC 16600

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (as on date of report)

M. Sandeep Jain

Mr. Pradecp Rajput Kumar
Murs. Shubhi Jain

Mis. Anju Jain

Mr. Mohit Jain

Mr. Sourabh Mathur

Chairman and Managing Director
Whole Time Director

Mon- Executive Direvto

Moa- Execulive Direcior

Mom- Executive Director

MNon- Executive Independent Director

M. Rakesh Juyal MNon- Executive Tndependent Director

Mrs. Sakshi Jain Mom- Executive Independent Direetor w,e € April 1, 2024

Mer. Satva Prakash Non- Executive Independent Director w E.f.‘"\]‘il'ﬂ I, 2024

Mrs. Shubhi Jain Hon- Exccutrve Independent Director woe.f April 1, 24024

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 'S

Mr. Arvind Dixit Chief Financial (fficer (CFO)

OFFICES

REGISTERED OFFICE
Muohit Faper Mills Limited
154713, Upper Ground Floor
East Patel Nagar, Mew Delhi- 110008 Bijnor-24a6701, UF
Tel : 011 -25886798 Tel: 01342-283051

E.mail :investorsmohitpaper i gmail.com: Website: www.mohitpaper.in

PLANT OFFICE
Mohit Paper Mills Limited
9 KM Stone, Navina Road

ALUDMTORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS INTERNAL AUDITORS COST AUDITORS
Mis, Pankaj Goval & Co. Charfered Mss, MAA & Company Mz, H. Tara & Co
Accountanis Chartered Accountants Clost Accountants

SECRETARIAL AUDTORS
Ms Agarwal 5. & Associates
Company Secretarics

OTHER DETAILS

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT PRINCIPAL BANKERS
LINK INTIME INDIA PVT LTI Union Bank of India
Noble Heights,1* floor, Plt No.NH-2, C-1, Block Yes Bank

LSC, Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi-11HH58
Tel: (11 -41410592.93 944, Telefax: 011 - 4141059,
Website:www. linkinime.co.in

Email:delhii@ linkintime.co.in, sunil. mishrac linkint me,co.in
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MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED
CIN: L2ZI03DLI22PLCL 6000
Registered Office: 15A13, Upper Ground Floor, East Patel Magar NewDelhi-110008
Works: 9km Stone, Nagina Road, Bijnor, Utter Pradesh- 246701
Telephone:11-25886798; Website: www.mohitpaperin;
E-mail: investorsmohitpaperigmail.com

NOTICE FOR 32" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that the 32" Annual
General Meeting ("AGM"™ or "the
Meeting") of the Members of Mohit Paper
Mills Limited ("the Company') will be held
on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 04.00 .M.
(I5T) through Video Conferencing ("VC") /
Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

Item MNo.1: To receive, consider and adopt
Audited Standalone Financial Statements
of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024, together with
Report of Board of Directors and
Auditors™ Report thereon.

In this regard, to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited
Standalone Financial Statements including
the Balance Sheet of the Company as at March
31,2024, the Staterment of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash
Flow Statement for the financial year ended
on that date together with all the notes
annexed and the Directors” and Auditors™
Reports thereon, placed before the meeting,
be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

Item No.2: To re-appoint Mrs. Anju Jain
{DIN: 4595400, director liable to retire by

rotation

In this regard, to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 152 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, Mrs. Anju Jain (DIN: 00459540). who
retires by rotation at this meeting and being
eligible has offered herself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as
a Director of the Company, who is liable to
retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No.3: To consider the approval for
remuneration of Mr. Mohit Jain (DIN:
U7203009) and holding an office or place of
profitinthe Company

In this regard, to pass the following resolution
as an Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions
of Section 18%(1)() and all other applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2003 ("Aet™)
read with Companies {Meeting of Board and
Its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act {including any
statutory modification(s) or re- enactment
there of for the time being in force) and
provisions of Securities and Exchange Board
of Tndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulatioms, 2015 ("SEBI
Listing Regulations™), as per the
recommendations of the MNomination and
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee
and approval of the Board of Directors in their
respective meeting () held on August 14,
2024 and the consent of the members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded for the

~

THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024

(3)



CGuomr

MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED

’

.

gppomntment of Mr Mohit Jain (Non-
Executive Director) as advisor’ consultant of
the Company as detailed in the Explanatory
Statement attached hereto (holding the office
of place of profit) on remuncration subject to
maximum remuneration non-exeeeding Rs,
5.000000)= {(Rupees Five Lakhs) per month
and such other perquisites in accordance with
the Act and SEBI Listing Repulations. w.e.f.
October 01, 2024,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board
of Directors of the Company or a committee
thereof has the liberty to alter and vary such in
accordance with the provisions of Act and to
effect change in designation and
responsibilities of the persons holding office
or place of profit within the maximum limit
approved by the sharcholders.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board
of Directors of the Company or a Commitiee
thereof be and is hereby authorised to do and
perfonm all such acts, deeds, matiers or things
as may be considered necessary, appropriate,
expedient or desirable to give effect to above
resolution, without being required to seck any
further consent or approval of the member(s)
of the Company."

Item MNo. 4: Ratification of Remuneration

NOTES:

l. Pursuant to General Circular MNos,
142020 dated April 08, 2020, and latest
being 092023 dated September 25, 2023,
issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCA") ("MCA Circulars")
Companies are allowed to hold Annual
General Meeting (" AGM™) through VC /
OAVM, without the physical presence of
the Members at a common venue, In
compliance with the said Circulars, the
AGM of the Company is heing held
through VC / OAVM,

T

In accordance with above said MCA
Circulars and SEBI Circulars latest being
Circular NMumber SEBI/HO/, DDHS

of Cost Auditor

In this regard, to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section [4% (3) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companics Act, 2013 and Companies {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 ({including any
statutory  modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in foree), a
remuneration of Rs. 60,000/~ p.a. (Rupees
Sixty Thousand) plus applicable taxes and
other out of pocket expenses payable o M/s,
H. Tara & Co., Cost Accountants for
conducting cost audit of the Company for the
financial year 2024-2025, as approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company, be and is
hereby ratified.”

By Order ofthe Board of Directors

For Mohit Paper Mills Limited

Sdf-

Sandeep Jain

Managing Director cum Chairman

DIN: 004558048

Dated: 25 Aupust 2024

Place: New Delhi

PACIR2023/0164  dated October 06,
2023 ("SEBI Circulars") the Notice of the
AGM along with the Annual Report for
Y 2023-24 is being sent by electronic
mode to those Members whose e-mail
addresses are registered with the
Company/National Securities
Depasitory Limited ("NSDL"} and the
Central Depository Services (India)
Limited ("CDSL").

3. As per provisions of the Companies Act,
20013 ("Act™), a Member entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint
a proxy to attend and vote on a poll
wnstead of himsell and the proxy need not
be a Member of the Company. Since this
AGM is being held through VC / OAVM
pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical

,‘
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attendance of Members has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility
for appointment of proxies by the
Members will not be available for the
AGM, hence the proxy forms are not
attached to the Notice. However, the
Body Corporates are entitled to appoint
authorised representatives to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM and
participate thereat and cast their votes
through electronic voting ("e-voting™).

Body Corporates [nstitutional
Shareholders whose authorised
representatives are intending to attend the
Meeting through VC/OAVM are
requested to send to the Company at
investorsmohitpaper@gmail.com, a
certified copy of the Board Resolution /
autherization letter authorizing  their
representative to attend and vote on their
behall at the AGM through e-voting and
also to scrutinizer at email id
ankit. b4 gmail.com,

Since the AGM will be held through VC/
OAVM, the route map of the venue of the
Meeting is not annexed hereto,

The Register of Members and Share
Transfer Books will remain closed from
Friday, Scptember 20, 2024 to Fnday
September 27, 2024 (hoth days inclusive)
in terms of the provision of Section 91 the
Awt for the purpose of this AGM.

All documents referred to in the Notice
will also be available for electronic
inspection from the date of circulation of
this Motice up to the date of AGM. Also,
the Motice for this AGM along with
requisite documents and the Annual
Report for the financial year 2023-24
shall also be available on the Company™s
website www. mohitpaper.in Further, the
notice received, if any, under the
provisions of the Act will be put up on the
wihsite of the Company up to the date of

the Meeting. Members seeking to inspect
such documents can send an email to
investorsmohitpaper@gmail.com.

The Explanatory Statement according to
Section 102 of the Act setting out material
facts concerning the business under ltem
Mos, 3 & 4 of the Notice is annexed hereto
and the information/relevant details
regarding the Director who are proposed
to be appointed/re-appointed, as required
to be provided under Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI
Listing Regulations"), and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings ("35-2"),
is enclosed as Annexure-1. The Directors
have furnished consent / declaration for
his appoiniment / re-appointment as
required under the Act and Rules made
there under.

The Facility of joining the AGM through
VO OAVM will be made available to at
least 1,000 members on a first come first
served basis as per the MCA Circular,
However, the participation of members
(holding 2% or more shares), promoters.
and Institutional Investors, Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, Chairpersons
of Audit Committee, Stakecholders
Relationship Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Commities, and other
Committees and Auditors are not
restricted on first come first serve basis,
The Company is providing two way tele
conferencing facility for the ease of
participation of the members. The
instructions  for members attending/
participating in the AGM through VC/
OAYM are provided herein.

10. Institutional investors, who are members

of the Company, are encouraged o attend
and vote at the AGM of the Company.

,‘

THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024

(3)



CGuomr

MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED

’

.

11, Members attending the Meeting through

VC/OAVM shall be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under
Section 103 of the Act, 2013,

Members holding shares in physical
form, in identical order of names, in more
than one folio are requested to send to the
Company or RTA, the details of such
folios together with the share certificates
and self-attested copies of the PAN card
of the holders for consolidating their
holdings in one folio. A consolidated
share certificate will be issued to such
Members after making the requisite
changes. The consolidation will  be
processed in demat form.

13, SEBI has mandated that all requests of

transfer of sccurities including
transmission and transposition requests
shall be proceed only in demaierialized
form. In view of the same and to eliminate
all risks associated with physical shares
and avail various benefits of
dematerialization, Members are advised
to get dematerialize the shares held by
them in physical Torm, Members can
contact the Company or the Company™s
RTA, inthis regard.

. SEBI has mandated the submission of

PAN, KYC details and nomination by
holders of physical securities by October
1, 2023, and linking PAN with Aadhaar
by June 30, 2023, vide its circular dated
March 16, 2023 ("SEBI Circular").
Sharcholders are requested to submit
their FAN, KYC and nomination details
to the Company®s RTA, Link Intime India
Private Limited. Members are requested
to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to
their name. postal address, e-mail
address, telephone/mobile numbers,
Permanent Account Mumber ("PAN",
mandates, nominations, power of
attomey, bank details such ag, name of the
bank and branch details, bank account

number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc..

For shares held in electronic form: to their
Depository Participant only and not to the
Company's RTA. Changes intimated to
the Depositor Participant will then be
automatically reflected in the Company's
records which will help the Company and
its RTA provide efficient and better
service to the Members,

For shares held in physical form: to the
Company's RTA in prescribed Form ISR -
| and other forms pursuant to SEBI
circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD
/MIRSD_RTAME/P/ CIR/2021/655
dated November 3, 2021, as per
instructions mentioned in the form, The
said form can be downloaded from the
Members' Reference, available on the
Company's website under Investors
hitp:fwww.mohitpaper.in‘mpml financi
al-info.html and is also available on the
webhsite ofthe RTA website.

Effective April 1, 2024, SEBI has
mandated that the shareholders, who hold
shares in physical mode and whose folios
arc not updated with any of the KYC
details [viz., (i) PAN (ii) Choice of
Womination (iii) Contact Details (iv)
Mobile Number (v) Bank Account
Details and (vi) Signature], shall be
eligible to get dividend only in electronic
mode. Accordingly, payment of final and
special dividend, subject to approval at
the AGM, shall be paid to physical
holders only after the above details are
updated in their folios. Shareholders are
requested to complete their KYC by
writing to the Company's RTA. at
delhig@linkintime.co.in or
sunil.mishrag@linkintime.co.in

. Members are requested to contact the

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA),
Mr. Swapan Naskar or Mr. Sunil Mishra,
Link Intime India Private Limited, Noble

,‘
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14.

Heights, 15t Floor, Plot NH 2 C-1 Block
LSC, Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri,
MNew Delhi-110058 (Phone No.: +91-11-
49411000; Fax No.: +91-11-41410591;
Email: delhi@linkintime,co.in or
sunil. mishra@linkintime.co.in) for reply
to their queries/redressal of complaints, if
any.

. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the

Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for
making nomination is available for the
Members inrespect of the physical shares
held by them. Members who have not vet
registered their nomination are requested
to register the same by submitting Form
No. S3H-13. The said forms can be
downloaded from our website at
www.mohitpapet.in and website of RTA
Le. wwwlinkintime.co.in. If 2 member
desires to opt out or cancel the earlier
nomination and record a fresh
nomination, he'she may submit the same
in Form [SR-3 or SH-14 as the case may
be. Members are requested to submit the
said details to their DP in case the shares
are held by them in dematerialized form
and to Company's Registrar and Transfer
Agent in case the shares are held in
physical form.

Members holding shares in demat form
are hereby informed that bank particulars
registered with their respective
Depository Participanis, with whom they
maintain their demat accounts, will be
used by the Company for the payment of
dividends. The Company or its Registrar
cannot act on any request received
directly from the Members holding
shares in demat form for any change of
bank particulars. Such changes are to be
intimated only to the Depository
Participant(s) of the Members. Members
holding shares in demat form are
requested to intimate any change in their
address and / or bank mandate

immediately
Participants.

to their Depository

19. Recorded transeript of the Mecting shall

be uploaded on the website of the
Company and the same shall also be
maintained in safe custody of the
Company. The registered office of the
company shall be deemed to be the place
of Meeting for the purpose of recording
of the minutes of the proceedings of this

AGM.

20. Members having any queries related to

accounts and operations or any other
matter to be placed at the AGM, may
write to the Company through an email
an investorsmehitpaper@email.com, at

least seven working days in advance of

the Meeting. The same will be replied by
the Company suitably,

21. The Board of Directors of the Company

has appointed Mr. Ankit Jain (M. No.
A31103 and COP 26724), Partner of M/s,
Aparwal 5. & Associates, Company
Secrelaries, address D-427, 2 Floor,
Palam Extn, Ramphal Chowk, Sector-7,
Dwarka, New Delhi- 110075 as the
Serutinizer to scrutinize the e-voling and
remote e-voting process for the Thirty
Second (32" Annual General Meeting in
a fair and transparent manner,

22, The Chairman of the AGM shall, at the

AGM, at the end of discussion on the
Resolutions on which the voting is to be

held, allow voting with the assistance of

the scrutinizer, by using e-voting facility
for all those Members who are present at
the AGM through VC/OAVM but have
not cast their votes by availing the remote
e-voling facility.

23, The Serutinizer shall after the conclusion

of voting at the Meeting, will first count
the votes cast during the Meeting and
thereafter unblock the votes cast through

,‘
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remole e-voliie and shall make and of AGM and the Annual Report by
submit, within ol the Two working days electronic mode. In compliance with the
afconclusion ofthe AGH. a consalidated MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars,
Serulinieer™s Report of the wtal voles MNaotice nflthe AGM along with the Annual
casl in tavour or wgainst, iF oy, to the Report is being sent only through
Chairman or & person authorized by him electronic mode to those Members whose
inh writing, whe shall counlersign the '{"‘ml addresses are TEE_ME"E& "'""F]" the
game and declare the result of the voting Company / RTA / Depository
within two working days of canclusion of Participants. Members may note that the
e A M. MNotice and Annual Repart will also be

available on the Company™s website
24. The Natice of the AGM shall be placed on www.mohitpaper.in, “'“13‘5'1‘33_ ‘?’f the
the website of the Company and LITPL ull Stock Exchanges, ie., BSE Limited at
the diate ol ACIM. www.bseindia.com.
25 The Results declared, along with the 8o DRI RES, 4 AL SAAN NI FEER
Serutiniger's Beporl shull beplaced on the ATTESDING  TRE GESER L
; S T o7 e MEETING THROUGH INSTAMEET:
i;:jmp:g}ll :h:#q?;:;s{?: “1'F11;I1'LEL1F‘:'L“ Open the internet browser and launch
q BV S . T :
worw linkintine coin inunedialely ader Ll:fpgﬁilrdslstamcm Ylintae:sosin &
the declaration of result by the Chainman Click on "Lowin" o
or a person authorized by him in writing. ' o
The resulls shall also be amediagely
forwarded to the BSE where the shures of » Select the “Company™ and ~ Event Date”
the Company are listed. Forther, the and register with your following details: -
resulls shull be divplaved on e websie
o the Company. A. Demat Account No. or Folio No:
Enter your 16 digit Demat Account
26, Mon-Resident [udivn Members ane No. ar Folio No
requested to inform RTA, immediatcly on = Sharcholders! members holding
change in their residential seams on retarm shares in CDSL demat account
W India Loy permanent seltloment, and shall provide 16 Digit Beneliciary
updale on purlicudars ol heir bank m
acconnt maintained in India  with + Sharcholders/ members holding
t'ult'lpiult.' nana, branch., sccount Dvpe, shares in NSDL demat account
aecount nunmher and address of the bank shall provide 8 Character DP
with PIN Code number, if nor fumished 1D followed by § Digit Client 1D
curlicr, « Shaveholders! members holding
shares  in physical form  shall
17, MISPATCH OF ANNLAL REPORT provide Folio Mumber registered
THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE: with the Company
a. In erms of gections 101 and 136 of the
Avt read wilh the rules made there voder and on the website of Company’s
and MOA Clirenlurs & SERT Circulars, Registrar and Transfer Agent, Link
the listed companies may send the Notice Intime India Private Limited ("RTA")
e v
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b. For recciving all commmmication
{including Annual Repert) from the
Company electranically
Members holding shares in physical
mode and who have not registered !
upilaled Lhen emul address with the
Company are requested to register !
update he sanie by owrlung 10 ihe
Compuny with detsils of Folio number
and atenehing o self-artesred copy of PAN
curd al investorsmohipuperiegmail.com
of o RTA ot dethi¢elinkindme.co.in or
sundl mistieai@ inkindme. co.n

g. Members holding shares in dematerialized
muode ure Tequested W negisler . updale
thait cmail addresses with the relevant
Lreposilors Paricipans,

B. PAN: Enter vour 1{-digit Permanent
Account Wumber (PAN) (MMembers
who have not updated thewr PAN
with the Depository Participant (DP)
Company shall use the zequence
number provided to vou, if applicable

C. Mobhile No.: Enter your mobile

number.

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as
recorded with vour DP/Company.
Click “Go to Meeting™ (You are now
registered for Instahleet and vour attendance
1z marked for the meeting).

20, INSTRUCTLONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS
/! MEMBERS T SPEAK DURING THE
GENERAL MEETING THROUGH
INSTAMEET

a. Shareholders who would like 10
speak during the meeling must
register their request with the
COMPany,

b. Shareholders will get confirmation
on first cum first basis depending
upon the provision made by the
client.

¢. Sharcholders will receive "speaking
serial number” onee they mark

3,

attendance for the meeting,

d. Other shareholder may ask questions
to the panelist, via active chat-board
during the meeting,

€. Please remember speaking serial
number and start your conversation
with panelist by switching on video
mode and audio of your device,

f. Shareholders are requested to speak
only when moderator of the
meeting/ management will
announce the name and serial
number for speaking.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR
SHAREHOLDERS / MEMBERS TO
YOTE DURING THE GENERAL
MEETING THROUGH INSTAMEET

a. Once the electronic voting is activated by

the serutinizer during the meeting,
sharcholders’ members who  have not
exercised their vote through the remote ¢-
voting can cast the vote as under:

l. On the Sharcholders VO page, click
on the link for e-Voting "Cast vour
vote"

2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account
Mo. ¢ Folio No. and OTP (received on
the registered mobile number/
registered email Id) received during
registration for InstaMEET and click
on'"Submit',

3. After successful login, vou will see
"Resolution Description” and against
the same the option "Favour/
Against” for voting.

4. Cast your vote by selecting
appropriate option i.e¢.
"Favour/Against" as desired. Enter
the number of shares (which
represents no. of votes) as on the cut-
off date under Favour/Against’.

CAfter selecting the appropriate option
e, Favour’Against as desired and
you have decided to vote, click on

N

,‘
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Commencement
of remote e-voting

End of remote

e-voling

"Save". A confirmation box will be
displayed. If vou wish to confirm
your vote, click on "Confirm”, else to
change your vote, click on "Back"
and accordingly modify your vote.

. Onee you confirm your vote on the

resolution, you will not be allowed 1o
modify or change your vole
subsequently,

Mote: Sharcholders’ Members, who will

be present in the General Meeting
through InstaMeet facility and have
not casted their vote on the
Resolutions  through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to
vote through e-Voting facility
during the meeting. Sharcholders!
Members who have voled through
Remote e-Voling prior to the
General Meeting will be eligible 1o
attend/ participate in the General
Meeting through InstaMeet.
However, they will not be eligible 1o
vole again during the meeting,
Sharcholders/ Members are
encouraged to join the Meeting
through Tablets/ Laptops connected
through broadband for better
experience,

c. Shareholders! Members are required

to use Internet with a good speed
(preferably 2 MBPS  download
stream) to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting,

Tussday, September 24, 2024
from (9 ; 00 am. oowards
Thursday, Sapteraber 26, 2024 at
05:00pm

d. Please note that Shareholders/

Members connecting from Mobile
Devices or Tablets or through
Laptops connecting via Maobile
Hotspot may experience
Audio/Visual loss due to Tuctuation

in their network. It 15 therefore
recommendead 1o use stable WI-FI or
LAN connection to mitigate any
kind of aforesaid glitches,

¢. In case sharcholders' members have

any queries regarding login/ ¢-
voling, they may send an email to
instameeti@linkintime.co.in  or
contact on: - Tel: 022-49 186175,

f. The remote e-voting facility will be

available during the following
voting period:

The remote e-voting shall not be
allowed beyond the aforesaid date
and time and the remote e-voting
module shall be forthwith disabled
upon expiry of the aforesaid period.
During this period shareholders of
the Company. holding shares either
in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-
off date ie. Friday, September 20,
2024 may cast thenr vote through
remote e-voting.

The remote e-voting module shall be

disabled by LIPL for voting
thereafier and the facility will be
blocked forthwith,

g. The facility for joining the AGM

through VC/OAWM shall be open at
least 15 minutes before the time
scheduled o start the Meeting and
shall not be closed till the expiry of
15 minutes after such scheduled
time.

REMOTEE-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS
FORSHAREHOLDERS

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9,
2020, individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode can register directly
with the depository or will have the option of
accessing various ESP portals directly from
their demat accounts,

Login method for Individual sharcholders

,‘
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~
holding sceurities in demat mode is given Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
below: shown on the screen.
mm‘flnb_&.[. SHAREHOLDERS IIm.rJ:th d) Post successful authentication, vou will be
iggtmn['s IN DEMAT MODE WITH re-directed to NSDL depository website
o ’ : wherein you can see " Access to e-voting".
I R e ¢) Click on "LINKINTIME" or "evoting link
Users who have registered for NSDL 1DeAS dmp]u}'{‘:d ulungmd}" LARpay e aing and
facility: vou will be redirected to Link Intime
a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and InsiaVole wehm!e for casting the vote during
click on "Beneficial Owner" icon under the remote e-voting period.
"Login", I :
b) Enter user id and password. Post successiul }-Ih II}:}TI:D U;:'I‘GL Js:l!ll’l“? FBQE III,::] IaI]: Eﬁ%
authentication, click on "Access to¢-voting", OL G SECL it Ma.
¢) Click on "LINKINTIME" or "evoting link MODE WITH CDSL
displayed alongside Company™s Name" and o «
vou will be redirected to Link Intimelnsta EIE_E;ID_D If _'I!f Iﬂ*gistﬂ‘(‘t‘l with CDSL
Vote wehsite for casting the vote during the asi/L-asiest factlity
remote e-voling period,
Ep £ WG Bt TR B
OR hitps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/
User who have not registered for NSDL home/loginor www.cdslindia.com.
IDeAS facility: b} Click on New System Myeasi
¢) Login with user id and password

a) To register, visit URL: d) After successful login, user will be able to
hilps:r';'cscrviccs.nsdi.mm sl aleit see e-voting menu. The menu will have links
"Register Online for DeAS Portal" or click of e-voting service providers i.e.,
UHLE“’ : e ! e LINKINTIME, for voting during the remote
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/Ideas L‘-v?l!ng punlud. S ; o
DirectReg.jsp " ¢) Click on 'LINKINTIME' or "evoting link
b} Proceed with updating the required fields, displayed alongside Company's Name and
¢} Post registration, user will be provided with you will be redirected to Link Intime
Login ID and password. InstaVote website for casting the vote during
d} After successtul login, click on "Access to the remote e-voting period.
e-voling™, G
¢) Click on "LINKINTIME" or "evoting link Users who have not registered for CDSI
displayed alongside Company™s Name" and Easi/Easiest facility. o
you will be redirected to Link Intime
InstaVote website for casting the vole during
the remote e-voting period. a) To register, visit URL:

) . https:/‘web.edslindia. com/myeasitoken/Regi
:{}i‘;ﬁ{;:}wihf? directly visiting the e-voting stration/EasiRegistration
a) Visit URL: https:/‘'www.evoting.nsdl.com/ L i “.'uh "?dﬂti"g fhig I.“'q"imd ﬁc]{?x'
b}Cl'll:k on 'hc “Lnﬂin" 'ab a"l"ﬂ“ﬂh]c llnd{:]' '-:} F.OSI ]'L}g'lslrauﬂn, user 'Wll] b pi‘i:l'\-']d(:d
WharshioldarMeribir section. Login i.D.ut!d pa .*_-.51.?-'1.11{1._
¢} Enter User ID (e, your sixteen-digit 4 "?"ﬁ":r successful login, user able to see ¢-
demat account number held with NSDL), T e

v,
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€) Click on "LINKINTIME" or "evoting link
displayed alongside Company's Name” and
yvou will be redirected to Link Intime Insta
Vote website for casting the vote during the
remote e-voting period.

METHOD 2 - By directly visiting the ¢-
voting website of CDSL.

a) Visit URL: https:/'www.cdslindia.com/

b) Go to e-voting tab,

¢) Enter Demat Account Number {BO D) and
PAN Mo, and click on "Submit”.

d) System will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email
as recorded in Demat Account

e) After successtul authentication, click on
"LINKINTIME" or "evoting link displayed
alongside Company's Name" and you will be
redirected to Link Intime InstaVole website
for casting the vote during the remote e-voting
period.

INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING
SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE WITH
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT

Individual shareholders can also login using
the login credentials of your demat account
through your depository participant registered
with NSDL/CDSL for e-voting facility. Mohit
Paper Mills Limited

a) Loginto DP website

b) After Successful login, members shall
navigate through "e-voting" tab under Stocks
option.

¢) Click on e-voting option, members will be
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site
after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-voting menu.

d) After successful authentication, click on
LINKINTIME' or 'evoting link' displaved
alongside Company's Name and you will be
redirected to Link Intime InstaVote website
for casting the vote during the remote e-voling

period.

Login methed for Individual shareholders
holding securities in physical form/ Non-
Individual Shareholders holding securities
in demat mode is given below:
Individual Sharcholders of the company,
holding shares in physical form / Non-
Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting
may register for e-Voting facility of Link
Intime as under:

1. WVisit URL: htips:/instavote,
linkintime.co.in

2. Click on "Sign Up" under
"SHARE HOLDER" tab and register with
your following details: -

AL UserTD:

Shareholders holding shares in physical form
shall provide Ewvent Wo + Folio Number
registered with the Company. Sharcholders
holding shares in NSDL demat account shall
provide ¥ Character DP ID followed by 8
Digit Client 1D; Sharcholders holding shares
in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit
Beneficiary 100 B, PAN: Enter your 10-digit
Permanent Account Number (PAN)
i Shareholders who have not updated their
PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)
Company shall use the sequence number
provided to you, ifapplicable.

C. DOB/DYOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB)
[ Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded
with your DP/ Company - in DD/MM/YYY'Y
format)

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank
Account Number (last four digits), as
recorded with your DP/Company.
*Shareholders holding shares in physical
Soren bt have not recorded 'C'and 1Y, shall
provide their Folio number in ‘0 above
Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form,
shall provide ‘D’ above

P Set the password of vour choice (The
password should contain minimum 8

~

v,
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characters, at least one special Character
(o HS&*), at least one numeral, at least one
alphabet and at least one capital letter).

P Click "confirm” {Your password is now
generated).

3. Chek on . Logm™ under "SHARE
HOLDER" tab.

4, Enter vour User I1), Password, and Image
Verification (CAPFTCHA) Code and click on
"Submit".

Cast your vote electronically:

1. After successful login, vou will be able to
see the notification for e-voting. Select
"View" icon.

2. E-voting page will appear.

3, Refer the Resolution description and cast
your vote by selecting your desired option
"Favour [ Against" (1 you wish to view the
entire Resolution details, click on the "View
Resolution” file link).

4. After selecting the desired option ie.
Favour/ Against, click on "Submit".

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you
wish to confirm vour vote, click on "Yes",
else to change your vote, click on "No" and
accordingly modify vour vote,

31, GUIDELINES FOR INSTITUTIONAL
SHAREHOLDERS ("CORFORATE BODY/
CUSTODIAN/MUTUALFUND ")

STEP 1 - Registration

ay Visit URL: htitps://instavote,
linkintime.co.in

by Click on Sign up under "Corporate Body/
Custodian/Mutual Fund"

<) Fill up yvour entity details and submit the
form.

dy A declaration form and organization 1D is
generated and sent to the Primary contact
person email 1D {which is filled at the time of
sign up at Sr. No. 2 above). The said form is to
be signed by the Authorised Signatory,
Director, Company Secretary of the entity &

Tollowed by

stamped and sent to
linkintime.co.in.

¢) Thercafter, Login credentials (User 1D
Organisation [0); Password) will be sent to
Primary contact person's email 1D,

f) While first login, entity will be directed to
change the password and login process is
completed,

insta. voteid

STEP 2 -Investor Mapping

a) Visit URL: https://instavote,
linkintime.co.in and login with eredentials as
received in Step 1 above,

b} Click on "Investor Mapping" tab under the
Menu Section

¢} Map the Investor with the following details:
a. "Investor 1D -

i. Members holding shares in NSDL demet
account skall provide 8 Character DPID

& Digir Cliemt ID ie,
INODOOON 2345678

ii. Members holding sharves in CODSL demat
accotnt shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary 1D,
b. "Investor's Name - Enter full name of the
entity.

¢. "Investor PAN" - Enter your 10-digit PAN
issued by Income Tax Department.

d. "Power of Attorney" - Attach Board
resolution or Power of Attorney. File Name
tor the Board resolution/Power of Attorney
shall be — DP 1D and Client 1D. Further,
Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also
upload specimen signature card,

d) Click on Submit button and investor will be
mapped now.

¢) The same can be viewed under the "Report
Section”,

STEP3-Voting through remote e-voting.
The corporate shareholder can voie by two
methods, once remote e-voling is activated:
METHOD I -VOTES ENTRY

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.
linkintime,co.inand login with credentials as
receivied in Step | abowve,

b) Click on "Votes Entry™ tab under the Menu
section,

~

THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024

(13)



CGuomr

MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED

-

.

¢) Enter Event Mo, for which you want to cast
vote. Event Mo. will be available on the home
page of Instavote before the starl of remote
evoting,

d) Enter "16-digit Demat Account No," for
which yvou want to cast vote,

¢) Refer the Resolution description and cast
your vole by selecting your desired option
Favour { Against' (1If you wish to view the
entire Resolution details, click on the "View
Resolution’ file link).

f) After selecting the desired option ie.,
Favour / Against, click on "Submit’.

Mohit Paper Mills Limited

) A confirmation box will be displayed. If
youl wish to confirm your vote, click on "Yes',
¢lse to change vour vote, click on ™No' and
accordingly modify your vote. {Once you cast
your vote on the resolution, you will not be
allowed tomodify or change it subsequently).

OR

VOTES UPLOAD:

a) Wisit URL: htips://instavote.
linkintime.co.in and login with credentials as
received in Step | above,

b) You will be able to see the notification for e-
voling in inbox.

¢) Select "Wiew' icon for ‘Company's Name /
Event number'. E-voting page will appear,
d) Download sample wvote file from
"Diownload Sample Vote File" option.

) Cast your vole by selecting your desired
option "Favour / Against' in excel and upload
the same under "Upload Vote File" option.

f) Click on "Submit". "Data uploaded
successfully” message will be displayed.
{Onee you cast your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify or change it
subsequently).

Helpdesk:

Login type

Individual Sharsholders
holding  securitiez  in
demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders
holding securitiez in
demat mode with CDSL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any techmical issue in login can contact
NEDL  helpdesk by sending a  request  at
evoting@nsdl co.in or call at - 022 - 4286 7000 and 022 -
2499 7000

Members facing any technical izsue in login can contact
CDSL  helpdesk by zending a  request at
helpdesk evoting@edslindia com or contact at toll free no.
1800 22 55 33

Helpdesk for Individual shareholders holding
securities in physical form/ Non-Individual
Shareholders helding securities in demat mode:
Shareholders facing any technical issue in
login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE
helpdesk by sending a reguest at
enoticesfadlinkintime.co.in or contact on: -
Tel: 022 —4918 6000,

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat mode:
Individual Sharcholders holding securities in
demat mode may contact the respective
helpdesk for any technical issues related 1o
login through Depository ie., NSDL and
CDSL.

Forgot Password:
Individual shareholders holding securities
in physical form has forgotten the
password:
Ifan Individual shareholder holding securities
in physical form has forgoten the USER 1D
[Login ID] or Password or both then the
sharcholder can use the "Forgot Password"
option available on the e-Voting website of
Link Intime:
https:/finstavote.linkintime.co.in
Click on "Login" under "SHARE
HOLDER" tab and further Click "forgot
password?"
Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter
Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).
Click on "SUBMIT".

~
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In case shareholders is having valid email
address, Password will be sent to his / her
registered e-mail address, Shareholders can
set the password of histher choice by
providing the information about the
particilars of the Security Ouestion and
Answer, PAN, DOB/DOM,  Bank  Account
Number (last four digits) elc. as mentioned
above. The password showld conmtain a
mininmum of & characters, at least one special
characier @' #84& *), ai least one

numeral, at least one alphabet and at least
one capital letter.

L.m.,r [D for Sh:lnlmldn.r:- hulnlmg :-.har;.a in

User ID 15 Event No + Folio Number
registered with the Company

Iser ing s 8 |
MSDL demat account is 8 Character DP 1D
followed by ¥ Dipit Client ID

User 1D for Sharcholders holding shares in
CDSL demat account is 16 Digit Benefici
1D

Institutional shareholders ("Corporate Body/
Custodian/Mutual Fund”} has forgotten the
password:
If a MNon-Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode has forgotten the
USER ID [Login 1D or Password or both then
the sharcholder can use the "Forgot
Password" option available on the e-Voting
website of Link Intime:
hittps:/instavote linkinlime.co.in
Click on "Login" under "Corporate
Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund" tab and
further Click "forgot password?"
Enter User 1D, Organization 1D and Enter
Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).
Clickon "SUBMIT".

I case shareholders is having valid email
address, Password will be sent to his 7 her

registered e-mail address. Shareliolders can
set the password of histher choice by
providing the fnformation about the
particulars of the Security Question and
Answer, PAN, DOB/DCM, Bank Accownt
Number (last four digits) efe. as mentioned
above, The password shonld contain a
minimm of & characters, af least one special
chavacter (TR H#8& *), at least one numeral, af
feast one alphaber and ai least one capital
letter

Individual Sharcholders holding securities in
demat mode with NS CDSL has forgotten
the password:

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User
1D Password are advised to use Forget User
ID and Forget Password option available at
abovementioned depository/ depository
participants webhsite,

I It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and
take ulmost care to keep your password
confidential,

O For sharcholders! members holding shares
in physical form, the details can be used
only for voting on the resolutions
contained in this Motice.

L1 During the voling period, sharcholders!
members can login any number of time till
they have voted on the resolution(s) for a
particular "Event”.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Mohit Paper Mills Limited

Sdi-

Sandeep Jain

Managing Director cum Chairman
DIN: 00458048

Dated: 25 August 2024

Place: New Delh

,‘
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT
TOSECTON 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
1 e

Item MNo. 3

The Members of the Company at 30" Annual
{ieneral Meeting held on 29 September 2022,
gppointed Mr. Mohit Jain as the Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director of the
Company, The Board and Nomination &
Remuneration Committee ("NRC")
recognized the importance of the Mr. Mohit
Jam, in the Company, especially his vast
experience in the field of paper industry. Me.
Maohit Jain is the son of Mr. Sandeep Jain
{Chairman and Managing Director) and Mrs.
Anju Jain (Director), and spouse of Mrs.
Shubhi Jain (Director) of the Company. Mr.
Mohit Jain is associated with the Company
from 2013 and member of the Board since
2022 and gave his best for growth of the
Company. Therefore, the Board, the NRC and
Audit Committee in their respective mectings
held on 14 August, 2024, acknowledged that
Mr. Mohit Jain possesscs cxtensive
knowledge and vast experience in the paper
industry, which has significantly benefitted
the Company’s development and growth in
the past vears. The Board, the NRC and the
Audit Committee agreed that Mr. Mohit Jain's
expertise in paper industry, strategy planning,
policy development, governance, risk &
compliance makes him exceptionally well-
suited to the Company. Further he will also
provide expert advisory and carry out other
duties, responsibilities, functions on regular
basis and/or time to time in relation to the
management and/or marketing activity of the
Company on the written or oral request by the
Board. Considering the expetience.
qualification and role of Mr. Mohit Jain, the
Board has decided to appoint him as the
advizor’ consultant Accordingly, the Board
based on the recommendations of the NRC
and the Audit Committee has devided to
designate Mr. Mohit Jain as an advisor/

consultant (Non- Executive Director and
holding a place of profit) effective [rom
October 01, 2024 subject to maximum
remuneration non-exceeding Rs, 5,00,000/-
{Rupees Five Lakhs) per month and such
other perguisites in accordance with the Act
and SEBI Listing Regulations. The provisions
of section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
Act govern the Related Party Transactions
require a Company to obtain prior approval of
the Board of Directors and in certain cases
approval of the shareholders is also required
for the related party's appointment to any
office or place of profit. In view of the same,
the position/office held by Mr. Mohit Jain in
the Company will fall within the preview of
Section |88 1)) and remuneration in excess
of T 30,00,000/-(Rupees Thirty Lakh only)
per annum, reguires sharcholders’ approval.
Seetion 188( 1)) of the Companies Act, 2013
provides for the related party's appoiniment to
any office or place of profit, The Board of
Directors of the Company on the
recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee, at their meeting held on August
14, 2024, had approved the appointment of
Mr. Mohit Jain, as Non- Executive Director
{officers and holding a place of profit), subject
to the approval of the sharcholders by way of
an Special Resolution, on a remuneration of
Rs_5,00,000/- {Rupees Five Lakhs) per month
and such other perguisites and in terms of the
provisions of the Section 188 (1)0 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
mentioned thereto, in the event of increase in
salary in excess of the aforesaid limits, the
approval of the sharcholders by way of special
resolution is required. It is to be mentioned
that appointment of Mr, Mohit Jain as advisor/
consultant and salary payable to Mr. Mohit
Jain and holding office or place of profit in the
Company, are in ordinary course of busingss
and at arm's length basis transaction,
Required information or details pursuant to
the Rule 15(3) of the Companies (Meetings of
the Board and its Power) Rules, 2014 of Mr.

,‘
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Mohit Jain seeking approval of related party
transaction under Section TRE( 1N D of the Act.

Sr. Mo. | Particulars Details/ Information

a Name of the Eelated Party] Mr. Mohit Jain (Non-Executive Director)

B. Name of the directors or | None of the Directors. Key MManagerial Personnel and their relatives,
kev managenial except Mr. Sandeep Jain, Mre. Anju Jain and Mrs. Shubhi Jaimn and their
personnel who 13 related | relative, are m anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwize

i the zaid resclution.

[ Nature of relahonzhip Mr Mohit Jain 12 zon of Mr. Sandeep Jain and Mrz Anju Jain and
husband of Mrs. Shubhi Jain and holds17.30,818 equity share of the
Company.

d. Nature, material terms. | On the recommendstion of NEC and Audit Committee, the Board given
monetary  walue  and | its consent for the appointment of M. Mcohit Jain, Director as adviser
particulars of  the | consultant (officer and holding place of profit) and he shall provided
confract or arangement | expert advisory and carry cut other dubies, responsibilities, functions on

regular basiz and/or time to time in relation to the management and'or
marketing activity of the Company on the written or oral request by the
Board and he is also eligible to pet remuneration of Bs. 500,000/ - pm.
w.e.f October 01, 2024.

& Any other mformation As required relevant information provided m explanatery statement
above under the item no. 3.

.

Disclosure under Regulation 36(3) of the
SERI Listing Regulations and Secretarial
Standard-2 issued by the Institute of
Company Seeretarics of India is provided in
the Annexure to the Explanatory Statement,
This Explanatory Statement also serves as
an appropriate disclosure under the SEBI
Listing Regulations

None of the Directors and/or Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and
their relatives thereof except Mr. Mohit Jain,
Mr. Sandeep Jain {Chairman & Managing
Director). Mrs. Anju Jain {Director) and
Mrs, Shubhi Jain (Director) are concerned or
interested financially or otherwise in the
resolution at Item no. 3 of this notice.

The Board of Directors of vour Company
recommends that the Resolution under Item
Mo, 3 be passed in the interest of your
Company.

Item No. 4

The Board of Directors of the Company in
their meeting held on May 28, 2024, on the
recommendation of the Audit Commuittee,
had appointed M/s H.Tara & Co., Cost
Accountants to conduct the audit of the cosl
records of Mohit Paper Mills Limited for the
financial year 2024-25 at a remuneration of
Rs. 60,000/ p.a. {Rupees Sixty Thousand
Maohit Paper Mills Limited

Omly) plus applicable taxes and
reimbursement of other out of pocket
EXPEnSes.

In accordance with the provisions of Section
145 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
( Aundit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, prescribes
that the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors has to be approved by the Board of
Directors. bazed on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee, and further it is be
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4 ™
ratified by the Sharcholders. Accordingly,
consent of the members is sought for
passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at
item Mo.4 of the Notice of the AGM.

Mone of the Directors and! or Key
Managerial Personnel {KMP) of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resplution set out at Item MNo. 4 of the
Motice.

The Board of Directors of vour Company
recommends that the Resolution under [tem
MNo. 4 be passed in the interest of your
Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Maohit Paper Mills Limited

Sd/-

Sandeep Jain

Managing Director cum Chairman
DIN: (0455045

Dated: 25 August, 2024

Place: New Dwelhi

. J
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Additional Informatlen on DMrectors recommended for appointment/re-appolntment as required under
Regulativn 36(3) of the SERBI Listing Regulafions and Secretarial Standards=2 88 prescriled 'h_i‘ e Insfitute
of Company Secretaries of India

Mame of Direchor Mrs. Anju Jain kL Mohit Jain

Ty D E0EH) (rF e

Ape 15 December 1965 (5% years) 34

Cualifications Engincering Graduare Ciraduate { Honoes)y

Briet” Profile, expernence and] Technical Expert He 1% commerce graduate {Honors) and

cxpertise in specific  functionall having  skills’expertise’  competencies

area Mowdamental ag mentioned i Corporate

Crsvemance report

Term  and condinons of re= [To be neappointed a5 MNon- | To appoint office director as affice of place of

apgrointment Exevcutive Director on existing | place of profit under tle provisions of Section
TS, LRSI o the Act

Details of Remuneration .-il.'vughl Inly Sithing Fee for ::Ilun:“np, thd Bz 500000 per manilh and  other

tox e panicd Ipand’ Committes Mestings perquisites a5 applicable  amd mentioned in

ddetnilz in explanytory statement

Dedails  of remuneration  last | Only  Sitting  Fee  for Getiing Hs. 2E.E0,000/- annually  as

drawn attemding tha Board! remuneraiion wmber  as reguired
Committee Mectings provisions of the Act

Diate of first appointment on the) Avgust 30, 1992 September 05, 2022

Bosarc]

Sharcholding in the Company 30,777,589 Equity shares 17,530,818 Equity Shares

Eefationship wilh nther Wife of Mr. Sandeep Jain, Chairman | Mr, Mohit Jain is husband of M. Shubhs

Direetors, Manager and other and Managing Drirector and Jain {Mon- Executive Director), and Son of

Key Manageral Personnel of Muother-in-lawr of Shubhi Jain, | Mr  Sandeep Jain (Chairman amd

the Company Director and Mother of Mr | Managing Directord and Mre. Anje Jain
Mahit Jain {Director) {Mon- Executive Director).

Anendance al Board, Barard Mecting [Board Mecting

Commatles & Gieneral

Meetings held  during  the (7T k7T

YCar.

Directorship held in other Indiznfsone oz

Listed Companics
Directiorship in other Companies Centurion Industries Private
Limined

Muhit Tisswes Frivate Limited
Chairman/fember affvone Mane
Committess of Board of Dinsctod
of other Listed Companies
untl:nil.ﬁq}rr firgxm DII\_“\;I;IJI.'.'EhIrlMNLII'IL‘ Mong
of Listed Entities in last thred
FEEI.

By Order of the Board of Drectors
Fur Maohit Paper Mills Limited
Bl-

Sanddesp Jain

Managing DMrector cum Chainman
3N Q045808

Drated: 25 August 2024

Place: Mews Delh

. J
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting Thirty Second (32*) Annual Report on the

business and operations of Mohit Paper Mills Limited ("MPML" or the "Company"),

along with the audited financial statements, for the financial year ended 31" March, 2024,

The performance of the Company has been referred to wherever required.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, forming part of this

Annual Report, have been prepared in accordance with Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) ) and the relevant

rules issued there under, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures

Requirements), Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations"™) and applicable Indian Accounting

S (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Revenue from Gpemﬁuns 18562.6 22.216.50

Other Income 640.03 401.27

Total Income of the company 19.202.66 22.617.77

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costs, 1,875.92 1610.07

Exceptional items and Tax Expense

Less: Depreciation’ Amaortisation/ Impairment 590.42 556.58

Profit before Finance Costs, Exceptional items ang 1285.5 L5349

Tax Expense

Less: Finance Costs 375.54 348,00

Profit before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 909,96 T05.49

Add(less): Exceptional ftems 0,00 0.00

Profit before Tax Expense 996 T05.49

Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 264,62 213,92

Profit for the vear (1) 04535 491.57

Other Comprehensive Income (2) 0,00 0.00

Total Iic;h:pmiléﬁsi\'e Intume"-.l"HZ} 645.35 491.57

COMPANY OVERYVIEW required on customer demand. Your

Company is agro bascd paper
The Company was incorporated in the year manufacturing  Company means that we
1997 and listed with BSE Ltd. under the use agriculture products like hagasse and
provisions of the Act. Your Company is other agriculture product etc. for
engaged in manufacturing of various kinds manufacturing of paper and we also use
of paper like writing printing paper {color imported waste paper for manufacturing of
and white), MG Poster paper, kraft paper paper to increase quality and strength of the
and others various quality papers as manufactured paper. At present the
v,
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Company 5 using higher production
capacity of the installed manufacturing
capacity, We sold paper in form of reels,
sheets and other size as required or demand
of the customers,

The Company is adopting all the means Tor
reducing the cost of production for mcrease
the profit in the coming years the Company
will achieve perfect point of cost of
production after installation of evaporator
and casting soda plant. The Company”s
cost of production of paper is higher than
other paper company because of our small
production capacity and using agro product
for manufaciuring of paper, because of the
price of agro products is based on
availability of bagasse and other agriculture
products in the market.

We expect for better and bright future of the
Company. Our strategic objectives are o
build a sustainable organization that
remains relevant to the agenda of our
stakeholders and creating pgrowth
apportunities for the employee and increase
the wealth of the company for our
stakeholders and members

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND
STATE OF COMPANY"S AFFAIRS

Your Company”s management is
committed to aegis of the Company in
every situation and also committed o
achieving its objectives and goals.
Presently the Company engaged in single
seginent i.e. manufacturing of paper, the
management of the Company always keeps
keen eyes on every situation/transitions of
the Company. The Company is moving fast
to maximization the wealth of sharcholders
and stakeholders of the Company.

At present the production capacity of the
Company 15 130 MT/per day and the
Company 15 utilized it"s maximum
production capacity. In the previous
financial vear 2022-2023 the Board of

Directors decided to install 150 TDS Boiler
and Evaporator ("BE") in the production
line and caustic soda plant, the purpose to
install this BE and cauwstic soda plant to
increase  the production with  existing
privduction capacity, The idea behind to
install BE is that to increase the production
of steam, power and caustic soda lye and
result of this increment in steam, power and
caustic soda, the production will be
increased within the existing production
capacity. After installing the BE and caustic
soda plant. the Company can utilized its
optimum or maximum production capacity.
The Board supposed that this BE and
caustic soda plant will be in used during FY
2024-2024 and which will be a mile stone
for the Company.

During the financial year 2023-2024:

= The Company engaged in single segment
i.e. the Company engaged in manutacturing

of Paper.

= There i no changes in staius of the
company,

*  There is no changes in Ainancial yvear of the
Company.

* There are no acquisition, merger,
expansion, modernization and
diversification during the year in the
company under review.

= There is no any other material event having
an impact on the affairs of the company
during the year under review.

HIGHLIGHTS OF FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR 2023-2024,

During FY 2023-2024, the Company has
wrnover (Met)of Bs. 18362.61/- lakhs as against
previous figure of Rs. 2221650/~ lakhs, the
Company recorded decrease in sale (16.43%)
(appros ) due o reduce in the price of the paper in
national market,

The Company has tecorded 27% (approx.)
downfall in market price of paper in the year
2023-2024, Further, duning the financial year

,‘
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2023-2024, other income of the Company has
been increased to Rs. 640.05 lakhs as against
previous vear income of Rz, 411.03 lakhs (ie.
increase by around 55.72% during the financial
wear 2023-2024, However, due to reduction
price of paper as mentionad above, total income
has shown a downfall during the financial year
2023-2024, The total income durnng financial
vear 2023-2024 45 at Rs. 19.202.66/~ and
previous year incoms of Rs. 22,627.53/- lakhs.

RESERVES

Out of the profits of the Company, a sum of Rs.
645.35 lakhs has been transferred to General
Reserves during the financial year 2023- 2024
and total free reserves and surplus (Other
Equity) as on March 31, 2024 stood at Rs.
305236/~ lakhs as compared to previous year
figure of Rs. 240701/~ lakhs.

CASHAND EQUIVALENTS

As on March 31, 2024, the Company 15 having
cash and cash equivalents balance of Rs, 13,12
fakhs in comparison o Rs, 5,34 lakhs as at
March 31, 2023, posting an increment by
145,23% (approxh. The Company 15 continuing
focus on judicious management of its working
capital, receivable, inventories and other
working capital parameters are kept under strict
check through continueus monitoring.

NETWORTH AND EARNING PER
SHARE (EPS)

As on March 31, 2024, net worth of wvour
Company was 4,452.36 lakhs as compared (o
Rs. 3, 80701 lakhs for the previous financial
vear, Mohit Paper Mills Limited 28 EPS of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2024 stands at Bs. 4,61 in companson o Rs, 3,51
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your Company, after
considering holistically the relevant

circumstances and kecping i view the
Company™s financial position and future growth
prospects, has decided that 1t would be prudent,
not 1o recommend any dividend For financial
year 2023-2024,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND
COMMITMENTS, IF ANY,
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes
and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company
which have occuwrred from the end of the
financial vear of the Company to which
the financial statement relates ie.
March 31, 2024 tll the date of this
report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF
BUSINESS, IFANY

There i1s no change in the nature of
business of your Company during the
year under review.

CHANGES
STRUCTURE

IN CAPITAL

During the period under review, no
change has taken place with regard to
capital structure of the Company.

Details of share capital of the Company as
onMarch 31, 2024 is as under:

* Authorized Share Capital

As on March 31, 2024, there was no change in
the authorized share capital of the Company and
it stood at Re. 17,530,00,000/- { Rupees Seventeen
Crore Fifty Lakhs Only) consisting of
175,000,000 {One Crore Seventy Five Lakhs)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ (Rupees Ten Only)
cach.

~
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*Paid- up Share Capital

Ag on March 31, 2024, Issued, Subscribed and
Paid-up Capital of the Company is Rs,
1, 00,000,000/ - { Rupees Fourteen Crore Only)
divided mmto  1,40.00,000 (One Crore Forty
Lakhsy Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ {(Rupees Ten
Only) cach. There is no changes in the shane
capital during the vear.

The Company™s equity shares are listed on BSE
Limited.

HOLDMING, SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
ANDJOINTVENTURES

The Company does not have any
subsidiaries or associate company as on
March 31, 2024, so there is no
requirement of statement in Form: AOC-
I, under section 1293} of the Act read
with Rule 5 of the Companies ( Accounts)

Rules, 2014,
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In line with the requirements of the Act
and the Listing Regulations, the
Company has formulated a Policy on
Materiality of Related Party Transaction
(RPT) & Dealing with RPT which is also
available on the Company™s website.

The Policy intends to ensure that proper
reporting, approval and disclosure
processes are in place for all transactions
between the Company and its Related
Parties. All Related Party Transactions
and subsequent material modifications
are placed betfore the Audit Committee for
its review and approval. Prior omnibus
approval is obtained for RPTs on a
quarterly basis for transactions which are
of repetitive nature and/or entered in the
ordinary course of business and are at
arm's  length, if any. All RPTs: are

subjected to independent review by a
reputed accounting firm to  establish
compliance with the requirements of
RPTs under the Act, and SEBI Listing
Repgulations. During the year, the
Company had not entered into any
contract! arrangement/ transaction with
related parties which could be considered
material in accordance with the policy of
the company on mateniality of related
party transactions,

All RPTs entered during the year were in
ordinary course of the business and at
arm”s length basis. No Material RPTs, as
per the materiality threshold adopted by
the Board of Directors, were entered
during the wvear by the Company.
Accordingly. the disclosure of RPTs as
required under Section 29 134(3)h) of
the Act, in Form AOC-2 is not applicable,
The web link of above policy is here
http://www.mohitpaper.in‘upload/others/
policies latest/3 relatedpartytransaction
PolicyMetalUp.pdf

DIRECTORS'
STATEMENT

RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to the requirements of clause (¢)
of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the
Act, the Board of Directors of your
Company confirms that;

a. In the preparation of the annual
accounts for the year ended March
31, 2024, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed and
there are no material departures
from the same;

b. The Directors have selected such

~
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accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company as at March
31, 2024 and of the profit of the
company for the year ended on that
date;

¢. The Directors had taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d. The Directors had prepared the
annual accounts of the Company on
a going concern basis:

g. The Directors had lawd down the
internal financial controls o be
followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating
effectively;

f. The Directors had devised proper
systems to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate
and operating cffectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

The Company has m place adequate internal
financial controls with reference 1o financial

statements, The Board has adopied the policies
and procedures for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company™s policies,
safepuarding of is assets, the prevention of and
detection of fraud and crrors, the accuracy &
completeness of the accounting records and the
tmely  preparation of reliable Binancial
disclosures. The Company™s Internal Financial
Control Systern is designed to help and ensure
the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
proper financial reporting and compliance of
laws and regulations. The Company has adopted
policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including
the adherence to the Companies Policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of fraud and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and
timely preparation of reliable financial
disclosures.

M3 MAA and Company has appointed as
Internal Auditor, who along with the aundit
cotmmittee formulates the system and ensures
the effectiveness and adequacy of the svstem.

DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL ("KMP")

The Board of the Company have an optimum
combination of the Exccutive and Non-
Executive Directors (including women
Directors). As on March 31, 2024, the Board
comprised 10 {Ten) Directors, out of which 3
(Five) were Non-Executive Independent
Directors, 2(Two) are Whole Time Directors,
and 3 { Three) are the Won- Executive Director.

*Changes in Directors

Mr. Sushil Kumar Tvag (DIN: 06362605), Mr.,
Rachit Jain (DIN: 06982727 and Mr, Sanjeev
Kumar Jain {DIN: 07018412) ceased to be the
Independent Director(s) of the Company w.c.f.
closing of business hours of March 31, 2024 due
to completion of their tenure.

,‘
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Further, Board of Directors in their meeting held
on March 30, 2024, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and subject o the
approval of the Members, appointed Mr. Satva
Prakash (DIN: 10564516), Mrs, Shubhi Jain
(DIN; 10564590) and Mrs, Sakshi Jain (DIN;
13564854 as MNon-execubive Independent
Director, not liable to netire by rotation, for a
period of five years commencing from April 01,
2024 to March 31, 2029 (both days inclusive)
and the same has Mohit Paper Mills Limited 30
been approved by the sharcholders through
postal ballof passed on June 19, 2024,

= Dircctor liable to retire by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mrs. Anju Jain
(DIN: 00459540), Non- Executive Non-
Independent Director of the Company will be
retiring by rotation at the ensuing AGM and
being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.
Mecessary resolutions for the re-appointment of
aforesaid Director have been included in the
MNotice convening the ensuing AGM and details
of the proposed re-appointment are disclosed in
the explanatory statement of the Notice.

* Changes in KMPs

Dring the financial vear 2023-2024, there were
o changes in the KMP”s of the Company. The
Kev Managerial Personnel of the Company as
on March 31, 2024, are Mr Sandeep Jain
(Chairman and Managing Director), Mr
Pradeep Rajput Kumar { Whole Time Director),
Mr. Arvind Kumar (Chiefl Financial Officer) and
Mr. Shivam Sharma (Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer).

Mr. Shivam Sharma has ceased to be the
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of
the Company w.e.f. July 13, 2024 consequent to
his resignation.

Further, the Board of Dircctors of the Company
based on the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration in their meeting
held on August 14, 2024 had appointed Mrs.

Kusum Chavhan (member of Institule of
Company Secretaries of India) as Company
Secretary & Compliance Officer weef date of
het joining.

BOARD DIVERSITY

In terms of the provisions of Section 178(3) of
the Act and Regulation 19 read with Part D of
Schedule 1 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the
MNomination & Remuneration Commitlee is
responsible  for formulating the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes
and independence of a Director. We understand
the value and importance of balanced and
diverse board in the company. We always
support a better/best board in the company. The
Company believes that a truly diverse board will
changes in thoughts, perspective, knowledge,
gkills, industry experience, cultural and
geographical background, age, gender that will
help us retain our competitive advantage.

Nomination and Remuneration Poliey  for
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees of the Company, is available on the
Company®s website at
htepe/ wwewomohitpaper in/upload/others/polici
es_latest/] Board%20Diversitye20Policy.pdf.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMEE

During the financial year ended March 31,2024,
the Company conducted familiarization
programme of independent directors to familiar
the independent director with the culture of the
Company. During the relevant financial vear, as
per company policy the Independent Directors
of the Company has conducted a separate
meeting of Independent Directors of the
company on February 12, 2024, The meeting
conducted for the purpose of evaluation of the
Board of Directors as whole and individually
and also conducted the familiarization program
for Independent Directors to introduction to the
Board and to attend an orientation program. The
details of waining and familiarization program
are provided in the corporate govermance reporl
and also available on company's website

,‘
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hitip:/fwww,mohitpaperin/upload others/extral
3 1 Meeting Website 22-23 pdf’

DETAILS OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial vear ended March
31" 2024, the Board met 7 (Seven) times,
The details of Board meetings are
mentioned in Corporate Governance
Report as annexed with this report, The
intervening gap between any two
meetings was within the period
prescribed by the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations.

For further details in respect of
Composition, number and attendance of
each director in various Committees of
Board as required in accordance with
Secretarial Standard-1 on Board
Meetings and SEBI Listing Regulations,
please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report of this Annual Report.

COMMITTEES OFTHE BOARD

As on March 31, 2024, the Board had all
Statutory  Committees i.e. the Audit
Committee, the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
The Committees consists of balanced
majority of Independent Directors in the
committee. The details are available in the
Corporate Governance Report forming
part of this Annual Report,

During the financial year 2023-2024, all
recommendations made by the committees were
approved by the Board, ifany.

AUDITCOMMITTEE

The Company has duly constituted an
Audit Committee, whose detailed
composition and powers are provided in
the Corporate Governance Report. There
were no recommendations of the Audit
Committee which have not been accepted
by the Board during the financial vear.

DECLARATIONBY
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary
declaration from each independent
director under Section [49%7) of the Act,
that he/she meets the criteria of
independence laid down in Section
149{6) of the Act and Fegulation 23 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations. In terms of
Regulation 25 (¥) of SEBI Listing
Regulations, they have confirmed that
they are not aware of any circumstances
or situations which exists or may be
reasonably anticipated that could impair
or impact their ability to discharge their
duties with an objective independent
judgement and without any external
influence.

All Independent Directors have affirmed
compliance to the code of conduct for
independent directors as prescribed in Schedule
1V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Code of
Conduet for Directors and Senior management
personnel formulated by the Company.

Independent Directors get registered
themselves in the data bank maintained
with the Indian Institute of Corporate
Adftairs. Manesar ("IICA™) from time to
time and undertake, if required, online
proficiency self-assessment test

~
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conducted by the [HCA. Performance Evaluation of Independent
3 ; ?iliccturs. ?J process of evaluation is being
The Board of Directors of the Company ollowed by the Board for its own
has taken on record the declarations and performance and that of its Committees
confirmations submitted by the and individual Directors.
Independent Directors and based upon the
declarations received from them, in the The exercise was carried through a
opinion of the Board all independent structured evaluation process covering
directors (including independent various aspects of the Board including
directors  appointed d_“”".gl the year) committees and every Directors
possess strong sense ﬂfl!‘-t'ﬂgflt}“ H_ﬂ_d hi_’«‘”? functioning such as composition of
requisite experience, skills, qualification Board and committees, experience and
and expertise and are independent of the competencies, performance of specific
m?nugulzmnt. For E‘unhu details, please duties and obligations, governance
refer to Corporate Governance report, issues, etc.
BOARD EVALUATION ; :
The evaluation process focused on
Th T T T i various aspects of the Board and
rclitf: ';r ":Lrgi"fn'{_’;:;"rii :E:Sém’;“ *:?1; Committees functioning such as
e e T structure, composition, quality, board
Nomination & Remuneration p S i
B e . meeting practices and overall Board
Committee” on & need basis, and the 2
v : Py effectiveness.
Committee may periodically scek
independent external advice in relation to ;
pe ARy The Independent Directors had a separate
the process. The Committee may amend e held T 2 024 N
the Policy, if required, to ascertain its Higetillg: e an:valguaty. $2; 0o 0
. f ru.{ ‘th ' ds of il ) Directors other than Independent
?:%LF::}FEJFrr:}?;\;:;::c[:;lnlg fleeds ot the Directors attended this meeting,
pany : Independent Directors discussed inter-
fa b : o alia the performance of Non-Independent
“omp: s devised a Polic : . e
Ihcf . U{llp:iny x}lﬂih{:’m “L(f T’ EUIIL}Idm: Directors and Mohat Paper Milis Limited 32
qur :::m‘tmﬁc c g‘ lg ikl F{_t 11? .Dl};n ﬂcn Board as a whole and the performance of
T S, O Tt A the Chairman of the Company after taking
individual directors., which includes ; sl ; fig i { Excent
ibasia Far St B rnARe eA vaon ot thi Into consideration the views o Executive
o - th- iy b and Mon- Executive Directors and took
111":!:111--:2(::.11“1 ;T "f:_ s cxr.:.n:u ';':1: Em’ Eh note of the quality, guantity and
1 VBT S e Rt O e PO I timeliness of Now ol information between
measured on the basis of the ratings hap EAalh aiiclth e
Braided by sish Director and t e:.nmpanymandgemenhlm t r.ana .
i Al E;I Bl decidis: tha The performance evaluation of all the
:-‘-01'}1;15 3 e mRﬂ S t“’f tc: : :1 Independent Directors have been done by
REDHIMT oIS, oD IO the entire Board, excluding the Director
Removal of the non-performing Directors he =
; e eing evaluated.
ofthe Company. On the basis of Policy for
o J
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OUTCOME OF EVALUATION
PROCESS

The Board was satisfied with the
professional expertise and knowledge
of each of'its Directors, All the Directors
effectively contributed to the decision-
making process by the Board. Further,
all the Committees were duly
constituted and were functioning
effectively. The Board also expressed
its satisfaction in relation to the
provision of supporting documents to
the Board enabling it to assess the
policy & procedural requirements for
the proper functioning of the Company.
The Board expressed its satisfaction
with the decision making and decision
implementing procedure followed by it.
The Directors express their satisfaction
with the evaluation process.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The policy on directors’ Nomination and
Remuneration, including criteria for
determining gualification, positive attribute and
independence of a director and other relevant
matter, as required as per section 178(3) of the
Act, and SEBI Listing Regulations, The Board
has. on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") framed
a policy for selection and appointment of
Directors. Senior Management and their
remuneration, The MNomination and
Remuneration Policy is placed on the websile of
thae Company at
http:/f'www.mohitpaper.in/upload/others/polici
es latest’2 N&RPolicy.pdf,

There was no change carvied out in the
policy during the vear under review,

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE
BLOWER POLICY

Your Company believes in the conduct of
the affairs of its constituents in a fair and
transparent manner by adopting highest
standards of professionalism, honesty,
integrity, and ethical behavior. In
compliance with requirements of Act &
SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company
has established a mechanism under its
Whistle Blower Policy for emplovees to
report to the management instances of
unethical behavior, actual or suspected,
fraud or violation of the Company's code
of conduct or ethics policy. Whistle
blowing is the confidential disclosure by
an individual of any concern encountered
in the workplace relating to a perceived
wrongdoing. The policy has been framed
to enforce controls so as to provide a
system of detection, reporting, prevention
and appropriate dealing of issues relating
to fraud. unethical behavior etc. The
policy provides for adequate safezuards
against  victimization of director(s) /
employee(s) who avail of the mechanism
and also provides for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Commitiee in
exceptional cases. During the year under
review, no complaints were received by
the Board or Audit Committee.

The whistle blower policy of the
Company is available at the
https://www.mohitpaper.infupload/other
s/policies latest'9 WISTLE%20BLOW
ER VIGIL%20MACHANISM . pdf

~
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESFONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the
Company is committed to ensure its
contribution to the welfare of the
communities in the society where it
operates, through its various Corporate
Social Responsibility ("CSR")
initiatives.

The objective of Company™s TSR Policy is o
consistently pursue the concept of integrated
development of the society in an economically,
socially and covironmentally sustainable
manner and at the same time recognize the
interests of all its stakeholders, The Company
has adopted a CSR. policy which 15 avanlable af
www.mohitpaper.in, The Company's CSR
activities are centered around the creation of
sustainable education opportunitics towards the
socicties and nations

To attain its CSR objectives in a
professional and integrated manner, the
Company shall undertake the CSR
activities as specified under the Act.

During FY 2023-2024, the CSR
Committee consists of Mr. Sandeep
Jain, Executive Director, Mrs. Anju Jain
Non- Executive Director and Mr.
Sourabh Mathur, Independent Director.
As the Company does not have any CSR
liabilities more than Rs. 50 Lakhs in any
of the preceding financial years,
therefore in line with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on
March 30, 2024 has dissolved the CSR
Committee and the duties of the CSR
Committee are being discharged by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

Further, the Annual Report on CSR
Activities/ Imitiatives including all

requisite details is annexed with this
report at Annexure 2

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has implemented an integrated
risk management approach through which it
review and assess significant risks on a regular
basis to help ensure that there is a robust system
of risk contrel and mitigation. Senior
Management periodically reviews this risk
management framework to keep updated and
address emerging challenges.

Major risk identified for the Company by the
management is price of raw-materials and fuel,
Currency Fluctuation, Compliance, financing,
The management is of the view that none of the
above risks may threaten the existence of the
Company as risk mitigation process 3 pul in
place o ensure that there is nil or minimum
impact on the Company in case any of these risk
materialize

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

The Company does not fall under the
purview of the disclosure of Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report
under the Regulation 34 (2)(f) of SEBI
Listing Regulations.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS,
GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT
U/S 186

Details of loans, guarantees and
investments covered under Section 186 of
the Act including purpose thercof form
part of the notes to the financial
statements provided in this Annual
Report.

~
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ANNUALRETURN fraud by its officers or employees and therefore
na details are required 1o be disclosed under
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3} (ca)ofthe Act.
Section 92(3) and 134 (3)(a) of the Act, INTERNALAUDITORS
the Annual Return of the Company is
available on the website of the Company Mg Mis MAA. Chartered Accountants
‘?t: rlnlt“ps:"ff"rf"*;”'hmnih IpApED 1 were appointed as Internal Auditor.
AR, A clal-Into-nhm Reports of the Internal Auditor for the
: y ear were submitted to the Audit
STATUTORY AUDITORS E s B Dend
Pursuant o provisiens of Section 139 of the Act COST AUDITORS AND COST AUDIT
read with the Companies {Audit and Auditors) REPORT -
Rules, 2014, M/s. Pankaj K. Goyal & Co_ {ICAl
Firm Registration Number: 006885C), Pursus: h f the sect;
Chartered Accountants was appointed as the ursuant 1':“ the prm'b"'-_'“ of the LE‘"WJ”_
Statutory  Auditors of the Company at the 148(3) 'C_"T Act read with rule 6(2) ‘_:"i
Thirtieth { 30th) Annual General Meeting of the Companies (Cost Records and Aundit)
Company held at September 29, 2022 fora lerm Amendment Rule, 2014 (include any
of Five (3} consecutive years till the conclusion modification or re-enactment thereof, if
of the Thity Fifth (35th) Antual General any) and other applicable law, rules or
MeetingaftheCompany, regulations, if any. The Company has
The Statutory Auditors have audited the ‘:EE;::SME M:Ifl-:; Tﬁkﬁ& (ﬂzggggzrt;
financial statements of the Company for Hor DA T e
B e D it accordance with the provisions of Section
the financial yLaandn_.dH March 2024 148 and other applicable provisions, if
and ‘]i” ‘*"‘m; file bf*mip'“ “IdGb“f““‘i any, of the Act and Companies ( Audit and
:“'m, ersatl "',"’nsumg_ TG screrd Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration
Meeting Il"ﬂrﬂ!mrapprmal. ) payable to the Cost Auditor is required to
The Auditors' Report for the financial BE EBAL W the wiermbei: of: the
year 2024 does not contain any Company.
qualifications, reservations or adverse
remarks or disclaimers, The Auditors™ SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
Report is enclosed with the financial
statemenls in 'his chnr!. TI“: Siaiuimr}. As 1‘{:(:|Lli1"4.."d under Section 204 of the l"-l.."'. -"I!'H.t
Auditors were present at the last AGM. Rulh.snmdc there 1|Eldul.‘. the Blﬁ!-'lrd has ﬂppqtn_m
M/s. Agarwal S, Associates, Practicing
e ’ - i Company Secretaries as secretarial auditor of
REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS the Company of the Company (o conduct the
: ; & z audit of the secretanal records for the financial
During the year, under section 143(12) of year ending March 31, 2024.
the Act, neither the Internal Auditors, Statutory )
Auditors nor Secretarial Auditors have reported The Secretarial Audit report for the financial
to the Audie Mohit P:lpt‘r Mills Limited 34, vear March 35’ 2024, in Form No. MR-3 is
Committee or the Board of the Company any annexed as Annexure 3 to this Annual Report,
\ J
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The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the
Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, and Guidelines and
that there were no deviations or noncomplianee,

The Secretarial Audit report does not contain
any qualification, reservahion, or adverse rermark

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Management recognises that people are a
kev resource and endeavours to enable its
emplovees to deliver on business requirements
while meeting their personal and professional
aspirations. The Human resources plays a
pivotal role in enabling smooth implementation
of key strategic decisions. The Management
aims at providing an environment where
continuons learning takes place to meet the
changing demands and priorities of the business
including emerging businesses. The
Management believes in inclusivity and is
committed to and has always maintained gender
diversity & equality in the organization. The
employee engagement programmes are
organized on the objective of inclusiveness, The
Management encourages participation of
employees in social activities and provides
healthy  work  enviromment  inclading  flexi-
timing wherein employees ean maintain work
life halance.

Industrial relations - Healthy, cordial, and
harmoniows industrial relations  are  being
maintained at all imes and all levels by vour
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A separate report on corporate
governance, along with a certificate from
the Practicing Company Secretary
regarding the compliance of conditions of
corporate governance norms as stipulated
under SEBI Listing Regulations i3
annexed as Annexure- 4 and forms part

of the Annual Report.

All Board members and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed in
writing their compliance with and
adherence to the code of conduct adopted
by the Company for FY24.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis on
matters related to the business
performance as stipulated in the SEBI
Listing Regulations is given as a separate
section in the Annual Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ARSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS/OUTGO

The particulars as preseribed under Sub-section
(3Wm) of Section 134 of the Act read with the
Companies { Accounts) Rules, 2004 are enclosed
as Annexure-Ato the Board™s Report.

PARTICULARSOFEMPLOYEES

The information reguired pursuant to Section
197 read with Rule 3(1) of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2004 in respect of employees
of the Company 15 attached to the Directors™
Repoit at Annesure 1

Further, & statement showing the names and
other particulars of emplovees drawing
remunerabion inexcess of the hmiis as set out in
the Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the aforesaid rules, is
maintained and forms part of this report.
However, in terms of first proviso to Section
136(1} of the Act. the Annual Report and
Accounts are being sent to the members and
others entitled thereto, excluding the aforesaid
information. Nene of the employees listed in the

,‘
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said information is related to any Director of the
Company. The aforesaid information is
available for inspection by the members, Any
member interested in obtaining a copy thereof,
may  write o the Company Secretary  af
investorsmohitpaperigmail.com or send letter
al Company  Scerctary, Mohit Paper Mills
Limited, 15A713, Upper Ground floor, East
Patel Nagar, New Dielhi -1 10008,

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKFLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL), ACT 2013

Your Company has in place a Prevention
of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with
the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace
( Prevention. Prohibition & Redressal)
Act, 2013, Internal Complaints
Committee has been set up as required
under the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention. Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013, inter-alia, to redress
complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. All emplovees (permanent,
contractual, temporary. trainees) are
covered under this policy. The Company
has not received any sexual harassment
complaints during the year 2023-24 and
hence no complaint is outstanding as on
March 31,2024,

OTHER DISCLOSURES

(1) SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL
ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
ORCOURTS

Mo sigmificant or material orders were passed
during the yvear under review by the Resulators
or Courls or Tribunals which impact the going
concern status and Company™s operations in
future,

{ii) TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND({IEPF)

No amount/ shares are underlying for
transferring to IEPE.

(i) DEPOSITS

During the vear, the Company has not accepled
any deposits from the public falling within the
purview of Section 73 of the Act, read with the
(Companies Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,

2005 and as such, no amount on account of

principal or interest related thersto  was
outstanding as on date of the Balance Sheet e
March 31,2024,

(iv) COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL
STANDARD ON BOARD AND GENERAL
MEETINGS

During the pernod under review, the Company
has complicd with the applicable Sccrctarial
Standards as issued by the Institute of Company
Seeretancs of India,

(v} DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR
ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE,
ZN6DURINGTHE YEAR

The Company has neither made any application
nor any proceedings is pending under
Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 during
the financial year 2023-24.

(vi) DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN
THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE
ATTHE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT
AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIALINSTITUTIONS

There are no specific disclosures
required under details of difference
between amount of the valuation done
at the time of one-time settlement and
the valuation done while taking loan

~
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from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof.

Further, no application was filed under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 during the vear.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or
reporting is required in respect of the
tollowing items as there were no
transactions on these ltems during the
year under review: Mohit Paper Mills
Limited 36

* lssue of equity shares with
differential rights as to dividend,
voting or otherwise.

+ Issue of shares (including sweat
equity shares) to employees of the
Company under any scheme.

+  Neither Managing Director nor the
Whole-time Directors of the
Company receive any remuneration
or commission from any of its
subsidiaries.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this "Directors Report" &
"Management Discussion and Analysis"
describing the Company”s objectives,
projections, estimates, expeclations or
predictions may be forward looking statements
within the meaning of applicable securities laws
and regulations. Actual results could differ
materially from those expressed or implied.
Important factors that could make a difference to
the Company™s operations including raw
material! fuel availability and its prices, cyelical
detmand and pricing in the Company™s principal
markets, changes in the Gowvernment
regulations, tax regimes, economic

developments within India and the Countries in
which the Company conducts business and other
ancillary factors,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors lake this opporlunity (o express
their deep sense of gratitude to the Central
Government, State Government, Stock
Exchanges and its members, Banks, Financial
Institutions, Shareholders, Lenders,
Depositories, Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents and Business Associates  for their
continued support,

Your directors would also like to record it
appreciation for the support and cooperation
your Company has been receiving [rom its
chents and evervone associated with  the
Company.

Your direelors place on record their sincerne
appreciation to the employees at all levels for
their hard work, dedication and commitment.
The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the
emplovees have enabled the Company to remain
as an industry leader.

And to you, our shareholders, we are deeply
grateful for the confidence and faith that you
have always reposed in us. We look forward to
continued support of all these partners in future.

Forand on behalfof the Board
Sd/-

i Sandeep Jain)

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 0438048

Diate: August 14, 2024

Place: New Delhi

,‘

THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024

(33)



(H“lll" MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED

( ™
ANNEXURE (A)

Particulars under section 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies Aet, 2013
a. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a.  Energy Conservation measures taken:

i. The Company is self-sufficient in terms of power, Co-generation power plant is running
zood,

ii. Training sessions of Shop Floor Workmen had been organized periodically.

iii. The Company has revamped and realigned the existing facilities o oplimize power
consumption in various power consuming facilities.

iv. The Bio Digester Plant is running satisfactorily which is utilising the baggaes and waste of
Paper (Sludge) for making gas which is used as fuel for Boiler for reducing the cost of fuel
and is used as a tool for making the environment clean and pollution free,

v, The Company™s management decided to install 130 TDS Boiler and Evaporator ("BE") for
increasing in the production and power. BE will help to enhance the production and
reached upto ultimate production capacity.

b. Additional Investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of
energy consumption;

i. Better power factor management across the unit,

ii. [dentifying and eliminating non-productive energy consumption areas,

c. Impact of the measures at (a) and (h) for reduction of energy Consumption on the cost
of Production of goods: The above efforts shall help in restoring efficiency in
conservation of energy. No separate costing had been done to measure energy saved, if
any, by the company.

d. Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production: As per
Form "A" enclosed.

b. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Efforts made in technology absorption, as per "B" enclosed.

. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars of Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo during the vear under review are lurnished

hereunder:
Foreign Exchange Earning Rs. 18133 Lakhs
Foreign Exchange Outgo Rs. 1125.00 Lakhs

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/-

(Sandeep Jain)

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: (0458048

Date: August 14, 2024

Place: New Delhi
- .
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Dizclosure of particalars with respeet to conservation of enerpy: POWER & FUEL
CONSUMPTION

[l. ELECTRICITY CLURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
31032024 31.03.2023

IPURCHASED:

LNITS 439332 BOR2TTH

TOTAL AMOUNT (Re) 54464265 145R529

EATEAINIT 46 0

THROLUGH STEAM TURBINE/GENERATOR

la, UNITS PRODUCED

Lnir Produced Dhahd 542 D048 1747
Cost/Unis MIL I
LMITS PER Lars OF FUEL (ML PN

[s. UNITS SOLD

Linit Sold SR ETE (743110
Fate/Lnits 12 - 18-

e, WET UNITS CONSUMED POR PRODUCTION

| Jmits Ca3051 24 LT
Cost/Units MIL I
LUNITS PER Lirz OF FUEL ML I

2. CHAR COAL:

QT (MT) 03 Bk 54250
FOTAL COST (Rs,) S0S07 65 1420769, 10
AVERAGE RATE 91533 1a%63.73

3. TEL RAHIT BHUSSI:

0Ty (MT) HFTTT.00 Y3440
TOTAL COST (Rs.) 189317444 93 6443497 37
AVERAGE RATE 15126 BT 42

4. LUBRICANT:

OTY (LTR) 546,010 1601600
FOTAL COST (Rs,) 1588957, 70 D07 7068, 3}
AVERAGE RATE 18504 18594

5. BAGASSE

. J
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Ty (W1 ML DAT62.275
TOTAL COST (Rs.) IMNIL LR TI5ET]
INWERAGE RATE LIL URT. 33
. COAL:
OTY (MT) 666300 TR
TOTAL COST (Rs) [24638A496.29 21653262816
AVERAGE RATE 671994 722491
CONSUMPTIONTONES OF PRODUCTION;
IPRODUCT CURRENT YEAR [CURRENT YEAR
11.03.2024 31.03.2023
WP PAPER/ W/P PAPER/
IPOSTER PAPER [POSTER PAPER
PRODUCTION (MT) e 92,00 27125472
ELECTRICITY (UNITS/MT) | (0 1047
For and on hehalf of the Board
Sd/-
(Sandeep Jain)
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00455048
Date: August 14, 2024
Place: Mew Delhi
\. .
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FORM -B

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESFECT WITH TO TECHNOLOGY ABRSORFPTION
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

1. Hesearchd& Development (R & Dy

e Company is a manufacturing erganization and 15 not engaged in any major Research & Development
petivity, However, continuous efforts are made to improve the quality and efficiency and to develop new
product/product mix.

1. Technology, Absorption, Adoption and Innoevation:

The latest technology has been adopled in various sections for improving prodection and production quality
and suitable efforts has been taken by the engineers to reduce the consumption of chemicals and energy which
has helped in price and quality maintenance.

3. Impaorted Technology: NIL

FORM -
DSCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF IMPORTS/EXFORTS AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING
AND OUTGO
1. Imports
Iinported taw materals during the vear by the company, detailed as per mentioned in notes of Nnancial
staternents of the Company.

2, Exports

The Company do aot dealt with exponts. Details are provided under the Notes of Accounts of the Financials of
the Company for' the financial venr ended as on March 31, 2024,

For and on behalf of the Board
Sdi-

{Sandeep Jain)

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: (458048

Date: August 14, 2024

Place: New Delhi

. J
THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 (37)




(H“lll"' MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED

’

.

,‘

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

"The strength of the team is each individual member. The strength of each member is the team.”
~Phil Jackson

Forward Looking Overview Statement

The report contains forward-looking statements, identified by words like plans™, expecis”, will”,
wanticipates™, believes”, Lintends"”, ,projects”, .estimates™ and so on. All statements that address
expectations or projections about the future, but not limited to the Company™s strategy tor growth,
product development, market position, expenditures and financial results, are forward looking
statements. Since these are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events, the
Company cannot guarantee that these are accurate or will be realised. The Company™s actual results,
performance or achievements could thus differ from those projected in any forward-looking
statement. The Company assumes no responsibility 1o publicly amend, modify or revise any such
statement based on subsequent developments, information, or events. The Company disclaims any
obligation to update these forward-looking statements, except as may be required by law,

Overview

In the ever-evolving landscape of corporate governance, the Management's role is paramount in
driving performance and ensuring that the corporation contributes positively to society. The
Management 15 tasked with maintaining operational efficiency, making strategic decisions, and
upholding principles of faimess and transparency. By adhering to regulatory frameworks and ethical
standards, Management ensures that the company not only meets its business objectives but also
supports the well-being of all stakeholders involved. Effective management is erucial for cultivating a
work environment that is conducive to sustainable growth and aligns with the collective interests of
stakeholders, thus reinforcing the foundation of corporate governance.

Mohit Paper Mills Limited is 2 prominent manufacturer in the Indian paper industry, specializing in a
diverse range of writing. printing paper, and tissue paper. Our operations are agro-based, utilizing
agricultural by-products such as bagasse and other readily available agricultural waste to produce
high-quality paper. This approach underscores our commitment to sustainability and efficient
FESOUrce s,

Owr facility 15 equipped with advanced technology, including a Chemical Recovery Plant that
recovers caustic soda and produces soda ash, a valuable by-product. We also prioritize environmental
responsibility with our Effluent Treatment Plant, which ensures effective pollution control and water
management. Additionally, our captive power plant meets the entire energy needs of the factory,
reinforcing cur dedication to sustainable and self-reliant operations.

The objective of this report is to provide a comprehensive overview of Mohit Paper Mills Limited's
management perspective on the external environment and the paper industry, with a particular focus
on our operations in writing, printing, and tissue paper. This report outlines our strategic direction,
operational and financial performance. and material developments in human resources and industrial
relations. Additionally, it addresses risks and opportunities, as well as the effectiveness of our internal
conirol systems during FY 2023-24,
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This report should be read in conjunction with the Company's financial statements, accompanying
schedules. and notes, as well as other information presented in the Annual Accounts for FY 2023-24,
Qur financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind
AS"), complying with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, and the regulations
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") from time to time..

INDUSTRYSTRUCTUREANDDEVELOPMENTS
Macro economic conditions

The global economy has shown remarkable resilience, with growth remaining steady as inflation
approaches target levels. The path to recovery has been complex, marked by initial supply chain
disruptions following the pandemic, a Russian-initiated war on Ukraine which led to a global energy
and food crigis, and a significant rige in inflation.

Tightened monetary policies led to higher policy and interest rates, hampering new investiments,

Despite many gloomy predictions, the world managed to avert a recession. The banking system
demonstrated considerable resilience, and major emerging market economies avoided abrupt
disruptions. Furthermore, although the surge in inflation led to a significant cost-of-living crisis, it did
not escalate into uncontrolled wage-price spirals. Remarkably, just as global inflation surged, it has
also begun to recede almost as rapidly,

On a year-over-year basis, global growth hit its lowest point at the end of 2022, reaching 2.3 percent,
shortly after median headling inflation peaked at 9.4 percent. The IMF forecast global real GDP
growth of 3.2%; for 2024 and 20235 - the same rate as in 2023 The 2024 forecast was revised upward by
0.1 pereentage point from the previous World Economic Outlook™s estimate in January, 2024 largely
due to asignificant upward revision in the U.S. outlook.

Asia is expected to emerge as a pioneer in global growth in 2024-25, with its economy projected Lo
represent 49% of the world's GDP and grow at a rate of 4.5%, remaining the largest contributor to
global economic expansion.

Despite high inflation and monetary tightening, the global economy remains robust, with growth
anticipated to remain steady over the next two years.,

Indian Economy
Despite global slowdowns and steady growth, India's economic growth rate remains robust compared
to many peer cconomies. This strength is driven by strong domestic consumption and a lower reliance

on global demand,

India's economy has performed well and stronger than-expected data in 2023 has made the rating
agency to raise the 2024 growth estimate to 6. 8% from 6. 1%.

. J
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India 15 likely to remain the fastest-growing among G-20 economies. The Indian economy soared
ahead in the December quarter (the third quarter of FY24) with a surprise growth of 8.4%, belving
fears of tempering as the manufacturing, electricity and construction sectors put up a robust show,

The statistics ministry also raised its GDP growth estimate for FY 24 to 7.6% in its second revised
estimate, up from 7.3% in its first advance forecast. The Reserve Bank of India™s GDP growth
estimate for FY 24 is 7%, while the International Monetary Fund's forecasts 6.7%.

Capital spending by the government and strong manufacturing activity have meaningfully
contributed to the robust growth outcomes in 2023,

Additionally, rising capacity utilization, robust credit growth and upbeat business sentiment point o
animproving outlook for private investment.

According to RBL the total cost of private corporate projects sanctioned by major banks and financial
institutions was up 23% annually during the April-December period as compared with the same
period a year carlier, suggesting that the private capital expenditure eyele is gaining steam,

It is expected that India's urban consumption demand shall remain resilient, based on robust goods and
services tax collections, rising aulo sales, consumer optimism and double-digit eredit growth, while
expanding manufacturing and services PMIs are expected to add to economic momentum,

The Indian economy, which expanded at a four month high in January, continued to strengthen in
February, secing accelerations in both manufacturing and services sectors during the month, While
services sector growth climbed to a seven-month high in February, manufacturing sector growth
reached a five-month high, firming India's position as one of the fastest-growing major economies,
India's headline inflation also eased in January to 5.1% from 5.7% in the preceding month, Core
inflation moderated to 3.5% from 3.8%. (Sources : Rating agency Moody™'s)

CGlobal Paper Indusiry Overview

Paper Industry is a significant plaver in the world market. The global pulp and paper market 15
estimated at USD 36560 billion in 2023 and 15 projected to grow to USD 434,36 billion by 2031, with
a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 2.35% from 2024 to 2031, The market has been
experiencing growth in recent years, driven by factors such as population expansion, urbanization,
and increasing consumer demand for paper-based products. Additionally, the shift towards
sustainable and eco-friendly packaging solutions is expected to further boost demand in the coming
YOGars.

To stay competitive, players in the pulp and paper industry are focusing on developing advanced
technologies and processes to enhance efficiency, reduce production costs, and improve product
quality. The adoption of sustainable practices is also a priority Lo mitigate environmental impact and
meet the growing demand for eco-friendly products,

Despite these advancements, the industry faces challenges, including the rise of digital media, which
has led to a decline in paper product demand. Moreowver, fluctuating availability and rising prices of
raw materials. such as wood pulp and chemicals. have impacted the sector's viability.
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PRODUCT WISE INSIGHT
Printing and Writing Paper

Printing and writing paper, which represents 13% of global pulp and paper capacity, has faced a
negative compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of -1.68% since 2020, Although there was a
temporary increase in capacity production in 2022 due to a brief economic recovery and the easing of
COVID-19 restrictions, this segment has been in decline since at least 2013,

However, in contrast to the global trend, some Asian couniries, including China and India, are
experiencing notable growth in printing and writing paper capacity. This growth is largely driven by a
robust education sector and the expanding e-commerce industry in these regions,

Tissue and Towel

Despite accounting for only about 9% of global pulp and paper capacity, the tissue and towel sector is
currently one of the fastest growing in the mdustry. Smee 2020, it has experienced an impressive
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 4.25%. China saw a capacity growlh of approximately 3
million tons in the first hall'of 2023 compared (o the same period in 2022, Similarly, Turkey witnessed
an increase of nearly 153 thousand tons, while Mexico recorded a rise of around 149 thousand tons,
These three nations stood out as the top performers in terms of capacity growth in 2023 compared to
the previous year among the top ten producing countries.

Indian Paper Industry Overview

The pulp and paper market in India was valued at USD 14.75 billion in 2023 and is projected to reach
USD 35.57 billion by 2030, growing at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 13.4% from 2023
to 2030, The market is expected to peak at USD 19.1 billion by 2033, Among the various segments
within the paper industry, the packaging sector has performed particularly well, driven by applications
in the pharmaceutical and FMCG sectors and boosted by e-commerce growth.

However, the Indian paper industry has faced challenges, The volume growth for FY 2023-24 is
anticipated to decline to a range of 2-3%. compared to approximately 7% in FY 2022-23,
Additionally, industry revenues are projected to decrease by about 7-1004 in FY 2023-24, reflecting a
drop in realizations. The packaging paper segment, which accounts for over 60% of total demand, has
experienced reduced realizations sinee the second quarter of FY 2023 dug to softened imput prices and
increased competition. This trend is expected to continue info FY 2023-24,

Domestic Market

India, a significant plaver in the global paper indusiry, ranks as the fifih-largest producer worldwide
with an annual production capacity of 26 million tonnes. The Indian paper sector is projected to grow
at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 6%, anticipated to reach 27 million tomnes by the fiscal
year 2023-24. The domestic market is diverse, comprising several key segments. The packaging
sector, which accounts for 40% ol total paper consumption, is poised for robust growth with a CAGR
forecasted between 6-8%. In contrast, printing and writing paper, making up 35% of consumption, is

. J
THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 (41)




(H“lll"' MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED
( ™

expected to see moderate growth. Newspring, representing 10% of the market, 15 expenencing a
decline, while specialty papers, anticipated to expand at a CAGR of 11-13%, are emerging as a
prominent growth area,

The Indian paper industry holds significant potential for expansion, driven by the relatively low per
capita paper consumption compared to global standards. Despite housing approximately 15% of the
world's population, India consumes only about 5% of the global paper output. This disparity
highlights the untapped opportunities within the market. Key drivers of growth include a strong
emphasis on education and literacy, the expansion of organized retail, and increasing demand for
high-quality paper. Additionally, there is sustained demand for quality packaging in various sectors
such as fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG), pharmaceuticals, textiles, organized retail, and the
rapidly growing e-commerce sector, With these factors at play, the future of the Indian paper industry
appears promising, particularly in segments like packaging and specialty papers,

SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE:

The Company is a single product company and hence segment-wise or product-wise performance is
not provided.

Major Areas of Concern

Several issues are of significant concern within the domestic market. High raw material costs,
including those for waste paper and imported pulp, pose a challenge to profitability, The
containerboard sector faces issues such as surplus capacity and fluctuating raw materdal prices,
impacting operational efficiency, Rising freight rates are contributing to increased production costs,
while a surge in paper imports threatens domestic production. Addressing these concerns is crucial for
maintaining market stability and competitiveness.

Opportunities and Threats

Anti-Plastic Movement: Rising concerns about plastic pollution are driving demand for
biodegradable paper alternatives, supported by povernment and public initiatives promoting eco-
friendly paper products.

Rise of Online Shopping: Increased online sales are fueling the need for efficient packaging
solutions, leading to higher demand for raw materials and corrugated boxes.

Food Packaging: Growing demand for grease-resistant packaging in the food industry is
boosting the use of paper-based solutions for various food products and restaurant packaging.

Threats

Digitalization: The shifl o electronic formats 18 reducing the demand for traditional print
products. E-books, online newspapers, and digital magazines are replacing printed maierials,
while electronic transactions are diminishing the need for physical currency and cheques. Digital
advertising and social media are also contributing to declining print volumes for magazines,
catalogs, and books.

Manufacturing Costs: The paper industry is capital-intensive, requiring substantial investments
in machinery, raw materials, infrastructure, and labor. Balancing manufacturing costs with
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quality, sustainability, and efficiency 15 challenging. Although investing in new technologies can
be costly initially, it often leads to long-term savings and sustamnability benefits. The industry
faces pressure to maintain competitive pricing while addressing environmental and social
concemns. To overcome these challenges, focusing on efficiency, waste reduction, and sustainable
practices is essential.

Environmental Impaet

The paper industry faces significant scrutiny due to its environmental footprint. To support a
sustainable future, the industry should:

1. Reduce Global Paper Consumption: Promote digital alternatives and lower paper usage,
ensuring fair access to paper for essential needs.

2. Maximize Recyeled Paper Use: Increase the proportion of recyeled content in paper products to
reduce reliance on virgin fiber and minimize waste,

3. Uphold Social Responsibility: Ensure fair labor practices, support local communities, and
contribute positively to societal well-being throughout the supply chain,

4. Source Fiber Responsibly: Obtain raw materials from sustainable sources, avoid deforestation,
and support certified sustainable forestry practices.

5. Lower Greenhouse Gas Emissions: Implement energy-efficient technologies, cleaner energy
sources, and improved production processes to reduce carbon emissions.

6. Maintain Clean Production Practices: Invest in advanced technologies to address water and air
pollution and minimize the release of harmful substances.

7. Promote Transparency and Integrity: Foster openness aboul environmental impacts,
production processes, and supply chain practices to build trust with consumers and stakeholders.

Additional Considerations

Water Management: Implement efficient water wse and recycling practices o minimize
consumption and pollution.

Waste Reduction: Develop sirategies Lo reduce waste and enhance recycling efforts throughout
the production process and product hfeeyele.

Biodiversity Protection: Support conservation efforts and avoid sourcing from aveas that
threaten wildlife habitats and biodiversity.

Innovation and Research: Invest in research and development to create more sustainable
materials and processes, such as biodegradable alternatives and closed-loop production systems.
Consumer Education: Raise awareness aboul the environmental impact of paper products and
promote respensible consumption practices,

The Indian paper industry presents both opportunities and threats. Strengths include a growing
domestic market, supportive government initiatives, urbanization, and a skilled workforce,
Conversely, weaknesses encompass high raw material cosis, low paper recovery rates, and stringent
environmental regulations, Navigating these factors requires a balanced approach to capitalize on
opportunities while mitigating potential threats.

By addressing these opportunities, threats, and environmental considerations, the paper industry can
enhance its sustainability and contribute to a more eco-friendly future.
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Future Qutlook

The future of the paper industry in India will be shaped by various factors, including market demand,
regulatory policies, and technological advancements. Key trends include a growing domestic demand
driven by inereased literacy and the expansion of the middle ¢lass. India has the potential fo emerge as
a significant player in the global market, supported by government policies that favor sustainability
and innovation.

Sustainability Initiatives

The company is committed to advancing sustainability through several key initiatives. Efforts to
reduce resource consumption include optimizing water and energy usage via advanced technologies.
Recveling initiatives are emphasized, with a focus on designing products that are recyelable. The
company is also exploring alternative fibers and sustainable sourcing to diversify raw material
sources, Investing in energy optimization, including the adoption of energy-cfficient and renewable
technologies, is a priority. Collaboration with research institutions and industry peers, along with
ongoing market research and product development, ensures that the company remains at the forelront
of consumer trends and innovation,

Risks and Concerns

Your Company has classified the Four types of major risks :
1. Repulatory Risk
2, Strategic Risk
3, Operational Risk
4, Market Risk

Several risks and concerns need to be addressed 1o ensure long-lerm success, The availability, quality,
and cost of raw materials are critical factors that require diversification and exploration of alternative
fibers. Technological advancements must be embraced through investments in automation and
process optimization. Additionally, environmental concerns necessitate the adoption of sustainable
practices and technologies to mitigate potential impacts. Your company is continuously taking steps
through policy and advecacy to mitigate the risks associated.

Being present in a competitive and regulated environment, your company is exposed to various
strategic and operational risks such as financial, regulatory, compliances, information technology and
cyber security, legal and market risk, among others. Our focussed risk management approach seeks to
minimise the adverse impact of these risks on our business and enables us to leverage market
opportenities

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of
people emploved.

Your Company recognizes that employees are vital stakeholders in the growth of the organization,
The company has cultivated a skilled and motivated workforce through leadership programs and
continuous training initiatives, As of March 31, 2024, the company employs 244 permanent
individuals, maintaining positive indusirial relations and fostering a collaborative, growth-oriented
work environment.
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Outlook

The company is optimistic about the coming times. Necessary capital expenditure required to ramp up
production to meet the expected demand has been made, Human resource required to cope with the
mereased volumes is continuously being put in place. The company 15 continually increasing the
capacity utilization ratios of the machines on a month on month basis and working with partners to
identify new value added products for the market.

Internal Control System and Their Accuracy

The Company has established a robust internal control framework tailored to its size and complexity.,
An independent internal audit function, conducted by an external Chartered Accountant firm,
provides comprehensive coverage of operations. This framework ensures that internal controls are
effective and aligned with best practices, safeguarding the company™s assets and ensuring the
integrity of financial reporting,

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance

During FY 2023-2024, the Company has turnover (Net) of Rs. 18562.61/- lakhs as against previous
figure of Rs. 22.216.50/- lakhs, the Company recorded decrease in sale (16.43%) (approx) due to
reduce inthe price of the paper in national market.

The Company has recorded 27% (approx.) downfall in market price of paper in the year 2023-2024.
Further, during the financial year 2023-2024, other income of the Company has been increased to Rs,
640,056 lakhs as against previous yvear income of Rs, 411.03 lakhs (i.e. increase by around 533.72%
during the financial year 2023-2024., However, due to reduction in price of paper as mentioned above,
total ineome has shown a downfall during the financial year 2023-2024, The total income during
financial year 2023-2024 is at Rs. 19,202 66/- and previous year income of Rs. 22,627.53/- lakhs.
During the year under review PBDFET (Profit before Depreciation, Finance, Exceptional ltem and
Tax) was Rs, 1875.92/- (In lakhs) as compared 1o previous yvear figure of Rs, 1610007/~ (In lakhs),
posting a increase by MohitPaper MillsLimited

16.51% (approx) and PBFET (Profit before Finance, Exceptional ltem and Tax) was Rs. 128550/~ (In
lakhs) as compared to previous vear figure of Rs, 1053.49/- (In lakhs), posting a increase by 22.02%
{approx) and PBET {Profit before Exceptional Item and Tax) was Rs. 909.96/- (In lakhs) as compared
to previous year figure of Rs. 705,49/ (In lakhs), posting a increase by 28.98% (approx).

Further under review PBT (Profit before Tax) was Rs. 909.96 lakhs as compared to previous year
figure of R, 705,49 lakhs, posting & increase by 28.98% (approx) in PBT. Net profit and PAT (Profit
after Tax) was Rs. 645.35 lakhs as compared to previous year figure of Rs. 49157 lakhs reporting an
increase of 31.28% (approx) in net profit as compared to previous year. Net profit and PATOCIH (Profit
afier Tax and Other Comprehensive Income) was Rs, 643,35 lakhs as compared (o previous year
figure of Rs.491.537 lakhs reporting a increase of 31.28% (approx) in net profit as compared to
previous year. Eaming Per Share was during the year Rs. 4.61/- (Each Equity Share) as compared to
previous year figure of Rs. 3.51/- (Each Equity Share) reporting a increase of 3 1L.28%, (approx) in EPS
as compared to previous year.
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" AsonMarch 31, 2024, net worth of vour Company was 4.452.36 lakhs as compared to Rs. 3A07.00 )
lakhs for the previous financial year,

+
Key Ratios
. [ | | |
Ratiox {Mumerator Erenarminator FY FY | Moapme Reason for Change
{1023-24 [2qa2-p3 [Change
Currend Ratio (i .1’_'||.m:rtl Assels Carreni Laahilitaes ?1.13 1 .14 l;l'IZI.IIlI':- ll'.lm"n._‘-aw as o result of ingresse ing
1imes | Short-Tenm Debi during the year
I
Dt Equity Total Deba Sharchelder's Equiry  [1.B1 L7 (e Inerease due o addition loan
Raabia (s bomsis b ablained for recovery plant
I |
Dhebe servics .:L:ﬂTIHIH,::- for debi Db servies = l2.1 1219 }{U.Um [ Drevrense g o resull of inenesse i
CoVErage Thtio serviee = Mt profii Interest & Lease | interest & principal repayments
41 1imnes] after rf.x\:-s + Moncash Pawinents + Principal during the year
ApErnRng exp, 4 Repryments
Finanee Cosl 3
Retum on MNel Mt Profits after e Avwraps 1582 [ 1350 1.3 Immprove a8 & result of profi
Worth [“aage) Preference Ddvidend Shareholder's Equity varndng during the veam
Inventory -ﬁuoa[ of gods sobd Avveragne Inveniony -'4."."‘5 ‘H an E{-ﬂ-.l]"."l- .I’]ur nease e o holding of exem
Turnover Limn IMEMEDTY & SO Pars Lo Pyl s
times| year
Dretbesrs Turnover | Wit credit sales = Ciroas [ Averape Trade |8.86 e (653 Dhecresse due o decrease in sales
{im tanes) credit sales - sales return |Receavable | a5 coarparne bis last year
Trade payables {Mes credic purchases Averape Trade .!ll-“ T17.98 ?{5.5’-‘} { Rationalization of radke payables
Turnover (in Ciros credin purclsases | Pavables | for Wetter purchase efficiency
1} = |3lu.|'l."|l.i!:u: TEluain
Mt capital Mt subes = Total sales - Wirkang capital = 12198 128.65 1I_F.h.f'.h'|‘:- | Devtine in sakes and corrent satio
wver {in fanes i sales retun Current assels - Current)
liabilities
Med Profit [Nt Profi Mt sales = Total sales -| 148 |21 127 [improvement in profil caming as
Margin {veagel sales redum COHTEIATS b3 Previgas vear
Retum an | Earninps before ifenest |[Capitad Emploved = 1977 | 1150 [(L.73) | Decreas: due 1o additional kan
capital and taxis Tanpable Met Warth tdaken as compared to last year.
miplayaed + Takal Dkt +
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Retum on Met relum on invesiment |Cost of imvestment INiA ST EN A
[nvesimment
| |
For and un behalf of the Board
Sd/-
(Sandeep Jain)
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00458048

Date: August 14, 2024
Place: New Delhi
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AMNMEXLRE 1
IMSCLOSURE PURSUANT TO HULE 3 (1) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014
E - P — e T
1 The ratio of the remuneration of each Director 1o Nt Ratio
the median remuneration of the emplovees of the sandeep Jain =71
Company for the financial year 2024 Prapeep Rajput 207
Koumar
Mohit Jain 19.76
2 The perceniage increase in remuneration of each Name B Inereased
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chiet Executive Sandecp Jain 0
Officer, Company Sccretary or Manager, if any, in Pradeep Rajput 237
the financial vear K nmar
Maohit Jain 7297
CFO 1103
(& 47.04
3 The percemtage increase in the median | 34.61%
remuneration of emplovees in the financial year
4 The number of permaneni employees on the rolls | 244
of Company
5 Average percentile increase already made in the | The average percentile increase made in the
salanes of employees other than the managernal | salanes of employees other than the |1:|a|1s|1;:1."r.|n]
personnel in the last financial year and s | personnel in the last financial year is R ™
comparison with the percentile increase in the | whereas there was S331 e change in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof | remuneration of managerial personnel
amd point owt 1f there ane any  exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial
TErUneTation
] Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the | Yes, it is confirmed
remuneration policy of the Company
For and on behalf of the Board of Drectors
Mohit Paper Mills Limited
Sai-
Sandeep Jain
Managing Director cum Chairman
NN (55048
Dated: 14 Augast, 2024
Place: New Delhi
v
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ANMNEXURE?2
Annual CSR Compliance Report for the Financial Year 2024
{Fursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 20013 & Rules made there undery

1. Briefoutline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company has been one of the foremost proponents of inclusive growth and has been undertaking
projects for overall development and welfare of the society through its CSR initiatives in areas
pertaining to promoting preventive education, livelthood intervention, rmral development,
environmental sustainability and conservation of natural resources, healthcare ete. The Company has
framed a CSR Policy as required under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made
there under. The CSE Policy has been posted on the website of the Company.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

St [Name ot the Member]  Devgnaton | S | Noor | No.or
No. et | v eings
. Sandeep Jain Executive Directar Chairman 2 2
firs. Anju lain Mon-Executive Director Member 2 2
pir. Sourabh Mathur  [Non-Executive- Member 2 2
independent Director

As the Company does not have any CSR liabilities more than Bz 50 Lakhs in any of the preceding
financial years, therefore in line with the provizions of Compames Aet, 2013, the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on March 30, 2024 has diszolved the CST Committee and the duties
of the CEE. Committes are being discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR. Policy and CSR projects approved by the
Board are dizelozed on the webszite of the Company: www mohitpaperin

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR. projects
carried out in pursuance of sub mle (3) of mule &, if applicable. Not Applicable.

(=]

Caleculation of CSE. obligation:
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a )
Particulars Amount (Rs
in lakhsh
Awerage Met Profit of the Company as per sub section {3) of section 135 436,17
2% of Average net profit of the company as per sub section (5) of section 135 2.9
Surplus ansing out of the CSE projects or programs o activities of the previous  Mil
financial years
Amount required to he set off for the financial vear, if any -
Total CSE oblipation for the fnancial year 28]
G, Amount spent on CSE obligation:
Particulirs Amount (Hs. in
lakfig)

C5R obligation o spent R

Ammcant spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Propect amd other than crore 3.00

Ongroing Propects, 1f any)

Amount spend in Administrative Owverbeads -

Aanount spent on Impact Assessient, if applicable M

Total amount spent Tor the Financial Year 3.00

Total Unspent amount (s, In Lakhs)
Anount Toral Admount teansferred 1o Adnoant transfered to any fumd specified under
Spent for Lnspent CSR Account as per Schedule VI as per second proviso to sub-section (5)
tie suh-section (6) of section 135 of section 135
]"infumia! Amount Drate of transfer Name of fund Amoumnt Drate of’
e transfar
[Bs. in
Lakhs)

300 MA A MNA ™A MNA

Excess amauwnt for set off, il any:

SLMNo.  Particulars Aamount (Bs,

in lakhs)
1. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (3) of 2.0
section 135

2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year 3.00

3 Excess amount spent for the Finaneial Year 0.0%

4. Surplus ansing out of the CSR projects or programimes or activities of the (.00

previous Financial Years, if any
i Amount available for set off in succceding Financial Years 009
8 W
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Dietails of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: WIL

S Preeed Amoumt Halanye Amoymt Aot transferred Amoamt Ihi
. ing transferved to Amount in spent in i a Fund as emaming  cien
Fimanc Unspent Unspent the specified under o bespemt  cyil
il C3R CER Fusncial — Schedule VI as per in any
Vear Ageonri Agcount Year second provisoe to suceending
unider sub undler sub (1 lakhs) sub section (5) of Fingmscial
section (6) of  section (&) section 135, if any Years
section 135 ofsection Amount Date {1 lakhs)
{In lakhe) 135 {In lakhs) of
(In lakhs) trar
sfer
NiL

& Whether any capital assets have heen created or agquired through CSR amount spent in the Financial Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the compeny has failad 1o spend two per cent of the average net profitas per sub section (5} of
section 135 Not Applicable, the Company has met and exceeded the prescribed CSR requirement.

Sd- Sdi-

Samdeep Jain Auagyu Jain
Chaiman & Managing Director © Chairman- CSR Dinector
Committee

[HMN: DO458048 DN : 00459540
Place: Dielh

Dt ; 14 Aungust 224
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ANNEXURE 3

SECEETARTAT. AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2024
{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managenal Personnel)
Rules, 2014}

To,
TheMembers
Mohit Paper Mills Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the Compliance of Applicable Statutory
Provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Mohit Paper Mills Limited
{heremafter called MPML 'the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company?s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records mamntained by the Company and also the mformation
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authonzed representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31" March, 2024 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and Compliance-mechanizm in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records mamntamed by the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31” March, 2024
according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(1) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 {_ SCRA?) and the rules made
there under;

(111) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bve-laws framed there
under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (. SEBIAct?):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
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Shares and Takeovers)Regulation, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibrtion of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

{c) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Fequirements) Regulations, 2018, (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Emplovee Stock Option
Scheme and Emplovee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents}) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with client;

(g) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Fegulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securties)
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

(vi) Compliances' processes/ systems under other specific applicable laws as listed
below as informed and certified by the management of the Company are being
verified on the basis of periodic certificate submitted to the Board of Directors of the
Company:

(a)Factories Act, 1948 and Rules made there under;

(b) Air (Prevention &amp; Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

{c) Water (Prevention &amp; Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;
(d) Forest (Conservation) Act, 1980(e) Indian Boilers Act, 1923

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1) Secretarial Standards 1ssued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
{11) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015,

During the peniod under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, subject to the
following ohservation:

~
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Observation No. 1

Non- Compliance of Regulation 47(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 - The Comparny
has delaved in publishing the results in the vernacular newspaper for the results
approved by the Board of Directors intheir meeting held on 14t August, 2024.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company 1s duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent
Directors, and Women Director. The changes, if any, in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in comphiance
with the provisions of the Act.

Generally, adequate notice 13 given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clanfications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per minutes maintained by the Company for the Board' Committees, we notices that
all of decisions were approved by the respective Board/ Committee without any dissent
note.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period. there were no specific events/actions
having a major bearing on the affairs of the Company in pursuance ofthe above referred
Laws/Rules & Regulations.

For Agarwal 5. & Associates,
Compery Secretaries,
ICST Unigue Code: P2003DE0453100
Peer Review Cert No.: 39392023
CS Ankit Jain
Partner
ACS No.: 31103
CP No.: 26724
Date:12 August 2024
Place: New Delhi
UDIN:AD31103F000950043

NOTE: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which iz annexed as "Annexure A" and
forms an integral part ofthis report.

~
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"Annexure A"

To,
The Members
Mohit Paper Mills Limited

(For the period from 01s April, 2023 to 31sMarch, 2024)

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records 15 the responsibility of the management of the Company. Cur
Eesponzibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, based on our inspection of
records produced before vs for Andit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reazonable
aszurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basizs for our opition.

3. We have not verified the correetness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company and our report i3 not covering observations/comments weaknesses
already pointed out by the other Auditors.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management reprezentation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc.

3. The Compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the rezponsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test baziz and to give our opinion whether Company has proper Board-processes
and Compliance-mechanizm in place or not.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report i3 neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has condocted the affairs of the
Company.

For Agarwal 5. & Associates,
Comparny Secreiaries,

JCST Unigque Code: P2003DE049100
Pzer Review Cert. No.: 3939/2023

C& Anbot Jain
Partner
ACS No.:- 31103
CPNo.: 26724
Date: 12 Avugust 2024
Place: Mew Delhi
UDIN-AQ31103F000950043

~
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ANNEXURE 4

REPORT ON CORFORATE GOVERNANCE
(Pursuant to Chapter I'V of SEBI (LODER) Regulations, 2015)

A detailed report on Company?s corporate governance policies and practices demonstrating the
Company s accountability to its stakeholders is set out hereunder:

1. Company?s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Mechit Paper Mills Limited ("the Company™) is committed to good corporate governance and
ensuring adequate dizsclosure for its stakeholders as on time to time. The Company believes that
governance process should be such so as to ensure adequate utilization of resources to meet the
expectations of the shareholders and stakeholders. The Corporate Governance iz about
maintaining the ultimate/perfect balance between economic, social, individual, regulatory and
community goals.

The Company believes in accountability, self-rezponsibility, transparency, safety,
professionalism of the people and environment. The Corporate philosophy of the Company
envisages complete transparency and adequate disclosures with an ultimate aim of value creation
for all plaversi.e. stakeholders, the creditors, Governments and employees.

It iz an ethically driven business process that iz committed to values and conduct aimed at
enhancing an organization?s wealth generating capacity. This is ensured by taking ethical
business decizions and conducting the business with a firm commitment to values, while meeting
stakeholders? expectations. Good governance practices stem from the culture and mind set of the
organization and we are committed to meet the aspirations of all our stakeholders and believes in
adopting best corporate practices for ethical conduct of business. The essence of Corporate
Governance lies in promoting and maintaining integrity, transparency and accountability in the
management?s hizher echelons. The demands of corporate govemance require professionals to
raize their competence and capability levels to meet the expectations in managing the enterprize
and itz rezources effectively with the highest standards ofethics.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for itz employees including Directors. Apart from
the performance evaluation of regular employees, the Company has formed the code of conduet
for performance evaluation of its Executive and Non-Executive Directors which suitably
incorporates the duties of Independent Directors az laid down in the Companies Aet, 2013 ("the
Aet'). This code is available on the Company?s wehbzite. The Company has also established a
mechanism called , Whistle Blower Policy? for emplovees to report to the management instances
of unethical behavior, actual or suspected, fravd or violation of the Company?s code of conduct,
riles of laws or ethics policy.

The spirit of governance ofthe Company is derived from this philosophy and has been articulated
through the Company?s varicus policies. We are committed to meet the aspirations of all our
stakeholders. The Corporate Governance ensures transparency and accountabdlity, it also has
broader social and institutional dimensions, vnder these rules of corporate governance focus on
implementing the values of fairness, transparency, accountability and responszibility to all the

. J
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stakeholders. The Company 13 in compliance with the requirements stipulated under regulation
17 t027 read with Para C and D of Schedule V and clauzes (b) to (i) to Sub—Fegulation (2) of
Begulation 46 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclozure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations™) with regard to Corporate
Governance and applicable provisions and/or sections of the Act. The Company is committed to
achieve the best standards of Corporate Governance.

2.Board of Dlirectors

The Board of Directors of the Company provides leadership and strategic guidance, objective
judgement and exercizes control over the Company, while remaining at all times accountable to
the stakeholders. The Board has adopted a policy which sets out the approach to diversity of the
Board of Dhrectors. The Board functions either as a full Board or throngh various committees
constiteted to overzee specific areas.

The Company s Policy formulation, setting up of goals, evaluation of performance and control
functions vest with the Board. The Board also provides directions and exercises appropriate
control to ensure that the Company fulfils stakeholders? aspirations and societal expectations.

il. Compaosition and Categories of Directors
The Board of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors. AsonMarch 31, 2024, the Board of the Company comprises of 10 {Ten) Directors, out
of which 1 (One) is Managing Director, 1 (One) is Whole Time Director and & (Eight) are Non-

Executive Directors, which constitute 5 (five) Independent Directors.

The composition ofthe Board of Directors ofthe Company az on date ofthiz report:

Category Name of Director
Chairman and Managing Director Mr, Sandeep Jan

Whole Time Dvrector Mr. Pradeep Rajput Kumar
Mon-Executive MNon=- Independent Mz, Anju Jain

Director] Women Director)

Mon-Executive Non- Independent Direcior Mz, Shubhi Jain

{Women Director)

Mon-Executive Mon- Independent Director Mir, Mohit Jain
Mon-Executive Independent Director Mr. Sourabh Mathur
Mon-Exccutive Independent Director Mr. Rakesh Juyal
MNon-Exccutive Independent Ms, Sakshi Jain*

Drecton Women Director)

MNon-Executive Independent Ms. Shubhi Jain®

Dhirecton Wormen Director)

Mon-Exccutive Independent Dircctor Mir. Satya Prakash*
*Appointed wee.f. April 01, 2024

8 J
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Mr Sushil Kumar Tyagi (DIN: 06362605), Mr. Eachit Jain (DIN: 06082727) and Mr. Sanjeev Kumar
Jain (DIN: 07015412) ceazed to be the Independent Director of the Company we.f closing of
business hours of March 31, 2024 due to completion of their tenure.

iii. ATTENDANCE RECORDS AND OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS/ COMMITTEE
MEMEBEESHIPS

The detailz of directorships held and committee membership/ chairmanship held and attendance of
the directors at the Board Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting 13 given below

R Eatrgnryoi Mumber W hether t.u of Directorships MNo. of E\:r. of H!IRI'I'E]EFEL‘TIH‘H
irectorship jof Board ttended s on 31.03,24% Committes ilding in the hip in other
eetings  flast AGM nsition [ ampany listed
itended eld** pentithes
during
FY23-24
Chairp [Member  [Chair [Member |
LSO Prersan
Samndeep [Frecutived 7 Vs " = = & T TRA900 C
Jain DIN: [Managing
A5 R04R IDirecion’
proiticter
Pradeep |Bxecutive/ [7 Yes 2 2 i 3 - -
Rajpul Whole Time
Kumar  Rirecton™on-
IN- promoter
MRS 5HG
[Aiju Jain pNon- F = E . 2 : TR F
DIN- e xcoutive
Wi459540 [rometer
S T T ITes z o % 2 CAE ST —
Tain DIN: exccutive’
MaGRSA02 promoter
fMohit  [Mon- [ 3 - - - T TRl F
pain eccutive!
nD-rl:[ran;m]l; promoLers
Sushil  [Mon- 7 Vs = E _ B = C
Koumar  executiveS
Ivagi Independe
[T it
[ 32605
\. y,
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Rakesh [Non- f Tres N - i T r
Juval st
MR [ndepende
KIRaE] 62
Rachit (Nan- 7 =) = [E = = L N
Jain executive
- Independent
WUR2T2T
Ranjeey  [Nom- i es = : 3 =
loumar  executive’
avimy Independent
DIM:

E::: 18412
urabh  [Mon- 7 Yer = s o i L E
hlathur  executive’
DIN: [ndependent
354589

Excluds directorship in the Company, private limited companies, foreign compary and Section & of
the Acts compary. Pertains to memberships/'chairpersonships of the Audit Commitiee and
Sharcholder Relationship Commiitee of Indian public companies (excluding the Compary, private
limited companizs, foreign company and Section 8 of the Act's company. ) as per Regulation 26(1 (5]
of the SEBI Liziing Regulations.

The Board confirm that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in SEBI Listing
regulations and are independent of the management All the Independent Dhrectors have also
furnizhed the declaration of independence as laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Act and
Regulaticn 16(1(b) ofthe SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Independent Directors are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be
reazonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an
objective Independent judgment and without any external influence Further in terms of
notification issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. all the Independent Directors of the
Company are registered in Independent

Director?s Databank maintained by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. The Independent
Directors are required to undertake online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the
IICA. The Independent Directors, whosoever is required, shall undertake the said proficiency
test.

A formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors as provided in Act has been issued and
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the draft ofthe zame is disclozed onwebszite ofthe Company viz. waw. mchitpaperin

The number of Directorships, Chairmanships and Committee Memberships of each Directoris in
compliance with the relevant provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The
ChairmanManaging Director of the Company is an executive director and related to the
promoter/promoter group and hold the position of Managing Director in the Company.

The Non-executive Directors do not have any significant shareholding in the Company. Further,
Directors are notrelatives of each other and none of the employees of the Company are relative of
any ofthe Directors.

As mandated by the SEBI Listine Regulations, none of the Directors of the Company are
members of more than ten Board level committees or are the Chairman of more than five Board
level committees in other companies in which they are Directors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in these
regulations and are independent ofthe management.

iv.Board Meeting Details:

The Board meets at least once in every quarter to discuss and decide on inter alia business
strategies/ policies and review the financial performance of the Company and its subsidiaries and
other items on agenda. Additional meetings are held from time to time as and when necessary.

The notice of each Board Meeting iz given in writing to each director ofthe Company. The agenda
along with the relevant notes and other material information are sent to each director in advance
and in exceptional cases tabled at the meeting which includes price zensitive information.

Alzo, the Board meetings of the Company have been held with proper compliance of the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards, as applicable
thereon.

During the financial vear ended March 31, 2024, the Board met 7 (zeven) times az: against the
mimimum requirement of four Board Meetings. The details ofthe Board Meetings held during the
financial year 2023-24 are as under: -

s Date Board Strength Number of Director's

No. present
1 May 27, 2023 10 10
2 August 14, 2023 110 10
3 August 25, 2023 10 10
4 September 27, 2023 10 1q
5 November 10, 2023 10 10
& February 12, 2024 10 10
7 March 30, 2024 10 10

. J
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Note:

Pursuant to the applicable provizions of the Act and Chapter I'V read with Schedule V of the SEBI
Listing Begulations, the Board has carried cut an evaluation of its own performance, the Directors
individual as well as the valuation of the working of its Committees viz Audit Committee, Womination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committes.

v. Expertize, Key skills and Competence of the Directors

The Board comprises experienced and competent members who bring in the required skills,
competence and expertise that allow them to make effective contributions to the Board and its
committees. The Board members are committed to ensuring that the Board iz in compliance with the
highest standards of corporate governance and code of conduct.

The main skills/expertise/competencies as identified by the Board of directors az required in the
context of itz business{es) and sector(s) for it to function effectively such as leadership. management.
financial expertize, governance, strategy development and implementation ete.. The Board annually
reviewed the performance of the Board, individually directors and committee for better performance
ofthe Board.

The Board has identified the following skills/expertize/competencies fundamental for the effective
functioning ofthe Company, which are available with the Board:

Mame of | Expertise, Keyskills and Competence of the Directors
Director | Administrat | Fin | Leaders | Techm | Sal | Governa | Governm | H | Strate
ion ::1;; hip cal B nee al E | gy
Fegulator
| ¥
Sandecp | Yes Yo Yes - Ye Yes Yes Y Yes
Jain | 3 i 2
Pradeep | Y3 - Yes s - ics Yes X | Yes
Rajput =
Kumar |
Anju Jain | Yes Ye Yes - - Yes ¥es Y | Yes
Shubhi | Yes T Yes — | T = T
Jain |
Mokt Yeg Ye Yoz - e Yes - - Yes
Jain | 8 E
Sushil ey Ye | Yes Yes - Yes - - | Yes
Kumar 3
T:.-'E‘lgi'\l |
Rachil Yes - Yoz - - Yes - ¥ | Yes
Jain® , &5
Sanjeey Yes e | Yes - - Yes - Y | Yes
Kurmar § -
Jain® [
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Sourabh Yes Yes | Yes Yes es - T | Yes
Mathur =
Rakesh Yes - Yes - Tes 3 T TS
Juyal
Sakshi Tea = Tes - fea - - Tes
Jain®
Shubhi Yeu 2 Yes = Yes - - | Yes
Jain®
Satva Yes - Yes - ea . N Tea
Prakash*

*Appointed w.e L April 01, 2024

#hdr, Sushil Kumar Tyagi (DIN: 06362605, Mr, Rachet Jain (DIN; 06982727) and Mr, Sanjeev Kumar
Jain (DIN: 07018£12) ceased to be the Independent Director of the Company we. [l closing of business
hours of March 31, 2024 due to completion of their tenure.

vi.Change in Board Composition

During the financial year 2023-2024, there iz no change in the composition of the Board of
Directors of the Company. Durning the vear under review, no director(z), who resign form
directorship of the Company. Mr. Sushil Kumar Tvagi (DIN: 06362603), Mr. Rachit Jain (DIN:
06982727) and Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Jain (DIN: 07018412) ceased to be the Independent Director
of the Company w.e f closing of business hours of March 31, 2024 due to completion of their
tennre.

S
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vii. Relationship between inter-se and shared held in the Company:

As per clanse C (2), (e) of schedule V of the SEEI Listing Regulations. details of relationship

between board of directors inter-se. required details are:

~

Mame of the  [Designation [Relationship with ether director t’u. of share  [Dircctorships
IDirector eld in other listed
tities and
categary ol
Directorship
hir. Sandesp  [Monaging Husband of Mrs. Anju Jain, Father of  E7.64,900 -
lhain Direcior Me Mohit Jain and Father-in-law of
Mre. Shubhi Jain
W Anju [Director 'Wife of Mr. Sandeep Jain, Mother oft  PB0,77,589 -
Fain Mr. Mohit Jain snd Mother-in-law of
|Mrs, Shubhi Jain
AT, Miohit [hrector Son of Mr. Sandeep Jain and Mrs. [17,30.518 -
Wain lAmju  Jain and Husband of Mrs,
S b Jain
Mrs, Shubhi - |Derector Danghter-in-law of Mr, Sandeep Jain - 1045000 -
Pain b Mes. Anju Jain and wife of M
I_h-h:.lm Jain

Apart from the above, none of the directors are related to each other and none of the non-
executive director apart from the abowve holds any share / convertible instruments in the Company.

viii Mechanism of evaluation of the Board its committees and Directors

As required as per provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors has
carried oot an annual evaluation of its own performance as a Board, Board Committees and
individual Directors. The Board works with the nomination and remuneration committee to lay
down the evaluation criteria for the performance of the directors. Each Board member is
requested to evaluate the effectiveness of the Board, its committees and individual directors on
the basiz of the decizion maling company performance, company strategy, relationship to
stakeholders, information flow on the scale of one to five.

On the basiz of Policy for Performance Evalvation of Independent Directors, a process of
evaluation is being followed by the Board for its own performance and that of its Committees and
mdividual Directors. The Committee may amend the Policy, if required, to ascertain its
appropriateness as per the needs ofthe Company. The performance ofthe Board was evaloated by
the Board after zeeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of the eriteria such as the Board
composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processzes, information and fonctioning, etc.

The performance of the Committees was evalvated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Committee members on the basiz of the eriteria such as the composition of Committees,

v,
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effectiveness of Committee meetings and meeting feez etc. The Board and the Nomination and
Eemuneration Committee ("NRC") reviewed the performance of the individual Directors
including Independent Directors on the basiz of the criteria such as the contribution of the
individual Director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be
dizcussed meaningfil and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.

ix Term of Board membership and new appointment

The NRC determines the appropriate characteristics, skills and experience required for the Board
as a whole and for individual members. The Board members are expected to possess the required
qualifications, integrity, expertize and experience for the directorship in the Company. They also
possess expertize and insights in sectors/areas relevant to the Company and have ability to
contribute to the Company's growth. As per the existing policy, the retirement age for Managing
Directoris seventy. .

The WE.C shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertize and experience of the
person for appointment as Director. KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the
Board his / her appointment subject to the approval of members of the Company in general
meeting. A perscn should possess adequate gqualification, expertize and experience for the
position he / she iz considered for appointment. The WEC has discretion to decide whether
qualification, expertize and experience possessed by a person 15 sufficient/satisfactory for the
concerned position.

x Meeting of Independent Director s

In accordance with the provisions of clavse VII of Schedule IV of the Act and Begulation 23 (3),
{4) of the 3EBI Listing Fegulations a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the
Company was held on February 12, 2024 without the attendance of non-independent Directors
and members of the managementto discuss:-

1. Evaluation of the performance of Won Independent Directors and the Board of Directors az a
Whaole;

2. Evalueation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views
ofthe Executive and Non Executive Directors.

3. Evalvation of the quality, content and time lines of flow of information between the
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
its duties. All the independent Directors were present at the meeting. At such meetings, the
independent directors dizcuss, among other matters, the performance of the Company and risks
faced by it. the flow of information to the Board, competition, strategy. leadership strengths and
weaknesses, governance, compliance, Board movements human resource matters and
performance of the executive members of the Board, including the Chairman During the year,
the independent directors met without the presence ofthe Management.
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xi Familiarization program for independent directors

At the time of appointing an Independent Dhirector. a formal letter of appointment is given to
him ‘her, which inter-alia explains the role, functions, duties and rezponsibilities expected from
him‘her as a Director of the Company. The Director iz also explained in detail the compliances
required from him under the Companies Act 2013, the SEBI Lizting Fegulations and other
relevant rules & regulations. The Chairman & Managing Director also have one to one discussion
with the newly appointed director to familiarize him‘her with the Company7s Operations. The
Board Members are provided with necessary documents_ reports and policies to enable them to
familiarize with the Company?s Procedures and Practices. Periodic presentations are made at the
Board and Committee Meatinges on Business and performance update of the Company.

Moreover interactive meetz are organized from time to time where they get opportunity to
mteract with Senior Management, Head of departments and other key personnel of the
organization. All-important corporate communications/announcements are forwarded to all the
Independent Directors on regular basiz to keep them abreast with what iz happening in the
Company. Independent Directors have the freedom to interact with the Company?s management
az and when required.

The familiarization aims to provide inzights into the Company and the business environment to
enable the Independent Directors to be updated of newer challenges, risks and opportunities
relevant in the Company?z context and to lend perspective to the strategic direction of the
Company.

The familiarization program haz been uploaded on the website of the Company at
https:/www mohitpaper in/‘mpml finaneial-info html

xii Independent director databank registration and declaration

All the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themszelves in the data bank
maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate A ffairs, Manesar ( IICAT). In terms of Section
130 of the Act read with Rule 6{4) ofthe Companies {Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Bules, 2014, the Independent Directors are required to undertake online proficiency
self-assessment test conducted by the IICA within a period of one (1) year from the date of
inclusion oftheirnames inthe data bank.

The Board iz alzo of the opinion that the independent directors fulfil the conditions specified in
SEBI Listing Begulations and are independent of the management. The Company has received
necessary declaration from each independent Director under Section 149 ofthe Act, thathe meets
the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Act along with rules framed there
under and Regulation 16(b) & 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and other rules and regulation,
if applicable and they are not aware of any circumstance or simation. which exist or may be
reazonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an
objective Independent judgment and without any external influence.
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xiii Information provided to the Board

Pursuant to the Regulation 17(7) read with Part A of Schedule IT of the SEBEI Listing Regulations,

during the financial vear 2023-2024. theze specified information as mentioned in has been placed
before the Board for ifs consideration.

xiv Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

In accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2013, a3 amended
from time to time_ the Board of the Company has adopted the Code of Conduet for Directors and
management personnel for Prevention of Insider Trading The Company Secretary of the
company is acting as Compliance Officer of the Company.

3 Director s Remuneration Sharcholding

i. Remuneration of the Executive Directors & their Sharcholding

Mame of the Director esiznation IRemuneration h‘crquisit Total

53
Mr.Sandecp Jain Managing Director [Bg, 9000 Lakhs | Fs, 90,00 Lakhs
Mr. Pradeep Rajput W holeTime Director ]]{5. 735 Lakhs [ Hs. 733 Lakhs
Koumar

ii. Remuneration paid to the Non-Executive Directors including the fees paid or attending the Board

and Committee meetings during the year ended March 31, 2024, outstanding stock options and their
sharcholding as at March 31, 2024 is a5 below:

Name of Sitting Fee Amount (In Rs. Lakhs) Remuneration Stock Sharcholding
Director Optinns in the
Board! Commission {In Rs. Lakhs) Company  as
Gt ki at Mnrcll_ il
2024 (in Nos.)
M, 02 - " - 10,45, 000
Shubhi
Jain
Ms. Anju 21 - g - 377580
Jain
Mr. - . 49.80 . 17.30.818%
Mohit
Jain
. W
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M, .51 - - - -
Sanjeev

Kumar

Jain

Mr. .30 - - - -
Rachit

Jain

M, 0.19 - - - -
Sourabl

Mathur

15 0 0.51 - " o .
Sushil

Kumar

Tyagi

Mr. .21 - - - -
Rakesh

Juyal

There were no pecuniary relationships or transactions between the Non-Executive Directors and
the Company during FY24_ (other than of Mr. Mohit Jain, Mr. Sandeep Jain Mrs. Shubhi Jain
and Mrs. Anju Jain_details are mentioned in the notes ofthe accounts of the Company) except for
sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors.

During FY 24, the Non-Executive Directors (except Mr. Mohit Jain) were eatitled to sithing fees
of Bz, 3,000/~ per Board' Committes meeting.

The sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors and/or Independent Directors are within the
limitz preseribed under the Companies Act 2013. The eriteria of making payment to non-
executive directors have been dizclozed in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the
Company.

4. Board Committees

Purzuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulation provide the framework
to the constitute do the committee by the Board focus on specific are az and take in formed
decizions with in the frame work designed by the Board and make specific recommendations to
the Board on matters in their areas or purview. All decisions and recommendations of the

Committees are placed before the Board for information or for approval, if required. To enable
better and more focused attention on the affairs of the Company, the Board has delegated

particular matters to the Committees of the Board setup for the purpose.

During FY24 all recommendations of the Committees of the Board which were mandatorily
required have been accepted by the Board. There have been no instances where such
recommendations have not been considered.
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The Board has established the following statutory Committees:

a Audit Committee

b. Nomination& Remuneration Committes

c. Stakeholder Relationship Committee

d. Corporate Social Besponsibility Committee

a. Audit Committee

As required under Section 177 of the Companies Act. 2013 (the  Act?) and as per Regulation 18
of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has constituted a competent Audit Committee consisting
of two-third Independent Directors as its members.

Brief Terms of Reference

The terms ofthe Audit Committee Charter include:

= oversight of the listed entity?s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement iz correct, sufficient and credible;

= recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
listed entity;

= approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors;

= reviewing, with the management. the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon
before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. matters required to be included in the director's responsibility statement to be inclnded in
the board's report in terms of clause () of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013;

b. changes, ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

C.1major accounting entries involving estimates bazed on the exercize of judgment by

management;

d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f disclosure of any related party transactions;

g. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;
= reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submiszion to the
board forapproval;
= reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raized through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferemtial issue etc ), the statement of funds uvtilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisaticn of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in thiz matter;
= reviewing and monitoring the auditor?s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;
= approval or any subsequent modification of transactions ofthe listed entity with related parties;
= scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investment s;
= valuation of undertakings or azsets ofthe listed entity, wherever itis necessary;
= evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
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= reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal avditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

= reviewing the adequacy of internal avdit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal andit;

= dizcussion with internal anditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

= reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected frand or memtlarm or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature
and reporting the matter to the board;

= discussion with statutory avditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

* to lock into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

= toreview the functioning of the whiztle blower mechanism;

= approval of appointment of chief financial officer after azsessing the qualifications, experience
and background, etc. of'the candidate;

= Carrying out any other function as iz mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit
committee.

= reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in
the sub s.tdiarl. exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% ofthe azset size ofthe subsidiary, whichever is
lower 1nctudmg exmtmg loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into
force ofthis provision.

= consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.

The Aundit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information(s)

= management discussion and analyziz of financial condition and results of operations;
= management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory anditors;
= internal andit reports relating to internal control weakneszes; and
= the appointment removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be
subject to review by the andit committee.
= Statement of deviations:

i. quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable,
submitted to stock exchange(z) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

ii. Annual statement of fonds vtilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice interms of Regulation 32(7).

The Committee acts as a link between the Internal Aunditor, Statutory Auditor and the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Committee reviews the financial statements and other related
matters before submission to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee terms and condition iz available on our website at:
hitp:/aww mohitpaper in‘upload/others/policies latest’10 ACC pdf.
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Composition, Meetings and Attendance

Ason March 31, 2024, the Audit Committee comprized of four (4) Directors, three (3) of whom
are Independent. The Chairperson of the Committee is an Independent Director. All the Members
of the Committee have the requisite qualification for appointment on the Committee and possess
sound knowledge of finance, accounting practices and internal controls.

During the financial year2023-2024, zix (6) Audit Committee Meetings were held and gap
between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The said meetings were held on May 27,
2023 Avgust 14, 2023, Aupgust 23, 2023, September 27, 2023, November 10, 2023 and February

2, 2024, The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The Chairperson of the Audit
Committee was present at the last Annnal General Meeting held on September 20, 2023 to answer

the queries of the shareholders.

The composition of the Committee and attendance of members at the Committee mestings held
during FY 24 are given below:

Mame of the Member E[}rsiglmrion No. of Meetings
lattended (fotal held
during Tenure)

bAr.Sanjeey Kumar Jain Mon-Exccutive-Independent 6%

HC hanrmian) IDirector

r. Sourabh Mathuo Mon-Executive-Independent |66
Member) IDirector

Mr. Sushil Kumar Tyagi MNon-Execotive-Independent 66
Mlimber) [Direetor |

Ar. Pradeep Rajput Kumar  [Executive Director -
Mlermber) |

The CFO assists the Committee in the discharge of its responsibilities and the Company Secretary
of the Company acts as Secretary of the Committee. The minutes of each Audit Committee are
placed in the next Meeting of the Board. The meetings of the Audit Committee are also attended
by Managing Director, Whole Time Director, CFO, Statutory Auditors and Intemnal Avditors as
invites as required.

b. Nomination and Remuneration Commities

In terms of the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act and Regulation 19(4) read with Part D of
Schedule II to the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Committee iz responsible for inter alia
formulating the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a
Director. The Committee iz also responsible for recommending to the Board a policy relating to
the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other emplovees.

The Board haz adopted the Policy on Nomination and Remuneration Poliey for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employvees of the Company. The Company does not have any
Employee Stock Option Scheme.

~
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The Board has also approved the Charter of the Committee defining its composition, powers,
responsibilities, reporting, evaluation, etc. The terms of the Charter broadly include Board
composition and succession planning. evaluation, remuneration, board development and review
of HR. Strategy, Philosophy and Practices. The NRC charter containing terms and condition is
available on our website a http://www.mohitpaper.in/upload!
others‘policies latest? N&RPolicy pdf

Brief Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of Nomination & Eemuneration Commaittee, inter-alia, includes:

® To identify perzons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their
appointment and’ or removal;

® To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance;

® To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
a Director, and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors,
keymanagerial personnel | st management and other employees;

® To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

® To devize a policy on Board diversity;

® To recommend’ review remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and Whole time Director(s)
based on their performance and defined assessment criteria;

* To administer, monitor and formulate detailed terms and conditions of the Employees’ Stock
Option Scheme.

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

As on March 31, 2024, NBEC comprized three Directors, all of them are Independent. The
Chairman ofthe Committee Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Jain is Non-Executive -Independent Director.

The Company Secretary of the Company 1z the Secretary to the Committee.

During FY24, three (3) meeting of the NRC was held on May 27, 2023, August 23, 2023 and
March 30, 2024 Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Jain Chairman of the Committee, was present at the last
AGMheld on September 29,2023,

The composttion of the Committee and attendance of members at the Committee meetings held
during FY 24 are given below:

Wame of the [Designation ™o, of Meetingz attended
Member i total held during Tenure)
Pir. Sanjeev KEumar MNon-Executive-Independent 3/3

Taim Director

 Chairman)

hir. Sushil Kumar Mon-Executive-Independent 3/3

Tragzl Director

K MIember)

Ivir. Fachit Jain twon-Executive-Independent 53/3

M Iember) Director

The minutes of the meetings of the committee are placed before and noted by the Board.
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On the basiz of Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Performance Evaluation of
Independent Directors, a process of evaluation is being followed by the Board for its own
performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors. The Committee may amend the
Policy. if required, to aszcertain its appropriateness as per the needs of the Company. The NRC
shall formnlated the criteria and framework for evalvation of performance of Independent
Directors including all directors of the Board and on the bazics of the performance the Board rate
every directors including independent directors.

c. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Pursuant to the provisions of the Regulation 20 read with part D of Schedule IT of the SEEI
Listing Regulation and Section 178 of the Act, the Company has constifuted "Stakeholders
Relationship Committee” ("SR.C") to consider and resolve the grievances ofthe security holders
of the Company including complaints related to transfer of shares, non—receipt of annnal report
and etc.

The Committes charter containing terms and condition is available on cur website and the link of
the above committee iz here htip://www.mohitpaper.in/upload/others/
policies latest’/11 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMIITT EE pdf.

Brief Terms of Reference
The terms of the Charter broadly include:

*  Approval ofissue of duplicate certificates for securities and transmission of securities.

® Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to
tranzfer, transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non receipt of declared dividends,
izzue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings. etc.

®  BReview of measures taken for effective exercize of voting rights by shareholders.

* Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

*  Beview of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum
of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrantz’ annnal
reportz/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

®  (Oversee the statutory compliance relating to all securities including dividend payments and
tranzfer of unclaimed amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

* Beviewof movements in shareholding and ownership structures of the Company.

* Condect 2 Shareholder Satisfaction Survey to judge the level of satisfaction amongst
zhareholders.

® GSuggestand drive implementation of various investor friendly initiatives.

®  Carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced by any
statutory notification’ amendment or modification as may be applicable.

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

As on March 31, 2024, SRC comprizes of three (3) Directors out of which two (2) are Non-
Executive Independent Directors, one (1) is Executive Director. The Chairman ofthe Committee
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iz an Non- Executive Independent Director. The Company Secretary of the Company iz the
Secretary to the Committes.
During FY 24, one (1) meeting of the SR.C was held on Avgust 25, 2023. The composition of the
Committee and attendance of members at the Committee meetings held during FY 24, are given
below:

Name of the Director [Designation No. of Meetings

fattended (total held
during Tenure}

Sanjeev Komar Jain Non-Executive-Independent 1/1

(Chaimman) Director

Sushil Kumar Tyagi MNon-Executive-Independent 1/1

[ Iember) Director

Sandeep Jain Execotive Director 1.1

(Nlember)

The Chairman of the Commsttee also attended the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on

September 29_ 2023

Details of Compliance Officer during FY 23-24

Name of Compliance Officer Mr. Shivam Sharma (ceased

wef 13.07.2024)
Designation Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

E-mail investorsmohitpaper@amail com

Tel 011-25886798

Details of the number of complaints received from sharcholders and attended during the financial year

vestor Complaints Status

Opening Balance as on Apnl 01, 2023 Q

Number of complaints received during the 1

year

Nuomber of complaints resolved during the 1

year

Number of complaints not solved to the 0

satisfaction of the shareholders during the

year@

Number of pending complaintz az on March 1

31, 2024

@ Al the complaints were resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholders.

.
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d. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

During the yvear, yvour Company constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in terms of
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility and recommend the amount of
expenditure to be incurred. The Committee adopted the CSR Committee charter and the same i3
available on the website and the link of the same iz here hitp:/'wowmochitpaperin/
upload/others/policies latest’14 CSE. MPML 2023 pdf.

During the financial vear 2023-2024, the Committee comprised ofthree members.
Brief Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the CSE. Committee are in conformity with Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, which includes:

i Formulate and recommend to the Board, a C3E Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by
the Company as specified in Schedule VIIto the Act.

ii. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be inenrred on the activities mentioned in the CSR
Policy.

iii. Monitor the CSE Policy of the Company from time to time. The minntes of the meetings of the
Committee are placed before and noted by the Board, as applicable.

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

During the financial vear 2023-2024, CSR. Committee comprised three Directors, two of which are
non-executive directors. The Chairperson of the Committee is an Executive Director. The Company
Secretary ofthe Company is the Secretary tothe Committee.

During the financial vear 2023-24, 2 (two) meetings was held on February 12, 2024 and March 30,
2024 The composition of the Committee and attendance of members at the Committee meetings held
during FY 2413 given below:

Name of the Member Iﬂesignatiun MNo. of Mectings attended (total
held during tenure)
Bvir.Sandeep Jain Executive Director 22
I Chairman)
s, Anju Jain NMon-Executive Director /2
Member)
Bvir. Sourabh Mathur [Non-Executive-Independent 242
i Member) {Dyirector

As the Company does not have any CSR liabilities more than Rs. 50 Lakhs in any of the preceding
finanecial vears, therefore in line with the provisions of Companies Aet, 2013, the Board of Directors in
their meeting held on March 30, 2024 has dizsolved the CSE Committee and the duties of the CSR
Comimittee are being discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.
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5. Senior Management

The particulars of the senior management are as below:

Name Designation

Mr. Sandeep Kumar Jain Chairman and Managing Director
Mr, Pradeep Rajput Kumar Whole Time Director

Mr. Arvind Kumar Dixit Chief Financial Ofticer

Mr. Shivam Sharma* Company Secretary

*Ceased w.e.f July 13, 2024

6. General Body Meeting(s)

i Annual General Meeting (" AGM")

Year Date Time Venue

2022-2023 (317} | September 29,

2023
Meeting conducted through
= = VC/OAVM pursuant to
2021-2022 (30%) September 29, 04.00P.M, MCA Circulars.
2022

2020-2021 (29" September 30,
2021
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ii. Particulars of Special Resolution passed in last three AGMs,

| Date Particulars |
September 29, 2023 a. To consider the approval for
remuneration of Mr. Sandeep Jain
(DIN: 00458048), Managing Director
of the Company in case of no profit or
in adequate profits.
b, To consider the approval for
remuneration of Mr. Pradeep Rajput
Kumar (DIMN: 06683580), Whole Time
Director of the Company in case of no
profit or in adeguate profits.

¢.  To consider the re-appointment of Mr.
Sourabh Mathur (DIN: 08354589 as
the Non- Executive Independent
Director of the Company for a second
term of [ive conseculive vears.

d.  To consider and approve the alieration
of Memorandum of Association of the
Company,

e. To consider and approve the alieration
the Arnicle of Association of the
Company.

September 29, 2022 a. To approve remuneration payable to
Mr. Mohit Jaan (DIN: 07203009 {Mon-
Executive and Mon-Independent
Directors) (Director of Marketing) by
way of Fees

b,  Appointment of Mr Rakesh Juyal
(DIN: 096981627 as an Independent
Director:
September 30, 2021 Mo special resolution was passaed

iii. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting ("EGM")

No extracrdinary general meeting ofthe members was held during FY 2024

iv. Postal Ballot

a. Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot, the persons who conducted the
postal ballot exercizse, details of the voting pattern and procedure of postal ballot
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During the year 2023-24_ no Special Resolution has been paszed through Postal Ballot. However,
after the end of the FY 2023-2024, the Company had sought the approval of the shareholders by
way of Special Rezolution through notice of postal ballot dated May 10, 2024 for:

a Appointment of Mr. Satya Prakeash (DIN: 10564516) as an Independent Director
b. Appointment of Mrs. Shubhi Jain (DIN: 10564396) as an Independent Director
c. Appointment of Mrs. Sakeshi Jain (DIN: 10364 854) as an Independent Director

All the aforesaid rezolutions were duly passed and the results of which were announced on June
19,2024,

b. Perzon who conducted the Postal Ballot Exercize

Mr. Anlkit Jain Practicing Company Secretary (ACS 31103, CP: 26724), was appointed as the
Serutinizer to scrutinize the postal ballot process by v ntmg through electronic means caly
(remote e-voting) in a fair and transparent manner.

c.Procedure for Postal Ballot

The postal ballot is conducted in accordance with the provisions contained in Section 110 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act. 2013, read with Bule 22 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and in terms of the General Circular
Wo.33/2020 dated 28 September 2020 read with General Circular No 14/2020 dated 8 April 2020
General Circular No. 172020 dated 13 April 2020, and General Circular No. 392020 dated 31
December 2020, (the "MCA Circularzs"). In line with MICA Circuolars, the Notice of Postal Ballot
was zent in electronic mode only to all those shareholders who have registered their e-mail
addresses with the Company or Depository Participant / Depository, Company's Registrar &
Transfer Agent Further, the shareholders were provided the option to vote only through remote e-
wvoting and voting through physical ballot papers was not provided as per the guidelines izsued by
the MCA vide MCA Circulars. The Company fixes a cut-off date to reckon paid-up value of
equity shares registered in the name of shareholders for the purpose of voting. Sharcholders may
cast their votes through e-voting during the voting period fixed for this purpose After completion
of serutiny of votes, the serutinizer submits his report to the Chairman or perzon duly anthorized
by the Chairman and the results of voting by postal ballot are announced by the Chairman or
Perzon duly autherized within two working days from the conclusion of the voting period. The
results are also displayed on the website of the Company (www.mohitpapaper in), besides being
commumnicated to the Stock Exchanges, Depositories.

d. Details of special resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballet

None of the businesses proposed to be transacted at the ensuing AGM requires passing of a
spectial resolution through postal ballot.

7. Means of Communication
The Company always gives the preference to the implementation of best Corporate Governance

in the Company in all level in troe words. It is a kev element of the corporate governance
framework and therefore emphasizes continnous, efficient and relevant in all levels.

~
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Financials: Quarterly/Half Yearly/Annual finaneial results are usually published in widely
circulated newspapers like "Top stories" an English daily newspaper and in "Haribhomi" in hindi
edition, a Hindi daily news paper. The same are alzo available on the website ofthe Company, viz.
www.mohitpaperin and have also been submitted to stock exchanges BSE ie.
www bseindia com as per requirement ofthe SEBIListing Begulation.

The financial results, and other information are alzo disseminated to the Stock Exchanges (ie.
BSE Limited) where the securities ofthe Company are listed, as required’ preseribed under SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Website: The Company's website contains a separate dedicated section "Investor Relations”
where information sought by shareholders is available.

Significant events, if any, during the financial year, are filed with the Stock exchange and alzo
posted on the Company?s website www.mohitpaperin from time to- time. The Company's
website gives information on trading, clearing & settlement, circulars issued by the Exchange,
market data, Exchange rules, byelaws, business rules, products, financials including Annual
Report, contract specifications of products and membership related information ete.

Annual Report : All important information pertaining to the Company is also mentioned in the
Annual Report of the Company containing inter—alia audited financial statements, Directors'
report, Auditors’ report, report on Corporate Governance which is circulated to the members and
others entitled thereto for each financial yvear and iz displayed on the Company's website:
www.mohitpaper.in_

Financial vear ended on 31st March 2024.

[Particulars [Published Date

Financial year April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024

Un—audited financial resulis Un—audited financial results for the first quarter were announced
for the first three quarters on August]4.2023,

Un—audited financial results for the second quarter and half year
was announced on November 10, 2023,

Un—audited financial resules Tor the third guarter was announced

on february 12, 2024,

Annual financial resulls Audited financial results for quarter and year ended March 31, 2024
was anhounced on May 28, 2024,

Calendar of the financial vear ending March 31,2025

The Company follows April-March as the financial year. The meetings of the Board of Directors
for approval of quarterly financial results for the financial year ending on March 31, 2025, will be
held on the following dates:

~
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| Particulars Date I

Ouarter ended June 30, 2024 On or before August 14, 2024

Quarter'hall-year ended Seplember3i, 2024 On or before Movember 15, 2024

Quarter’ nine months ended December 31, Om or before February 15, 2025

2024

Quarter’ year ended March3 1, 2025 O or before May 30, 2025

8. General Sharcholder Information:
Particulars Details

Anmeal General Meeting Friday, September 27, 2024 at 04: 00 p.m. through V' QAWM
in terms of the cireulars issued by MCA and SEBI

Financial vear April 01, 2023 10 March 31, 2024

Dividend Payment Date Mot Applicable

Date of Book Closure/ Record Date As mentioned in the notice of the AGM

Mame  and  Address of  Stock The equity sharnes of the Company are listed on the following

Exchange(s) at which the Equity Stock Exchanges:

Shares are listed
BSE  Limited, Phiroreleejeebhoy  Towers, Dalal  Street,
Muiribai- 400001

Stock code 330164

Listing Fee The Company has paid the annual listing fee for the Financial
Year 2024-25 to BSE Limited. Further the Company has also
paid the Annual Custody Fee 1o National Securities
Depositories Lid and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited.

Repistrar & Transfer Agents LinkIntime India Private Limited
Registered Office:

-0, 247 Pwk, L B 5 Marg, Vikhroli (West) Mumbm

400083
Correspondence Address:
Mohle Heights 15t Floor, Plot No, NH-2, C-1 Block, [5C Near
Savitri Market Janakpuri, MNew Delhi-110058, Phone:011-
414105492,93, 94, Telefax: 011 - 41410549]
EMail: delhi@linkintime. co.in, sunil.mishraf@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in

Share Transfer svstem 81.43 % of the equity shares of the Company are in electronic
form. Transfer of these shares is done electronically in demat
made through the depositories with no involvement of the
Company.
Im accordance with the provizo to Regulation 4001} of the SERI
Listing Regulations, ransfers of shares ol the Company shall
not be processed unless the shares are held in the
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dematerialized  form with  a  depository.  Accordingly,
sharcholders holding eguity shares in physical form are urged
o have their shares dematerialized so as o be able o freely
transfer them.

Otstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants As on March 31, 2024, the Company did not have any
ar amy  Convertible  instruments, outstanding GDRs/ ADRs / Warrants or any convertible
comversion date and likely impact on instruments.
couity
Commedity  price  risk  or  foreign Mot Applicable
exchange nisk and hedging activitics
Plant Locations Mohit Paper Mills Limited, 9TH KM Stone, Nagina Road,
Bijnor, LP- 246701
Address tor Correspondence Mohit Paper Mills Limited
Offiee: 15413, Upper Ground Floor, East Patel Magar,
MewDelhi -] 10003
Plant Office: Mohit Paper Mills Limited, 9TH KM Stone,
Magina Road, Bijnor, UP- 246701
E-Mail investorsmohitpaperiamail.com
Website: www, moehitpaper.in
Depository for equity shares National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDS1.)
Dremat [nternational Securitics INE3SRCOLOLT
Identification Mumber (151N} allotted
to the equity shares of the Company
under the Depository System
Corporate Identification Number L2 1093 DL I992PLE T 16600
(CIN) of the Company
Credit Rating Your Company enjoys credit rating from Brickwork Ralings,
The Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd. has granting credit
rating on Januwary 22, 2021 to the company as BWR BB+
(Pronounced as BWE Double B Plus), Ouilook: Stable
{Downgraded) for Fund Based and BWR A4+ (Pronounced as
BWER, A Four Plus) (Downgraded) for Mon Fund Based.
Transfer to Investor Education and W amount is transferred/pending 1o be iransferred to IEPF.
Protection Fund (IEPE):
9. Code of Conduct
All Diirectors and senior management personsel of the Company have affirmed compliance with
Company's Code of Conduct as approved and adopted by the Board of Directors for the financial
vear ended 31 March 2024 and a Declaration to this effect signed by the Chairman and Managing
Director has been annexed as Annexure 5 to the Report. The Code of Conduet of the Company iz
available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the following web link:
hitps:/waw mohitpaper inupload/others/policies latest’? code%020of%620conduet 2002020
directors%e20and %20management®2 0personnel pdf
\ J
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10. Other Disclosures

A. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions

During the financial year 2023-2024. the Company entered in all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and SEBEI L isting Regulations
and do nothave potential conflicts with the interest ofthe Company. Further, the details efrelated
party transactions are presented in Note of the financials statements of the company. In line with
requirement of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a policy for
determining Materially Significant Related Party Transactions and the same is disclosed on
website ofthe Company at the link as follows:

http:/www.mohitpaper in‘upload/others’policies latest’3 related party transaction Policy
MetalUp pdf.

B. Details of Non-Compliance by the Listed Entity, Penalties or restrictions imposed on the
listed entity by Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to
the capital markets during thelast three vears.

There are no such instance of non-—compliance. The Company has complied with the
requirements of the Schedule V of SEBI Listing Begulations. Further, the Company i3 also in
compliance with corporate governance requirements specified inregulation 17 to 27 and clauses
{b) to (1) of sub— regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Begulations except uader
regulaticn 47(3) of advertizement in News Paper i.e. Delay in fuornishing the advertisement in
HEWSpaper.

C. Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism

The Company haz adopted a Whistle Blower Policy & Vigil Mechanism for directors, employees
and stakeholders to report concerns about unethical behaviour, acteal or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company's Code of Conduct. The said policy has been posted on the Company's
website. The Company affirms that no personnel have been denied access to the Chairman of the
AC. The policy on vigil mechanism i3 placed on our website and the related link of the policy i3
here http://www.mohitpaper in‘opload/others/policies latest/
9 WISTLE%20BLOWER_VIGIL%20MACHANISM pdf.

D. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements

Mandatory Reguirements

Your Company has complied with all the mandatory corporate governance requirements under
the SEBI Listing Begulations. Specifically, vour Company confirms compliance with corporate
governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to0 27 and Begulation 46 of the SEBI Listing
Begulations. The Practicing Company Secretary’s certificate regarding the compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance izattached az Annexure 7 inthiz Anmnal Beport.
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Discretionary Reguirements: (Part E of Schedule IT)

The Company has complied with the following non-mandatory and discretionary
requirements as per Schedule IIPartE of the SEBI Listing Regulations:

Particulars Drate

Shareholder Rights CQuarterly financial results including the summary of
significant events disseminated to stock exchanges
are published in the newspaper and are also posted
an the website of the Company and hence are
available o all the shareholders.

Modified opinionis) in the audit report The auditors report on financial statements of the
Company are unmodified

Reporting of internal auditor Internal auditors of the Company make quarterly
presentations to the Audit Committes on their
reports.

E. Policy on Material Subsidiaries

The Company has no subsidiary or material subsidiaries during the financial vear 2023-2024. The
Company has adopted a Policy on Material Subsidiary in line with the requirements of the SEBI
Listing Regulations. The objective of this policy i3 to lay down criteria for identification and
dealing with material subsidiaries and to formulate a governance framework for subsidiaries of
the Company. The policy on Material Subsidiary is available website of the Company.

E. Accounting treatment in the preparation of the Financial Statements:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

G. Disclosure of commeodity price risks and commodity hedging activities
The Company is not engaged in hedging activity during the vear under review.

H. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or gqualified
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (TA)

During the yvear under review, there was no issuance of equity shares of the Company under
preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement.

I. CEOQ and CFO Certification

As per requirement of Eegulationl7(8) of SEBI Listing Repgulations, the Chairman and
Managing Director and the CFO made a certification to the Board of Directors in the preseribed
format for FY23-24, which has been reviewed by the Audit Committees and takren on record by
the Board. The same 15 attached a: Annexure 6.
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J. Compliance with the Corporate Governance Requirements

Your Company has complied with all the mandatory corporate governance requirements uvnder
the SEBI Listing Regulations. Specifically, your Company confirms compliance with corporate
governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46 ofthe SEBEI Listing
Eegulations.

The Practicing Company Secretary's certificate regarding the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance is attached az Annexure 7 inthis Annual Report.

K. Acertificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of
the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of companies by the BoardMinistry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority

A certificate from the Practicing Company Secretaries stating that none of the Directors on the
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of companies by SEBLIMCA or any such statutory authority and the same is reproduced

atthe end ofthis report and marked as Annexure-§.

L. Disclosure with respect to non-acceptance of any recommendation of any Committee of the
Board which is mandatorily required, along with reasons thereof

During the vear under review, all the recommendations if any of the various mandatory
committees were accepted by the Board.

M. Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity to the statutory auditor

During the year under review, total fees paid/payable to the Statutory Auditor, details are given

below:
Sr. No. Particulars Fees paid /pavable by the Company Total Amount
{In Lakhs) {In Lakhs)
1. Statutory Audit foes 1.20 1.20
Total 120

The above fees are exclnsive of applicable tax.

N. Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
RedressalyAct,2013

The Company has always believed in providing a zafe and harassment free workplace for every
individual working in its premises through various policies and practices. The Company always
endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexunal harassment The Company ha: adopted a policy on Prevention of Sexual
Harazsment at Workplace which aims at prevention of harassment of employvees and lays down
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the guidelines for identification. reporting and prevention of undeszired behaviour. An Internal
Complaintz: Committee ("ICC") has been zet up from the zenior management which is
rezponsible for redressed of complaints related to sexval harazzment and follows the gpidelines
provided in the Policy.

During the vear ended 31" March, 2024, no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment have been
received.

(i) Number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil
(i) Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil
(iii) Number of complaints pending as at the end of the financial vear: Nil

0. Details of Loans & Advances to firms/companies in which Directors are interested

The Company has not given any loans and advances to firms/Companies in which directors are
interested.

P. Disclosure of certain tvpes of agreements binding listed entities

There are no agreements entered into by the shareholders, related parties, directors, key
managerial perzonnel. employees of the Company, subsidiary or associate company, among
themselves or with the Company or with a third party, solely or jointly, which, either directly or
indirectly or potentially or whose purpose and effect is to impact the management or control of
the listed entity or impose any restriction or create any liability upon the Company.

). Disclosure under Regulation 30A of SEBI Listing Regulations

The Company haz not been informed about any agreement which are binding on the Company by
any of its shareholders, related parties, Directors, KMP and employees of the Company or its
subsidiaries and associate companies executed under Clavse 3A of Para A at Part A of Schedule
I to SEBI Listing Regulations.

11. Details of Demat/Unclaimed Suspense Account

There were no shares lving in the suspensze account az on 31" March, 2024, (Purzpant to
Eegulation 34(3) and Schedule V PartF ofthe SEBI Listing Regulations

12. Dematerialization of shares and Liguidity

The Company have Registrar and share Transfer agent i e. Link Intime India Private Limited
{"LIIPL ") for izzue related to equity share, we have established connectivity with both NSDL and
CDSL. Details of shares held in dematerialized and physical mode as on 31" March, 2024 are a2
under:
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Category No. of No. of %a of total
Share Shareholder equity
PHYSICAL 5063 2599567 18,57
NSDL 2110 10233872 73.10
CDSL 955 [ 166561 8.33
Total 10061 140000100 100
13. Reconciliation of share capital andit
Asstipulated by SEEL a qualified company secretary carries out, on quarterly basis, reconeiliation of
zhare capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL and CDSL and the total issued
and listed capital and report thereon iz submitted to BSE Ltd. where the Company's shares are listed.
Bazed on the Aundit Report, it iz certified that the total listed and izzued/ paid-up capital iz in agreement
with the aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of
dematerialized shares held with WSDL and CDSL.
Month wise Stock Marketdata:
High Low Close No. of Shares
Month Price Price Price Traded
Apr-23 19.79 16.9 18.43 45462
May-23 20.29 1792 19.75 69171
Jun-23 21.07 18.35 20.23 85300
Jul-23 21.3 18.2 20.5 63040
Ang-23 2390 20 247 141683
Sep-23 2349 24 25.47 103168
Oct-23 28 89 2471 2525 90377
Now-23 2895 24.32 26.75 89204
Dec-23 32.78 23.01 26.55 119700
Jan-24 F1T 26.06 3537 177340
Feb-24 38.31 13 33.5 101751
Mar-24 34.71 2817 30.15 33190
Share price performance in comparison to broad based indices:
The chart below depicts the performance of the Company’'s share price in comparison to broad-based
indices, such azs BSE Sensex. The stock movement shown in the graph below should not be considered
indicative of potential future stock price performance.
S
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Top 10 sharcholders of the Company as on March 31, 2024:
S1L.No. Name & Type of Transaction NOOF % 0T
SHARES COMPANY
HELD
1 SELTRON FINANCE LIMITED 1400000 100000
2 SHIVANE SECURITIES (P} LTD 135000 0.9643
KEETAN KIRTIKUMAE.
3 VAKHARIA 128338 0.9167
- EMAJTH THARAKAN . 115431 0.8245
5 SUNITA KOTHARI 73660 0.5404
] JAYKISHAN BIELA 69173 0.4841
7 ATUL TANDON 58350 0.4168
8 ATHULOQORI EOWSHIKE KUMAF. 33430 0.3818
g GARVIT KOTHARI 47400 0.3386
10 VANDANABAJAJ 42446 0.3032
Note:
1. Top ten eguity sharcholders exclude promoter and promoter group holding.
2. Paid up Share Capital of the Company (Face Value Rs. 10.00) at the end of the year iz 14000000 Shares.
3. The details of holding has been clubbed bazed on PAN.
4. % of total Shares of the Company is bazed on the paid up Capital of the Company at the end of the Tear.
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Distribution of Shareholding & Consolidated Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2024
Distribution of shareholding

o Sharsholding of nonunsl Shareholder | Percentage Total Percentape
HNo. shares of total Shares of total
1 1 to 5000 a132 01.7603 1057840 7.336
2 3001 to 10000 376 37372 33dlgd 2.3869
3 10001 to 20000 251 14948 400847 2.35839
4 20008 fo 30000 L] 0.7832 200487 14321
3 30001 to 40000 31 03081 110850 0.7867
] 40001 to 50000 13 01292 61137 04367
7 30001 to | 100000 30 02932 220394 L5
g 100001 |to | *¥*eees 48 04870 11614621 £2042
Total 10280 100 140000000 100
Category of Shareholders
Category No. of U9 of Diemat Physica
S Share Shareholdi 1
E ng
1 Promoters (Individuals) 2070707 6408 20707 -
a7
2 (Otther then promoters 3064 825 21.89 21044 96036
(Individuals) 58 7
3 Foreign Nationals 232,700 1.66 1] 23270
0
4 HUF% 1,11.658 080 11135 104
2
3 MNRI%: (Repeated and MNon 61,953 044 61,953 0
Repested)
Clearinz Members 100 000 100 0
7 Corporate bodies 15,538,057 11.13 15,165 140464
7 0o
Total 1.40,00,00 100.00 1.14,00 25005
] A33 67
For and on hehalf of the Board
a4/
{(Sandeep Jain)
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00455043
Date: Angust 14, 2024
Place: New Delhi
. J
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ANNEXURES
Declaration by Chief Executive Officer under Regulation 34 3 read with Schedule V of SEBI Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirement Regulations 2015 in respect of compliance with the Company =
Code of Conduct
This is to confirm that the members of Board of Directors and Senior Manzgement Personnel of the Company
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of Mohit Paper Mills Limited. az applicable to them, for the
Financial Yearended March 31, 2024,
Sdi-
Sandeep Jain
Chairman and Manaping Director
DIN: 00458048
Augnst 14, 2024
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THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 (BT}



(H“ HET MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED

( ™

ANNEXURE§

CHIEFEXECUTIVE OFFICER & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATE

(Regulation 33(2) & Regulation 17{8) read with Part B of Schedule-IT of SEBI (LODE) Regulations 2015)

To,

The Board of Directers

MMohit Paper Mills Limited

15A/13, Upper Ground Floor

East Patel Wagar

New Dethi- 110008

We hereby certify that:

1.  We have reviewed the financial statement and the cash flow staternent for the year ended March 31,
2024 and to the best of our knowledge and belief; we state that
® these statements do not contain any materially untme statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;
® these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are mn comgpliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. These are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during
the vear, which are frandulent, illegal or violative ofthe Company's Code of Conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control systems and that we have
evalnated the effectiveness ofthe internal control system ofthe company and we have dizclosed to the
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies i the design of operation of internal controls, if any of
which we are aware and the steps the company has taken or propose to take to rectify the deficiencies.

4. Wehave indicated to the Aunditors and the Andit Committee:
® Significant changes in internal control during the vear:

& Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same has been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements;

& instances of significant frand of which the Company has become aware and the involvement therein,
if any of the management or an emplovee having zignificant role in the Company's internal control
Fystem.

ForBoard of Directors

Mohit Paper Mills Limited

Sd/- Sd-

Sandeep Jain Arvind Kumar Dt

Chairman and Managing Director CFO

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 28, 2024
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ANNEXURET
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Members

Mohit Paper Mills Limited

154713, Upper Ground Floor
EaztPatel Nagar, New Delhi-110008

We have examined the compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance by M/s Mohit Paper Mills
Limited {"the Company") for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 as stipulated in Begulation 17
to 27 and clavzes (b) to (1) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para € and D of Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("the Listing
Begulations") of the Company with stock exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on financial statements ofthe Company.

Bazed on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations
provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and
clanses (b) to (1) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedula V of the Listing Regulations during
the year ended March 31,2024,

We further state that such compliance iz neither an assurance as to the foture viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Agarwal 5. & Associates,
Compeiy Secretaries,

ICST Unigue Code: P2003DEG49100
Peer Review Cert. No.: 39392023

CS Ankit Jain
(Partner)
ACS 31103
C.P. 26724
UDIN: A031103F000948789
Place :New Delhi
Date: 11 August 2024

~
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ANNEXTRES

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
{Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulanions, 2015)
To,
TheMembers of
Mohit Paper Mills Limited
15A/13, Upper Ground Floor
EastPatel Nagar, New Delhi-110008

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and diselosures received from the Directors of
Mz, Mohit Paper Millz: Limited bearmn CIN:L21093DL1992PLC116600, having registered office at 13A ].J

Upper Ground Floor, East Patel '\agar_ New Delhi-110008, India (hereinafter referred to as "the Co ompany"),

produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing thiz Certificate, in accordance with Repulation
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clauze 10 (i} of the Securities &Exchange Board of India [l.isting
Obligations and Dizclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the verifications (including Dhrectors
Identification Number (DIN) status on the website of Ministry of Corporate A ffairs) as conzidered necessary and
explanztions furnizhed to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify- that none of the Directors on the
Board of the Company as stated helow | have been debarred or dis squalified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate A ffairs, or any such
other Statutory Authority 22 on March 31, 2024

Date of appointment in

. No, Name of Director DM :
Compuany

Sandeep Jain DS RO4E 306, (992
Anju lain RS540 KRN
Hushil Kumar Tyagi* DG36G26E05 14405 20k 2

Pradecp Ragpul Ewmir AR5 5RG 23102007

Shubhi Jain DEE5A02 1507 2001 3

Eachii Jain® DESH2TET e 200 L

Sanjesy Bumar Jain® 07018412 0092014

Sourabh Mathu DEISA5EY 140220119

s waf -l =] en] | e —

Mohsl Jain DT 2050 [ A ] el e

(=]

Fakash Juyal L LT R U5 (R 222

¥loazed to be Director w.ef closing howrs qf 31 March 2024,

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment’ contimuity of every Directer on the Board is the responsibility ofthe
management of the Company. Our responsibility 1= to exprezs an opinion on these bazed on our venification. This
certificate iz neither an assurance a3 to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectivensss
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
FOR AGARWAL 5. & ASSOUIATES
Company Secreturies
TCST Unigue Code: P2OU3DERLS D00
Feer Review No, @ 30392023
N Ankit Jain
Place: Mew Deelhi
Parimer
Date: 11 August 2024
UDIN: AN TIOZFO002487TH ACE: 31103

COP 26724

~
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INDEPENDENTAUDITORISEEPORT

TOTHEMEMBERS OF MOHIT PAPER MILLSLIMITED

Eeporton the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statement: of MOHIT PAPER
MILLSLIMITED (the "Company"), which comprize the Balance Sheet az at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended on that date and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "Ind AS financial
statements"”).

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
"Act") in the manner so required and give a TRUE AND FAIR VIEW IN CONFORMITY WITHTHE
INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and
its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standard: on Anditing
{"SA%s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auvditor's Eesponsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
zection of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
izzued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our andit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAT's Code of Ethics. We believe that the andit evidence
abtained by vs is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS
financial statements.

Key AunditMatters

Eey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements ofthe current period. These matters were addreszed in the
context of our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
belowto be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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b3 8 Kev Audit Matter Auditor”s Response
N
T | Revenue is recognized when the coniral of | Our audit procedures include:;
the products being sold has ransferred to the & Assessing the  complitnee  of  revenue
customer. Revenue is measured net of any recognition accounting  policies,  including
disvounts and rebates, Recognition and those relating to discounts and rebates, with
measurement of discounts and rehates reference to Ind AS 115 Revenwe from
aecruals, involves judgement and estimates contracts  with  customers  (applicable
This leads to a nsk of revenee being accounting standard),
misstated due 10 inaccurale cslimation over
discounts and volume rebates. ® Fvaluating  the  design,  lesting  the
implementation and operating effectiveness of
We identified the recognition of revenue the Company”s internal controls  over
from sale of products as a key audit matter recognifion. of  revenoe  and  computing
ecanse: discounts and volume rebates in the general
@ The Company and is external ledger accounting systemk
stakeholders focus on revenue as a ®  Performing substantive testing (ncluding for
key  performance  indicator.  This period end cut-off) by selecting  statstical
could create an incentive for higher samples of revenue fransactions recorded for
FEVenLE to be Jﬂ‘_-ug[ﬁz”,l the wyear and agreeing to the underlving
theoughout the period (including documents, which included sales imvolces and
period end), Le., before the control shipping documents;
of wnderlving soods have been ® Performing  substantive tesiing by agreeing
:mnsﬁ.:;‘rcdiIu;hchl.:uﬂumur. statistical samples of discounts and rebate
accrugls and  dishursements to underlving
documents.
® Performing a  retrospective  assessment  of
discounts and rebate aceruals with prior period
to evaluate the historical  accowracy;  and
assessing manual journals posted to revenue o
sdentify wnusual items.
® Evaluating adequacy of disclosures given m
Note to the standalone [inancial statements.,
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprizes the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Beport
including Annexvres to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but
doesnotinclude the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon
In connection with cur audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing 3o, consider whether the other information i3 materially inconsistent with
the Ind A S financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our andit or othenwise
v
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appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Fimancial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors iz responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position. financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including the Indian Accounting Standards{Ind AR) specified under section 133 ofthe Actread
with companies (Indian Accounting Standards)} Rules, 2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal finanecial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind A S financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fravd or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ahility to continue as a going concern disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
paing the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management and Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to izsve an auditor's
report that includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance iz a high level of asszurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exizts Misstatements can arise from frand or error and are considered material if, individoally
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the baziz of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercize professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticiam throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain

~
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audit evidence that iz sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nisk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fravd is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fravd may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circomstances. Under section 143(3)1) of the Act, we are
alzo responsible for expressing our D-piﬂiou on whether the Cﬂmpaw has adequate internal
financial controls over financial reperting in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. bazed on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abiht} to continve as a going
concern. [fwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained
up to the date of our anditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue a3 a going concern.

* Evalnate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
ineluding the disclosures. and whether the Ind AS finaneial statements represent the underlying
tranzactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality iz the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Ind AS financial statements may be inflnenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (1) planning the scope ‘of our audit work and in et -alnating the results of our work; and (1d) to
evaluate the effect of any identified mizstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings_ including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during ovr andit.

We alzo provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reazonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the andit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report valess law or
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regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter of when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverze consequences
of doing so would reascnably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatorv Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have zought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination ofthose books, except

® for the matter stated in paragraph 1{1){vi) below on reporting under Bule 11(g) of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors Bules), 2014.

) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In cur opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 ofthe Act.

) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors iz dizqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) ofthe Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Beport in "Annexure A" Ouvr report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company?s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given tous,
the remuneration patd by the Company to its directors during the yvear is in accordance with the
provizions of section 197 ofthe Act.

h) the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 1{b) above on reporting under Section 143(3) (b) and
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paragraph 1{i)}{vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies {Andit and
Aunditors) Rules, 2014,

1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Anditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 ofthe Companies (Audit and Avditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L The Company has no pending Iitigation which has any impact on its financial position.

1L The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; for
which there were any matenial foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amount which were reguired to be transfer to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

e () The Manapement has reprezented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the agpregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (erther from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of fimds) by the Company to or in any
other persen of entity, including foreign entity {Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded I writing or otherwise, that the
Imtermediary shall, whether, directly or mdirectlv lend or invest mn other
perzons or entities identified i any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Company {“TUltimate Beneficiaries’ ") or provide any guarantee, security ot the
like on heh;a.lf of the ultimate Beneficianes;

(&) The Management has reprezented, that, to the best of ifts Imowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, inclading
foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the Lﬂders’ta.udm.a_ whether re“ordad
in “ntng. or otherwisel that the Company shall whether, directly
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™
or provide ahy guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficianes;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
cauzed us to believe that the reprezentations under sub-clauze (i) and (ii) of
BRule 11{g). as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
mizstatement.

v The Company has neither declared dividend nor paid any dividend during the year.
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1. Provizo to Bule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Bules, 2014 for maintzining books of
accounts using accounting software which has a fezture of recording awdit trail (edit log)
facility iz applicable to the Company with effect from Aprl 1 2023, Bazed on our
examination which included test checks, the company has used zccounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same haz operated throwghout the vear for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instanee of andit trail feature bemng tampered with.

2.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order") issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act. we give in "Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Place: Muzaffamagar For PANEAJ K. GOYAL & CO
Diate: 28.05.2024 Chartered Accountants
(Firm®s Reqgistration No. 006885C)

CAPANKAJ EUMAR GOYAL, Partner
(Membership No.075828)

UDIN: 240755323BKHIDP4724
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ANNEXTURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR?S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reqguirements’
section of our report to the Members of MOHIT PAPER MILLS Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS Financials Statements under
Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the "Act™)

We have apdited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MOHIT PAPER MILLS
LIMITED (the "Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on the internal comtrol ocver finanecial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). Theze responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controlz that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, asrequired under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting bazed on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note cn Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) izsued by the ICAT
and the Standards on Anditing prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an andit of internal financial controls over financial reporting. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the aundit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
establizshed and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our avdit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. QOur audit of internal
finanecial controls over finaneial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thata material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control bazed on the azzessed risk. The
procedures zelected depend on the auditor?s judgement, including the asseszment of the risks of
material mizstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our andit opinion on the Company?s internal financial controls system over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

{1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
tranzactions and disposttions of the azsets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable azsnrance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
finanecial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting prineiples, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors ofthe company; and

{3) provide reazonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisttion, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alzo, projections of any evaluation of the internal
finaneial controls over financial reporting to foture periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial eontrol over finaneial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In ocur opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has. in all material respects. an adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as atMarch 31,
2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting establizshed by the
Company considering the eszential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting izsued by the ICAT

Place: Muzaffarnagar For PANKAJ K. GOYAL & C0O
Drate: 28.05.2024 Chartered Accountants
(Firm™s Registration Mo, 006885C)
CA PANKAJ KUMAR GOYAL, Partner
{Membership No.075828)
UDIN: 24075828BKHIDP4724
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ANNEXTURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT

(Referred te in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our reportto the Members of MOHIT PAPER MILLS Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of andit, we state that:

1. In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets:

(2) (A) The Company hasz maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property and plant and equipment.

(B) The Company ha: maintained proper records showing full partienlars of intangible
aszets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets zo to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, Porsuant to
the program_ certain property, plant and equipment and right-of- use assets were due for
verification during the vear and were physically verified by the Management during the year
According to the information and explanations given fo us, no material diserepancies were
noticed on such verification.

{c) Based onourexamination & according to information & explanations given to us, We report
that, the title in respect of self constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable
properties, disclozed in the financial statements included uwnder property, plant and
equipment are held in the name ofthe Company as at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company hasnot revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and intangible azsets
during the year.

(e} Based on our examination & according to information & explanations given to us, no
proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made there under

ii} (2) As explained to us physical verification has been conducted by the management at
reazonable intervals, on our opindon, the procedures of physical verification of inventory
followed by the management are reasonable and adegquate in relation to the size of the
company and the nature of its business, te explained that no material discrepancies have been
noticed on physical verification,

(b} The Company has been sanctioned a working capital limit in excess of 7 3 crore, in
aggregate from bank on the basis of security of current assets ofthe company, during the vear
The quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by
the Company with such banks in some cazes were vary from books and accounts. However,
the vtilization of the working capital limits from banks were within the drawing power based
the books of account of the Company for the respective periods, which are subject to
audit/review.

iti. The Company, during the vear, has not made investment, provided anv guarantee of security of

granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, zecured of unsecured, to companies. firms,

LLP or any other parties. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (iit)(a) to 3(1ii)(f) of the order are

not applicable.
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Eazed on audit procedures performed and the reprezentation obtained from the management, the
company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees, of given any security or made any
investment requiring compliance with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iv) are not applicable to the company

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the

public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the

extent notified.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company in respect of product

covered, pursuant to the Bules made by the Central Government, the maintenance of costrecords

has been prescribed under section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of products covered and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and the gecords have been made and
maintained. We have not, howevermade a detailed examination ofthe same.

In respect of statutory dues:

(2} In our opinion, the Company has penerally been regular in depositing vadisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Emplovees' State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in rezpect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom
duty of Excize, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
March 31, 2024 for a period of more than 3ix months from the date they became pavable.

(k) Aeccording to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
GET, duty of custom_ duty of excize, value added tax, zales tax and zervice tax which have
not been recorded in the books of account.

There were no tranzactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered

or dizclosed as income during the vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961).

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of its loans or borrowings or in the pavment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations
recerved from banks and other lenders and representation received from the management
of the Company and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has
not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

(c) According to the informaticn and explanations given to us, the term loan taken by the
Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raized.

(d}) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raized on
short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the vear for long-term purposes
by the Company.
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(e} The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint venture or associate companies and
therefore the clanse 3(ix)(e) iz not applicable.
(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries. joint venture or associate companies and

therefore the clause 3(ix)(f) iz not applicable.

x. (a) The Company has not raized moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

{including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clanse 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the vear, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under.

xi. (a) No fraud by the Company and no material frand on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year,

{b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under mule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Goverment, during the yvear and upto the date of this report.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation
received from the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the company during the vear

xi1. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

Xiit In our opinion, the Company iz in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Aet, 2013 with rezpect to applicable tranzactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclozed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards (Ind AS-24) “Related Party Disclosures™ specified under
zection 133 of the act:

xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has an adequate internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act
which is commenszurate with the size and the nature of itz business.

{b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the vear and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
aundit procedures.

XV. In cur opinion during the vear the Company has not entered into any non-cash fransactions
with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be regiztered under section 45-1A of the

Reserve Bank of India Act 1034 Hence, reporting under clavse 3(xvi)(2). (b) and {c) of
the Order iz not applicable.
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{b) Inouropinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core

Investment Companies (Reserve Banlk) Directions, 2018) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi){d) ofthe Order iz not applicable.

xvil. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial yvear.

xviil. There has been no resignation of the statutory avditors of the Company during the vear.
Accordingly, reporting under clavse 3(xviil) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial azzets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and cur
knowledge ofthe Board of Directors and Management plans and based on cur examination of the
evidence supporting the asspmptions, nothing has come to ovr attention, which capses us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists az on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting 1ts liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance az to the fiture viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
bazed on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will getdizcharged by the Company as and when they fall doe.

xX. (a) The reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and clausze 3{xx)(b) of the order are not applicable in
respect of the audit of Financial Statements as the provisions of section 135(1) of Companies Act,
2015 are not applicable in view ofthe threshold limit specified therein. Accordingly, no comment
in respect ofthe zaid clanse has been included in this report.

xx1. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the order are not applicable in respect of the audit of

Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the zaid clauze has been included in

this report.
Place: Muzaffarnagar For PANKATE. GOYAL & CO
Date: 28.05.2024 Chartered Accountants

(Firm?s Begistration No. 006883C)

CAPANEATEUMAR GOYAT  Pariner
Membership No 075828)

UDIN: 24075828BEKHIDP4724
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BALANMCE SHE

I AS AT 31 MARCH, 2024

{Rs. in Lakhs)

| PARTICT LARS Mote Mo As ot 31% Maorch, 2024 As ot 31" March, 2023
ASSETS
{l} MOB-CUrTEnl 358e18
ial Progreiy, plant and supipaiein 31 AT S0 555 Ma
th Uapital waork-bn-propress A 2a06.48 [.23]1.75
el Other intanpible sssels 3B an (e
= H] Frmaneial assels
[§}] Irvisstmenis 4 [ L 11479
il Hher finoncial assets 5 257 RS B3l 4]
{1 Encome Tax Asscis (Met) 5 - e
3] Oither pn-curment asseis 7 147 4% LT T
Total mom-currend asseis 1,240, 7R TARET
1) | Currend assels
{4} Iy ennares g 10720 2844
i1} Frnaneial asqels — l i
[£F] Trade receivahles ] zA9z.13 | Atk 0
{iil Cash and cash egaivakonty 10 312 5.4
liity Dther bank balamoe 11 136108 [EE]
[13] Cieher currend nessecs 12 1024 Al [.523.1]
Toral Courrend Assils TATSIE G 21, 14
Tatal Assels 17,715,594 14 10%.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
i1y |EQUITY
fal Eugaty share capibal 13 1 A | AHEH]
by Db eduiby 505230 1407101
Total euity R 280741
LIABILITIES
{2} | Nom-turremt Habilicles
{4l Finarcipl Liahilvizes e ] e
151 Homromaings 111_ Lan] u DT
by Provisiom 5 21.75 1625
3] Drefermgd 1ax habihnogs (nelh o 52514 SUTS
-] CHher pem-currem! habilines 7] 21855 204253
Tatal mom-currend Habififes i, 3R R 494915
3 1 Cuwrrem Tiabdlsties
{al Finzncinl liahilities
] Borowings ]$ LR EATEE] ERTTE
{ii} Trade pavahles 1%
Ay | Toinl oustpnding dues of micro enterprises and smnll eniemnses L E
(B | Tomsl ot coes of crodmors ot o miere cakrpimss ad sal cerpric TO3.21 1 ’H'?_h
{b¥ | Diher current liabsliics 20 Z074 05 1 A531.47
Tzl current JLi.IliTHiH [ 4138
Total Equiry and Liabiieies 17,715, 0y 14, 10%.54

The sceompanying netes 1 to 30 are an imtegral part of the Ind AS Financial Staternents.
As per oul teport ol even dare aripchod
For PANKAJ K, GOYAL & CO Far sk om beball of the Beard of Dirgstors

L hareied Acoouiianie
Fagistration Mo (GERIC

CAPANKAI KUMAR GOYAL Sandiep Jxln Amju Jain Shlvam Sharnes ALK Dixhi
(Paitnar]

(Managing Director)  (Direcreed fUemimny Seceetard (UkieS Finanoial e
Mdembership ba.: 075528
Pl Wl e fFamica e
Lt 26 05 204
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2024
(Ra. in Lakhsp
FARTICULARS Muota For the Year ended Far the Year ended
Ma. 31" March, 2024 51" March, 2023
In¢om:
I Revenue from operatisns 71 15,562.6] 22.216.50
1 [Hher meome 2% G40, 05 Sik1,27
I} Total lneome 19.202.66 21.617.77
IV | Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 3.660.28 643120
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in ey [0 267,70
trade and work-in-progress
Employes benefils axpens: 25 H27.46 15818
Finance costs 36 37554 34500
Drepreciation amd amonization expens: 27 ELTTRE 55658
{nher expenses ek 101540 [ 1.5, 500,61
Total Exprenses (1Y) 18,292,560 11.912.28
V| Profit before exceptional items and tax 111 - IV} 08,590 0549
VT | Exceptional items - -
VIT_| Profiv(loss) before tax (Y - W} SN, Ly TS, 49
VT | Tax Expenge:
1) Current Lax 231.63 3853
{21 Less @ MAT credit available - -
(1) Deferred 1ax 2339 L6 By
1] Earler Yeaar Tax Aclpustment 980 15,501
X | Profit for the year (- VI 643,35 441,57
{iher Comprehensive Incoms
Iems that will not be reclassified io Profit or Loss:
X Remensurement of defined benefit linbilitv{asseis) i P
%1 | Income 1w peleting by items that will sl be reclassifiad v Prods or Loss
I | Onber Comprehensive Drvime fir the perind (X - XT) - -
AL | Telal Comprebemdve Ingome/{expense) for the perded (15 6 X100 4535 A441.57
EIV | Farmime et Egquuty Share %‘;
(1) Basic 48] 3.51
{ii} Ditated 4,61 .51
The accompanying notes 1 (o 30 are an integral part of the Ind AS Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date atiached
For PANKAD K. GOYAL & CO For apd om behalf of the Board of
Drectors
Chartered Accounianls
Rcsﬁlrallnn i, (0GRRSC
CAPANKAI KUMAR GOYAL  Sandecp Jain Anju Jain Shivam Sharma AR Dixdd
{Pariner)
fH:‘I.H.H.gi.LI.g Director) fibreetie) (Cemmpany Secredary) (Chicy Financial
hficer)
Membership Mo, 073828
Place; Muzmifamagar
Dte: 28032024
v
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03,2024
{Rs. in Lakhs)

FARTICULARS For thy Year ended 31 For thefYear ended 31*
March, 2024 Mareh, 2023

A ash Flow from Operating Aciivities

PROFIT BEFOEE TAX Dz g pLILE L

ADIUSTMENT FOR:

D previatien & Anwiization Expense 59042 556058
-Fusance Coss AT554 348,00
-Inperest Incoms L15.716) Ly

-Loss on sale of property, plant and cguipment - -

“Tax adjustment a S

s - S, 20 - BaT.47
OPERATING PROFIT BEEFORE WORKING CAPITAL 1 Bl 1 1,598,496
CHANGES

ADJUSTMENTS FOrR:

- (Inerease f Decrease Trade Receivables, loans, advances 340,59 (1652310
A ather assels

- (Inerease) Decrease Livvemories (RaX 52} [SUE.4T]
- Inereasedi Decrease) Trade Payables, other liabilities and {317, 16Yy 132124
provisiins
[LEEELY (h39. 54
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONES L2147 Liu 42
Litcome tax paid 231.63 AH.53
NET CASH FLOAW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES THY. 45 YR
B, | Cash Flow From Investing Activities
- Purchase of property, plant & cquipmend, Intangibles eic (1l by {200.77

- Sale of property, planl and cquprmsent -

- (Inerease Decrease in capital work in progress 1158524 (1231758

-Interest Recieved 1576 1.1l

NET CASH AVAILABLE { {USED) IN INVESTING {3 485.49) 11 A22.41)
ACTIVITIES
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{Bs. in Lakhs}

FARTICULARS For the Year ended 31° Fuor the Year ended 31 <
March, 2024 March, 2023
C. | Cash Flow Trom Financing Activities
- Receipsd Repayment) from Long Term Borrowings 131099 1.515.57
= Adjustment of Deffered Tax L] 18.50
150139 1.497.06
- Receipts/ Repayment) of Short Term Barrowings 168355 (T29.35)
= Inferess Faul (375,54) [EEHANI]
NET CASH AVAILABLE / {USED) IN FINANCING R 41472
ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) TH CASH AND CAEH 11335 [R1.81)
EQUIVALENTS
DPEMIMNG TN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11585 21765
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTE 2490 13505

Mates:

2, Cash and Cash Equivalenis: Cash and cash equevalents s above

Mz rship Moo 005E30

Place: MamiEaraeger
Phae: 2505 2074

.

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as st cutin Ind A5 7 “Slalemenl of Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents (Mode 104 1512 545
Other Bank Balanoes (Mote 1) a0k | 36150}
As per our repor of even diie srached
Feg Faxkad k. GOval & 0 For anl on belallal e Brosd of Dinsciors
Charifrid fiduieails
Iepristritions o, (HGHRKSE
CAPANKEAT KUMAR GUYAL Sandovg Jaia Anjis Jxin Shivanm Shariia A K. Dwin
Pafre .
{Managing Director) NI gy Seeremny (il Fivanciad (iffcers
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Equity Share Capital Current reporling peried
(R=, in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount

Balince ot the heginning of the current reporting period Lo 01% April 2023 1 400,00

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period

Changes i equity shure capital current reporting period -
Balanee at the end of the curnent reporting period e, 317 March 2024 (R CRRE
Previous reporting pericd

(K=, in Lakhs)

Particalars Amaunt
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting peried Le. 0154 April. 2022 14000
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period

Changes in equity share capital current reporting period -
Balance at the end of the current reporting perod fe. 31st March 2023 1,400.00

Orther Equity
Current reporting period
(R=, in Lakls)

Partecalirs Ealasxe a1 1he (s T T Riwlanid rnulil.li-.-dmd-. Trainder e Ay GllET Balance i qhe|
hegisaing olihe|  socoumting] Balance a8 dbef Comprehensve resalned chmpgze] o8d of the canncar
FEre policy | beginnlng of gk} Pocame Tor (he Cirming reparting period
reperteg g o perid carvedl CHTTEL YRar 3
[ ] AT reparting #0304
Ageil M2 k
perivdf

Share applisatien maoey peadng allcoment

ity ceimgaint of somsiand fifoaeisl
nErET

Reserve  pUapital Rewerve 13517 - - - - i PS5 IT
1

Sy [Securilies Prenees 2 : 3 ] P

fler Besens

Fotaaned Eamings 2270 3,35 2417.1%

Dt wsrmmaeaty threeph 4 Mber o - -] - - - =
Coemprcberave Tivoine:

Eqairy insinmncnds 1eraigh Uibee
Crmprebmeres Ieoms

EMeative portin of Cish Fluw Hedpe: - - & . A H o

Revabation Sarphes
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Excharge dilfererces on tnosaiing the
Treaing: ] sialirmmis of o i iperilian

Cdizr Deria o (iher Coieoche

lncnme

TRy Teveved ==l share wamesis

Tatal LR . | . g .14 1 3516
Previous reporting period
(E=. in Lakhs)
Pariculars Palanes arihe|  {harge || Beswred balare Tomal| Devidends Tramsler m | Aay siher chonge| Balwace @i the md
hegimning of the sccpuening| af the begioning] Camprehessive retpined | MAT Credia o ihe coreent)
v S ing] palicy erprior| i ke cormeni|  Daceme far fie arning | Enritkemenr FEpui g il
peried L B g prrors | repurting perind carreat yrar &
hpril 10EE ? rpiE R } ALY
Shaire ipplialion suss peadiag a kel
spmporian of compoasd el
TaTis
Emerve onBCapidl Reara 1351 13|
T
Sed e Prekam
lr Reservis
k= arrings (el (ke 41,57
Thebis imsirumonis Heaugh Ukber
Carapreherares Incume
Fipaiy fesmd moms denigh Lo
rehers e Incume
Effextin lae il Conbs Flofs Hedipes
B wabcdion Rurplai
st i
fupancial stiirents i 2
Chber genes of Ueher Copprebensse Inooirne
p rezcdvod aga i share wanants
Toial 13544 L L 157 . FE L]

~
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Capifal Reserve

deemed cost as at the date of transition,

AR PET (i et Of gVen |,1.1.'.:: 41I:||,'huc|
Far PANEAI K
£ horrered Aooa L
Repistontion Mo, DOSEASC

A PANKA) KEMAR GOYAL
[Partner)

Samdegp Jain

{Managing [Mrector)
Menshership Mo (173828
Place: MuralTarmagar
D 28.05.2024

.

Thiz Reserve was created on 31031996 upon revaluation of land & building and plani & machinery by crediting 1o
capital reserve the resultant surplus arising therefrom. The carrying value of these assets, measured as per the previous
(LA AP, as recogmized in the financial statements as at the date of ransition to Ind AS are continued 1o be used as the

Retained Earnings: This Reserve represents the cumulative profite of the Company, This Reserve can be utilized in
accordance with the provisions of the Compamies Act, 2013,

The accompanying notes | 1o 30 are an integral part of the Ind AS Financial Stailements.

Frwr and o0 behalf of the Board of Dineciors

Amnfju Jain

ikrerior

~

Shivam Sharma L N T

fCnmpeny Secreimyd et Fimancial (fioer
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31si March, 2024

1. Corporate Information:

Mohit Paper Mills Limited (the "Company" or "MPML ") is a public company incorporated under
the provizions of the Companies Act 1956 with a CIN:L21093DL 1992PT. C116600, domiciled in
India, with its registered office sitnated at 13413, Upper Ground Floor, East Patel Nagar, New
Delhi — 110008, India. The equity shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange ("BESE") in
India.

The company's business primanly consists of manufacturing Writing & Printing Paper and
Tissue Paper mainly in the domestic market. Soda Ash iz recovered as by-product. The
manufacturing facilities are situated in Bijnor, Uttar Pradesh.

2. Significantaccounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
(i} Statementofcompliance
Thesze financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Bules, 2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division
I of Schedule IIT of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS Compliant Schedule IIT), as
applicable to the finanecial statement.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these Standalone Financial Statements which
comprise the Balance Sheet az at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended as
on that date, and accounting policies and other explanatory information (together
hereinafter referred to as "Standalone Financial Statements" or "financial statementz").

(ii)y Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair valuesz or amortized cost depending
upon classification. Historical cost iz generally bazed on the fair walne of the
consideration givenin exchange of goods or services.

(iii) Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee ("INE"). These financial
statements are prezented in Indian rupees. All amounts have been rounded-off to the
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nearest lakhs, up to two places of decimal, unless otherwise indicated.

(iv) Useof estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires management to make judgments estimates
and assumptions that impact the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, labilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Estimates and onderlying assumption: are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Any revizion to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future
periods. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty &
critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following areas:

® Useful life of Property, plant and equipment - refer Note No. 2¢
Valvation of Inventory - refer Note No. 2

Estimation of Defined benefit obligation - refer Note No. 2 h
Estimation of current tax expenses -refer Note No. 21
Accounting for poverament srants - referNote No. 2 o
Provizions and Acemalz - referNoteNo 21

Contingencies - refer Note No. 21

{v) Measurement of Fairvalue

The Company measures financial instroments at fair value as per Ind AS 113 at each
balance sheet date. F air value is the price that would be received to zell an azzet or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement iz based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset of transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or In the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageons market for the azset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured vsing the azsumptions that market
participants would vse when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest The fair value measurement of a
non—financial asset takes into account a market participant?s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in itz highest and best use.

The Company vses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circomstances and
for which sufficient data are available to meazure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant ocbservable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. All aszets
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and liabilities for which fair value iz measvred or disclozed in the finaneial statements
are categorized within the fair valve hierarchy, described as follows, bazed on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whele:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (pnadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Tevel 1 that are obzervable for the asset
or liability, either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (i.e_ denved from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data
(uvnobservable inputs).

For aszetz and liabilities that are recopnized in the financial statement on a recorring basiz, the
company determines whether transfers have occorred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is siznificant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
Eecent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 Mareh 2024 notified Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Bules. 2024 which amends certain accounting
standards, and are effective 1 April 2024 These amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future

transactions.

Schedule ITT Amendment applicable from April 1. 2021: On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (“"MCA™) through a notification amended Schedule ITT of the Companies Act,
2013.The Company has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the said schedule.

Property, plant and equipment ('PPE")
i Recognition and measurement

Items of property. plant and equipment are measured at cost which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accomulated impairmentloszes, ifany.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any

ii. Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure iz capitalized only if it is probable that the foture economic benefits

aszociated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

~
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iii. Depreciation

Depreciation i3 caleulated on carrying value recognized as per previous GAAP of ttems of
property, plant and equipment and Intangible less their estimated residual values over their
estimated veeful lives uvsing the written-down method and iz generally recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Freehold land iz not depreciated.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and conszequent advice, the management
believes that itz estimates of nzefinl lives best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets. Depreciation has been provided on written down value method over
their estimated usefinl lives.

Degpreciation on additions’ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata bazis e from/ (upto) the date on
which azzetis ready for nse (disposed off) if any

iv. Derecognition

A property, plant and equipment are derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its uze and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains of losses
arizing from dizpozal of a tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net dizpozal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.
d. Intangible assets

Intangible aszet: are initially measured at cost. These items of other intangible azzetz are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost of an itern of Intangible asset comprizes its purchaze price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after dedvcting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended uze.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future econcmic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in Statement
of Profit and.oss as incurred.

Amortization
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Amortization iz calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated vuseful

lives using the straight-line method, and is included in depreciation and amortization expense in
Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimated wseful life of Computer software iz 3 vears.
Amortization method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and adjusted if appropriate.

De-recognition

Intangible assets are derecognized on disposal or when no futnre economic benefits are expected
from its use and dizposal.

e. Reclassification toinvestment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is
reclassified as investment property of vice verza at itz carrying amount on the date of
reclassification if any. The company does not have any investment property az on the date of
reporting.

f. Inventories
All inventoriez are initially recorded at cost. Cost represents all cost of purchase, cost of
contversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their prezent location and
condition. Cost for the purpoze of valuation iz determined by using the weighted average cost, net
oftaxes and duties eligible for credit and discounts.
Eaw materials, stores, consumables and spare parts
Faw materials, stores, consumables and spare parts held for vse in the production of finished
products are notwritten down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and
itis estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their netrealizable value.

Work-in-process

All work-in-process are valued at cost which includes cost of inputs, net of taxes and duoties
eligible for eredit and overheads up to the stage of completion.
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Finizhed goods

Finished goods are measured at lower of cost which includes cost of inputs (net of taxes and

duties eligible for credits) & overheads and the net realizable valoe.
By-Products

By Products are measured at lower of cost which includes cost of inputs (net of taxes and doties

eligible for eredits) & overheads and the net realizable value.
g. Impairment

i Impairmentofnon-financial assets
A property, plant and equipment iz derecognized on disposal or when no foture economic
benefits are expected from itz uze and disposal. Losses anzing from retirement and gainz or
lozzes arising from disposal of a tangible azzet are measured as the difference between the net
dizposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
Profitand Toss.

The carrying amounts of the Company?s non-financial assets. other than inventories and
deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there iz any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset?s recoverable amount
is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value inuse, the estimated future
cash flows are dizcounted to their prezent value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
the cazh-generating unit.

For the purpose of impairment testing, azsets are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing vse that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit™).

An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss if the estimated
recoverable amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit is lower than itis carrying amount.
Impairment loszes, other than those recognized on goodwill, that have been recognized in
prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreaszed or no longer exists. An impairment loss i3 reversed ifthere has been a change inthe
estitnates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss iz reverzed only to

the extent thatthe aszet's carrying.
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ii. Impairmentoffinancialinstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rize to a financial aszet of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial azzets are recognized mitially at fair value plus, in the case of financial azsets
not recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measered at amortized cost.

Subsequent Measurement

For purpoze of subzequent measurement financial azzets are clazsified in two broad categories:

*  Financial Aszets at fair valoe

* Financial assets atamortized cost

Where assets that measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the

statement of profit and loss orrecognized in other comprehensive income.

Afinancial assetthat meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost:

*  Business Model Test: The objective of the company?s business model is to hold the
financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows.

=  Cash flow characteriztics test: The contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Afinancial assetthat meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through OCI:

=  Buosiness Model Test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective iz
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

* (Cazh flow characteristics test: The contractnal terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Allother financial asset iz measured at fair valve through profit and loss.

All equity investments are measured at fair valee in the balance sheet, with value changes

recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for thoze equity investments for which the
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entity has elected irrevocable option to present value changes in OCL

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial azset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) iz primarily derecognized (ie., removed from the Company's balance sheet)
when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. of the Company has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in foll without material delay to a third party under a‘pazs-through' arrangement; and either
{2} the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the aszet,

but has transferred control ofthe asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to recerve cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through amrangement, it evalvates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
Impairment of financial aszetz

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the trade receivables or any contractual right
to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of
IndAS 113,

For this purpose, the Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
allowance cn the trade receivable balances. The application of simplified approach does not
require the Company to track changes in credit risk Rather, it recognizes impairment loss
allowance based onlifetime ECLs ateach reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Company nses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed defanlt rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
locking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed defanlt rates are updated and

changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.
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Financial Liahilities

All finaneial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and. in the case of loanz and

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable tranzaction costs.

Financial liabilities are clazzified as measured at amortized cost or FEVPL. A financial lability is
classified azs FVPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it iz derivative or i3 designated az such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair valee and net gain or
loszes, including any interest expense. are recognized in statement of profit and loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expensze and foreign exchange zains and losses are recognized in statement of
profit and loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
inclueding bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount i3 reported in the financial
statements ifthere iz a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there

i3 an intention to settle on a netbasis_torealize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit loszes are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured asthe present valee of all cash short falls (i e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the company expects to
receive).

Preszentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet and loss allowances for
financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
aszsets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial azset iz written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there iz no realistic prospect of recovery. This 1z generally the caze when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient

cash flows to repay the amouvnts subject to the write-off. However, financial aszets that are written
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off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's

procedures for recovery of amounts due.
h. Emplovee benefits
i  Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basiz and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected
to be paid e.z. under short-term cash bonus | Ex-gratia_ifthe Company haz a prezentlegal or
constructive obligation to pay thiz amount as a result of past service provided by the
employes, and the amount of oblizgation can be estimated reliably.

ii Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate eatity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the
related services are rendered by employees and payments due from the company.

iii Defined benefitplan

The Company pays specified monthly contribution to provident fund (PF) and employee?s
state inzurance (ESI). Contributions to these schemes are expensed in the Statement of Profit
& Losz. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the
Government of India. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its
monthly contributions.

Gratuity

Liabilities in respect of defined benefit plan in the form of Gratuity and Long-term
compenzated absences are determined based on projected vnit credit methed as at the
balance sheet date and are unfunded.

Group Gratuity cum Life Aszurance Scheme with the Life Insurance Corporation of India
has been taken in such a way that the gratuity benefits will be payable under an irrevocable
trust. The trustees appointed for the purpose of administering the Scheme ensure gratuity
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benefits iz with the LIC. The company zhall pay on demand by and to the LIC such
contributions az are required to secure Gratuity benefits to the employees.

The employee's gratuity fund scheme is managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India
15 a defined benefit plan. The prezent value of obligation iz determined based on Projected
Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of services as giving rise to additional
unit ifthera is employea benefit entitlement and meazures each unit separately to build up the
final obligation in terms of'the demand raized by them.

Be-measurements ofthe net defined benefit liability if any, is recognized in OCL
i TaxesonIncome

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

i  Currenttax

Current tax comprizes the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the vear and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previons years.
The amownt of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It iz measured

using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Current tax azzets and current tax liabilities including MAT are offset only ifthere iz a legally
ii  Deferredtax

Deferred tax iz recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of azsets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the comresponding amounts nsed
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses
and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it 13 probable that fiutnre taxable profits
will be available againat which they can be uzed. An exiztence of unused tax losses iz strong
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of
recent losses, the Company shall recognize deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convineing other evidence that sufficient
taxable profitwill be available against which such deferred tax asset canbe realized.
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Deferred tax azzets —unrecognized of recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognized / reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax iz measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
azzet iz realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The meazurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would flow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date_ to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are taken into account if there iz a legally enforceable right
to offset total deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities if
allowable, but they intend to settle deferred tax liabilities and assets and are correzpondingly
reflected as deferred tax assets and liabilities which will‘'may be realized simultanecusly.

iii Minimum Alternative tax ("MAT")

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT") vnder the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is
recognized as current tax in profit or loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of
MAT paid iz adjusted from deferred tax liability only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the period for
which the MAT credit can be carried forward for zet-off against the normal tax liability. MAT
credit recognized adjusted from deferred tax liability is reviewed at each balance sheet date
and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

i Cashand cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
depozits with an original matuerity of three months or less, which are subject to an inzignificant
rigk of changes in value. For the purpose ofthe statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Cash flow statement

Cazh flows are reported vsing the indirect method, whereby profit for the period iz adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferralz or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts of payments and item of income or expenses asscciated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.
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k. Earningspershare

Baszic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit’ (loss) for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for events of bonus issve and share split For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/
(lozs) per share, the net profit or losz for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

L Foreign currency transactions
i  Initial recognition

Tranzactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

ii Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences on restatement/zettlement of all monetary items are recognized in profit or
lozs.

m. Financialinstruments

Financial azzets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provizions of the relevant instrument and are initially measured at initial
cost and for investments held for trading or held for zale at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or izsue of financial aszets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition of financial assets or
financial liabilities if required. Purchase or zale of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame establizhed by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, ie. the date when the Company

commits to purchase or selithe asset.
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Financial Assets

Eecognition and Measurement

All Financial assets include Investments, Trade Receivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash
and Cash equivalents. Such assets are initially recognized at tranzaction price when the Company
becomes party to contractual obligations. The transaction price inclodes transaction costs unless
the asset is being fair valved through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification

Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the aszets were acquired. The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on such classification.

Financial aszets are classified asthoze measured at
1) amortized cost, where the financial assets are held solely for collection of cash flows arising

from payments of principal and / or interest.

(ii) At cost price where the investments are to be held for long term with no immediate intention
for sale and continue to be recognized at cost.

(iit} fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT), where the financial assets are
held not only for collection of cash flows arizing from payments of principal and interest but
also from the sale of such assets or are held for trading or for sale. Company does not have
any assets for sale. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognized in other
comprehensive income.

1v) Fairvaloe through profit orloss (FVPL), where the assets are managed in accordance with an
approved investment strategy that trizgers purchase and sale decizions based on the fair
value of zuch azszets. Company does not have any assets which are managed as investment
strategy. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair valve, with vnrealized gains and
lozses arising from changes in the fair value being recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which they arize.

Trade Beceivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cazh and Cash equivalents ete. are classified
for measurement at amortized cost. Inrezpect of particular investments in equity instruments that
would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss, an irrevocable election at initial
recognition is made to preszent subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Impairment

The Company asseszes at each reporting date whether a financial aszet {or a group of financial
azzets) such az investments, trade receivables, advances and security deposits held at amortised
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cost and financial azzets that are measured at fair value through other comprehenszive income are
tested for impairment bazed on evidence or information that iz available without undue cost or
effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances recognized if the credit quality of
the financial asset has deteriorated significantly since initial recognition.

Reclassification

When and only when the business model iz changed, the Company shall reclazsify all affected
financial assets prospectively from the reclazzification date as subsequently measured at
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, fair value through profit or loss
without restating the previously recognized gains, losses or interest and in terms of the
reclassification principles laid down in the Ind AS relating to Financial Instruments

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the assets has
expired, or hasbeen transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership. Concomitantly, 1fthe assetis onethatis measured at:

{a) amortized cost, the gain orloss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss;

fair value through other comprehenzive income, the cumulative fair value adjustments
previously taken to reserves are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset
represents an equity investment which iz taken at initial cost and continues to be so taken and for
other investments in which casze the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to
reserves is reclassified within equity.

n. Eevenue

Eevenue iz measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after netting
trade dizcounts, taxes volume discounts and sales refurns. Fevenuve from sale of goods is
recognized when significant risks and rewards have been transferred to buyer.

Liquidated damages and penalties recoverad from suppliers / contractors, in relation to property,
plant and equipment are credited to statement of profit and loss unless the delay has resulted in
extra cost of assets, in which caze the same are adjusted towards the earrying cost ofthe respective

azget.
Interestincome

Interest income primarily comprizes of interest from term deposits. Interest income is accrued on
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable
{(provided that it is probable that the economic benefitz will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably).
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Other Income

Other income is recognized when no significant uncertainty as to itz determination of realization

exists.
o. Governmentgrants

Government grants are recognized initially at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with grant.
They are then recognized in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis overthe periods in
which the company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grant is intended to
compensate. Government grants related to depreciable capital assets is recognized in profit or
loss over the useful life of the assetand in the proportions inwhich depreciation expenze on those

azzets iz recognized.
p- Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of fund.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the
cost ofthat asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

g. Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenves and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial
information 1s available. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Company's Chief Operating Decizion Maker (CODM) to make decizions about resources o be
allocated to the zegments and assess their performance.

The Company iz primarily engaged in the business of manufacture and zales of paper, mainly in
the domestic market.

The Board of directors of the Company, who have been identified as being the chief operating
decizsion maker (CODM), evaluated the company?s performance and aflocated resources based

on the analysis of various performance indicators of the Company as a single unit Accordingly,
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there is no reportable segment or any entity wide disclosure which are applicable to the company.

r. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision iz recognized if, az a result of a past event, the Company has a prezent legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Ifthe effect of the time value of money
iz material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is nzed, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible oblization or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whosze amount
cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are dizclosed
unless the possibility of cutflow of rescurces is remote.

Contingent assets nsually arise from vaplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the
possibility of an Inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are recognized when
the realisation of income is virtually certain then the related asset s not a contingent asset and its
recognitionis appropriate.

Acontingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits iz probable.

5. Commitments

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of aszets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are
reviewed at each reporting date.

t IndAS 116 —Leases
The Company does not have any finance leases. There are no instances in which the company is a
lessor,
Hence there 15 no impact on adoption of Ind AS 116,
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4, MOM-CURRENT INWESTMENTS
(Rz. in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As At 319 March, As At 319 March,
2024 2023
Investments in Equity Instrments: 110,749 11079
Mokt Petrochermicals (P) Lad. {Unguoted Shares) 1107880
Eqguity Shares of * 10¢- each fully pad-wp
TOTAL [ RELA 1E0.TY
3. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(R, in Likhs)
FARTICULARS As At 3% March, As At 317 March,
2024 2023
Mom=Current
Securiiy Deposit with Non-Government Authorities »Bn 2339
Balance with Government Authorities 2133 2133
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity® " 20110
Advance Apainst Capital Goods 24282 761.59
TOTAL 2ET.ES E32.41
*Bank deposits with oniginal maturity of more than [2 months from the Balance Sheet date, These deposits
include resteicted bank deposits pledged as security for bank guarantees amounting 1o zero in FY 2023-2024 and
previous year © 20,10 Lakhs
6, NON-CURRENT TAX ASSET (NET)
(Es. in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As At 31 March, As Ak 319 March,
2024 2023
Tax deducted at source and Tax collected at source -
(net of current tax provision iF any)
TOTAL -
v

\.

THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024

(128)



CGuomr

MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED

-

\.

7. OTHER NON -CURRENT ASSETS

[Rs, in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As At 31 Y March,

As AL 31 March,

20E4 2023
MAT credit available 14748 238.68
TOTAL 147 4% 238,68

4,  INVENTORIES
{As taken, valued & herebv certified by the management)

{Ks. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As At 317 March,

As AL 319 March,

2034 2023
Raw Materials & Chemicals 2.620,02 1, OIHL 2
Finished Goods 0773 23124
Stores & Fuoel 631,76 B33 50
Packing Materials & Others T 37.58
Unfinished Goods 24.58 42.81
Work-in-Process 2541 3354
Stock In transit - 25590
TOTAL 370721 2E4470

% TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As AL 3] March,

As AL March,

2024 2023
Secursd, considered good & =
Unsecured, considered good 249213 1,698.29
TOTAL 249213 | 69824

Trade receivable ageing schedule
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As at March 31, 2024

Considered fromed

Particulars Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payneent
Less than & |6 months = 1=2 23 years Ml ore than Tinal
et s | weAr YOS 3 VEATS
1 Undisputed Trode Receivables - 197344 395,59 42 43 16,949 6368 2,492 1p
Considered good
il Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
which have significant increase
i credit risk
iii Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
credit impaired
1w [hsputed Trade Receivables -
Considered good
v Drisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
which have significant increase
im eredit risk
iv Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
credit impaired
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Chpistanding for following [.u:l'iuds; from due date i:lrl"l,'l}'n'iq"l'ﬁ
Less than |6 months - 1-2 2-3 years | More than Taoral
& months 1 i LS 3 years
1 'I_.'|||.||.-.'p||1-,:-:1 Trade Recemvables - 1., HHEL 265 14797 7750 £ 47 A 0, gtk 2L

11 Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increaze
in credit risk

i |.|1'Ir|.i5ipl,||i_'{‘| Trade Recervables -
credil impaired

iv Disputed Trade Receivables -
Considered pood

v Drisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increaze
i credit risk

iv Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired

Where due date of pryment 15 not available date of transaction has been considered,
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10, CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS
iRs n Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As AL 31 March, As At 31" March,
2024 2023
Balance with Banks
Current Accounis® 7.56 274
Cash on hand* 3.56 033
Term Deposits with Bank*™* 200 .00
Chegue Receivables - .28
TOTAL 13.12 5.55
*Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at bank.
**Term deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less which is restricted bank deposits pledged as security
for bank guarantees amounting to Bs, 2040 Lakhs and previous year Bs. 2.00 Lakha.
11, OTHER BANK BALANCE .
(His. in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS AsAn 31 March, As AL 3L March,
2024 2023
Term Deposits (maturity of more than theee months bug leass 23608 13050
than twelve months*)
236,08 130,50
*Term deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months having remaining maturity of less than 12 months
from the Balance Sheet date. These deposits include restricted bank deposits pledged as security for bank
guaraniess amounling to © 236,08 Lakhs and previous year © 13050 Lakhs
12, OTHERS CURRENT ASSET (5. in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As AL 317 Maroh, As AL 31° March,
2024 2023
Adwvance to suppliers 543,45 130430
Prepaid Expenses Rl 1 2644
Other Current Assets™ 44258 1 50t ey
Interest pecrued on deposits .72 41.61
TOTAL 1,026.64 1.525.31
*Other Current Assets imcludes improst with staff and advance 1o others.
13, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(Hs. in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As A3 March, As Ar 31 March,
2024 2023
ALUTHORISED: 1, 75000 LAl e
175,000,000 (Previous year 1 75,00,000)
Egquity shares of 1= cach
v,
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ISSUED. SUBSCRIBED AND PAID U [RCTE R I ML

1 20,00,000 (Previous year 1H0,00,000)

Eguity Shares of © HK- each fully paid up.

TOTAL 140000 (TR

A, Bhares held by promoters ot the end of the vear

5, Promoter nanme Mumber of | %0 of el shires %o Change during the
Mo, Shares YGAr
1. M. Sendeep Jain 27,64 90) 19.75% Mo Change
2. Mrs. Anju Jain 30,77.584 21.98% Mo Change
i Plr. MBlodur Jain 17,300,818 12.36% No Change
4, IMm. Shubhi Tain 1||.=15.:J[:-||I 7.AR%; Mo Change
|5 IMr Sanjeev Gupta 11 ,Hlﬂl LR Mo Change

Meither ony bonus shares hove been issued nor any shares hove been bought back. Further, no shares have
been issued for consideration other than cash.

", Reconcilianon of muomber of Shares aanstynding at the hl.':}_:ll'lfﬂﬂ}_l_ and at the end of the reporiing
period:

Particulars Asoat 31.03.2024 Aot 31032023

Mo, of Shares “in Lakhs | Ma. of Shares " in Lakhs

L'qu[tl\-' Shares 111,|t:-xt;|nd;ing at the 1,00 O CE) 1 20000 1, eh AW TR | A (M)
berinning of the vear

Add: Equity Shares 1sswed during the - -
year

Less: Equity Shares bought back’ - -
redecmed during the yvear

Equity Shares outstanding at the end of 140,00 10 | 260000 1,40, 00,000 (LR
the year
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14, MOWN-CURRENT BORROWINGS
(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As Al 3] March, As AL 31 March,
2024 2023

Secunad:

Loan from Bank

- Term Loan

LIl 22293 43887

Yes Bank 2ET4.96 1.047.63

= Vehicle Loan

LIHI 13,13 2037
HDFC Bank 7023 Q564
AARL25 160251

Unisecumed:

= Loans from Directors la. 16 Ré.09
- Intercorporate Loans 4 52 B2 533

G267 GRRE.AZ
TOTAL F.E00 02 220,

Mature of Security for Secured Barrowings are given below:

Ty 1 ] I H 0

* The Term Loan from Union Bank of India of R 22293 Lakhs (Previous Year of Rs . 43887 Lakhs) is
gecured by way of Parvi- Passu charge over immovable assets) curvent assets of the Company and eguitable
moriguse of factory land & building situated at Village Aospur Ko and Abdulpur Munno, Magina Road,
Bijnor and property at East Patel Magar, New Delhi. Term Loan of Rs. 22293 Lakhs include UUGCEL of Rs.
376,00 Lakhs, which has been saneticnsd during the time frame of Covid pandemie, for the working capital
assistance amd has been repand ofT e the extent.

. The loan is further secured by way of personal guarontee of promoters/directors of the company.

. Rate of lnterest of Term Loan from UBL s EBLR 42,75 %o, charges on monthly rest, Further i case of
LGECL rate of interest is 7.50 %4, to be charged on monthly nest.

- Current Maturity of Termn Loan amounting to Hs. 19045 Lakhs, has been shown under the head other
current liabilitics.

» The company does not have any continuing defaults in repayvment af any of the loans and interest thereon, ag
at the reporting date.

Term Loan from Yes Bank

- The Term Loan from Yes Bank of 287496 Lakhs (Previows Year 104763 Lakhs) is secured by way of
Pari- Passu charge over all the current assets’ inumovable assets of the Company and equitable monpage of
factory land & building situsted at Village Asspur Ko and Abdulpur Munna, Magina Road, Bijnor and
property at East Patel Magar, Mew Delhi,

. Tha loan is further secured by way of personal guarantee of promotersidirectors of the company.
Rate of Interest of Term Loan from UBI is Repo Rate +3.45 %, charges on monthly rest.
- Current Maturity of Term Loan s B 19559 Lakhs, has been shown under the head other current liabilities
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- The company docs not have any continuing defanlts in repayment of any of the loans and interest thereon, ag
at the reporting date.

Vehicle Loan from Union Bank of Indis

L3 The Term Loan from Yes Bank of 13,13 Lakhs is secured by way of hypothecation of Vehicle & personal
guarantee of directors.

L3 Rate of Interest of Yehicle Loan from URBI is (8.05 to 9.80) %4, changes on mo nthly rest

. Current Maturity of Term Lowan is 7.32 Lakhs, has been shown under the head other current liabilities

. The company does not have any continuing defaults in repayment of any of the loans and interest thereon, a5
at the reporting date.

Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank

- The Term Loan from HDEC Bank of 70,23 Lakhs s secored h}' way ufh}:pq‘.!iluu::!iuu of Viehicle & e raomil
puarantes of directors,

. Rate of Interest of Vehicle Loan from HDFC is £7.50 10 8,51} %, charges on monthly rest,

. Current Mamrity of Term Loan is 26.73 Lakhs, has been shown wnder the head other current labilities

- The company does not have any continuing defanlts in repayment of any of the loans and interest thereon, as
at the reponting date.

15, PROVISIONS {Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As A 314 March,

As A 31 March,

2024 2023
Provision for employes benefit (refer note 3003 21.75 16.23
21.75 1623

16, DEFERBRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

{Rs. i Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

Az Ar 31 March,

As AL 31 March,

2024 023
At the beginnimg of the yeat 50075 442 86
Charge / Credit to Statement of Profit and Loss 2339 156 48
623.14 599,75 |
Provision for employves beneiins
At the end of the year 62314 S04 .75

17, OTHER NON =CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Ra. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As Ar 314 March,
2024

As Al 317 March,
2023

.

~
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Puper 3dills

Creditors for capital goods and retention for performance 218599 204253
security
TOXTAL 2,185 9 20253

18, CURRENT BORROWINGS
{Rs. m Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As AL 31 Mareh, A ALSTY March,
2024 2023

Sevured:

Leans from Banks

Cash eredit facilities-Union Bank 226489 121605
WTL from HDFC Bank PRSI -
Cash eredit Facilities-Yes Bank {30.E3) 453 g
Cash eredit Facilitics-HDFC Bank (E30.52) -
Dermand Loan from Yes Bank TH0L00 STH0 00
TOTAL 3 B53.54 2,165 59

Cosh Credit Limit from Uinion Bank of India

. Union Bank of India has sanctioned a OO Limit of Rz, 23000000 Lakhs, which is secured against
hypothecation of Stocks & book debis ol the company and collateral security of land, building & entire {ixed
asgels of the company.

L3 The loan is further secured by way of personal guarantee of promoters’directors of the company.

- Rate of Interest of Cash Credim Limat from UB] s EBLR 40065 %%, charges: on |||l.:-|:|.L|||}I regd,

L] The company does not have any continuing defaolts i repayment af any of the loans amd interest theneon, as
at the reporting date.

- o -

L] Yes Bank has sanctoned a OO Limut of R 1000000 Lakhs, which is secured agamst hypothecation of
Stocks & book debts of the company and coliateral security of land, building & entire fixed assets of the
SOy,

] The loan is further secured by way of personal guarantee of promoters‘directors of the company.

- Rate of Interest of Cash Credit Limait from Yes Bank is Repo Bate +3,.35 "%, charges on monthly rest

. The company does not bave any continuing defaults in repaymeent of sny of the loans and interest thereon, as
at the reporting date.

Dreanand Loan from Yes Bani

13 Yes Bank has sanctioned a working capital demand loan of Rs, T50.00 Lakhs, which is sub-limit of Cash
Credit Limit, which is fsecured against hypothecation of Stocks & book debts of the company and collateral
security of land, building, & entire fixed assets of the company,
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. I'he loan is further secured by way of second charge by way of personal guarantee of promoters/directors of
the company,

- Rate of Interest of Cash Credit Limit from Yes Bank is Repo Rate +3.10 %, charges on monthly rest

- The company does not have any continuing defaulis in repayment of any of the loans and interest thereon, as
al the reporting date

Cash Credin Limit fromn HDFC Bank

- HDFC Bank has sanctioned a OC Limit of Rs. 1.500.00 Lakhs, which is secured against hypothecation of
Sitocks & hook debts of the company ancd collateral SECUTITY aof lanad, hl.LIlI.III'IE & entire fixed assets of the
COMFNY.

. The loan is further secured by way of personal guarantee of promoters’dircetors of the company.

w Rate of Interest of Cash Credat Limnt froom Yoes Bank s A0 MOLR 0, 55%,, chixrges on meomthly rest,
The company does not have any comtinuing defaults in repayment of any of the loans snd interest thereon, as
at the reporting date.

Dranand Loan from HOEC Bapk

3 HDFC Bank has sanctioned a working capital demand loan of Bs. 1500000 Lakhs, which s sub-limi of
Cash Credit Limit. which is secured against hypothecation of Stocks & book debis of the company and
collateral security of land, building & entire fixed aszers of the company.

. The loan is further secured by wav of second chanre by way of personal guarantee of promaotersidirectors of
the company.

3 Rate of Interest of Cash Credit Limidt from HDEC Bank iz 1M T-Hill charges on monthly regt.

- The company does mol have any Ci,11'|t1n|.|i|'|l: defauls in repayment i_ﬂ":m.:.' of the loans and imterest thereon. o
at the reporting date.

19, TRADE PAYABLES
{Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULAR B As At 31 March, As AL 31 March,

2024 2023
Dues of Micro Emterprises and Small F':nh_'rprim_':s - =
{her tride F".‘""hl‘:"' TR |, 7THu
TOTAL T03.21 178993

Mote | The company identifly suppliers belonging 1o Micro and Small calegory under MSMED Act, 2006 on the
baszis of declarations o the effect made as mandared for them under the s@e, {.Lil1hlL|J|:I'iI1_$.t ahsence of such
e larations from iy windors, such does have been deemed as il

Trade payvable apeing schedule

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 vears bore than 3 Total
I wear YERrs
i MSME - = - - 3
i (hers a9 24,30 : TO3.Z1
1 [isputed dues - MSME - - = = -
v I'.I:si]'_nllc-,l dues = Oihers = - > D i
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Asat Mareh 31, 2023

~

Particulars Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1-2 years 23 years More than 3 Timal
| wear ¥EOrs
i MSME - - - -
i Chers 1. 70861 1.13 4,53 1556 1, 78003
ili Disputed dues - MSME - - - -
iv Disputed dues - Others

[}

Where due date of payment is not available date of transaction has been considered.

0, OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

[R3. i Lakhs)

PARTICULARS A AL 31 March, As Al 31 March,
2024 2033
Advance from disiributors & others 23689 33R.949
S1.ul|.|.:|u|3.- lighilitics H2 .55 92.| |
Crther payables® 108292 T11.91
Diealers Security 25900 5.00
Current maturities of Long-term debis A0 205,75
Incoime Tax Pavable 12.61 .7
TOTAL 207405 | 145347

21. REYENUE FROM OPERATIONS

*Others poyables includes expenses pavable. creditors for expenditure payable 1o suppliers,

[Hs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended 31 ™
March, 2024

For the Year ended 31 9
March, 2023

the customers.

\.

Sale of Products

Paper L& 56261 2192757
Saods Ash - EELRE
TOTAL LB 36261 22 21450
Revenue disagpregation by geography is as follows:

Greography

Irulia 18,153.84 2 H6.50
Outside India A0E.TT7 -

In presenting the geepraphical information, sale of product revenue has been based on the geographic location of
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Information about major customers:
e customer represents £.96% or more of the Company™s total revenoe duwring the vear ended 31 March 2024
{31 March 20235 15%)

Reconciliation of revenue recopnized with the contracted price 15 as follows:

PARTICULARS For the Year ended 31 ™| For the Year ended 31

March, 2024 March, 2023
Contracted price I8, 835.02 22,268.67
Reduction towards varinble consideration components 27041 5317
Revenuwe recognised 18,562.61 22,216,510

Ihe reduction towards variable consideration comprizes cash discount, tade discount and rebates ee.

22, OTHER INCOME
IRs. im Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the Year cnded 31 * | For the Year ended 31 ¥

March, 2024 March, 2023
Interest Income 1576 1171
[ale of Electricity 611.EY 3dl.14
Exchange Rate Fluctuation 3.35 5.0
Rental Incone 1.00 0Tz
hlers, including Governiment Grants 305 320
TOTAL 640,05 AvE2T

23, COST OF MATERIAL CONSLMED

[Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the Year ended 21 = For the Year ended 31
Mlarceh, 2024 March, 2023
Bagasse 4 008 502422

Wikl P'ilp-q_'r:

- Imported 1,209 88 0077

- Indigenous - 1,200 848 15.32 916,10
Oriher Material 441.Th 54088
TOTAL 560028 A AR 20
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24, CHANGES IN INVENTORIES

(RKs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the Year ended For the Year ended 31 0«
31" March, 2024 March, 2023
Opening Stock:
Finished Goods 221.29 18508
Sermi - Fimshed Goods 42 81 263123
Work in process 3354 297 .64 11702 56533
Closing Stock:
Fimshed Goods 7T 221,29
Semi - Finished Croods 24 58 4281
Work in process 2541 157.72 13.54 297 64
G0# 267.649
TOTAL lh s 267 .64

25, EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS EXPENSE

(B, in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended 31+
March, 2024

For the Year ended 31 ¢
March, 2023

Salaries, Wages & Bonus TEAH.2] T2h.05
Contribution e Provedent and Other Fumlds 31,20 25 5%
Staft Welfare Expenses 105 L]
TOTAL 82746 TSRR

26, FINANCE COSTS

[Fs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the Year ended 31 7| For the Year ended 31 4

March, 2024 wiarch, 2023
Interest & Charges on Bank borrowmg for working capital 215,39 211
Interest on Term Loons e B9 w31
Interest To Oihers Tixe 7.58
TOTAL 375.54 348.00
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27, DEPRECIATION AND  AMORTISATION EXPEMNSE

.

{Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

Far the Year ended 31
Mareh, 2024

'| For the Year ended 31 ¢

March, 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 59042 556.58
Amaortization of Intangible asset -
TOTAL 50042 550 58

28. OTHER EXPENSES

[R&. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the Year ended 31 7 For the Year ended 31 ¢
March, 2024 March, 2023

Manufacturing Expenses

Chemicals Consumed 332214 4,200.43

Stores & Spares T 27 bR

Povwer & Fuel 528402 7.709.89

Repair & Maintenance £r2x 2354 61

Faw Matenial, Mixing. Loading & Sorting 202,90 112,80

Laboratory Expenses 0.92 1.83

Boiler Feeding Expenses 63.25 10,:445,71 450 13,123,540

Helling & Distribution Expenses

Commission & other Selling Exp. 29879 25330

Trade Tax - 298.79 1.84 25514

Establishinent Expenses

Addvertisement & Poblicity 0.%3 0.8

Office & General Exp 2627 29.87

Fees, Rate & Taxes 23.54 2569

Insurance Charges 30.32 28.20

Legal and Professional Charges 54 87 2741

Printing & Stationery 3.48 .64

Communication Charges 4.47 3.48
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Travelling & Conveyance 5.53 0,50k
Wehicle Runmng & Mumtenance Expenses 387 1.85
Auditors Remuneration 1.20 I54.59 1.20 12200}
TOTAL 10 R 09 13, 500,63

Pavowent to Auditor

Audit Feues 1.20 (31 ]

Add 2 GET —_

1.20 1.20

20, EARMIMGS PER SHARE (EPS)

(K5, in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the Year ended 31 | For the Yeor ended 51 *
March, 2024 hMarch, 2023
i1 Met Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss H45.35 491 .57

attributable to Equity Sharcholders

i} Mumbrer of equity shares wsed as denominator for 1 A0, (00 1A ERO
caleulating EPS

i} Mumber of Diluted Eqguity Share 100,00, (R 1,400, D00k ERe
iv)  Basic Eaming per share 461 3.51
vy Diluted Earning per share 4.61 151
wi}y  Face value per equity share 10 10

30.Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
AL Accounting classafication and fair values

The ﬁ'.l!uwmt; table shows the CITTInE amounts and finr value of financial assets and fnanel iabihoes
including their level in the fair value hicrarchy:

(Rs. in Lakhs}

Asal 31.03.00014 Aot BLAE 2025
Hoee Levelofl FYWTPL| FWTORT] Amartised Toml | FYTFL] FYTOH Amortised Tl
hierarchy Cest]  Carrying Cast | Carring Value
Walue
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Mon-current
Inveastment in d 3 1107y L1749 Wikt 103y
ity
imsrmeniE
Cither financinl | b ¥ 28785 2ZRT.HS R3Z.41 232,41
REEIE]
LB T
Trade [} 3 - - 249213 2ANE 03 - = R e B.0%H 29
Resooivabs
Cash and vash H] 3 - - 13:12 13,12 . - 3,34 334
quivalents
Hank bulances a 3 . 23605 TEALOE - 150, 540 13k50
ather than
ahaove
3t hesrs L 3 b . 3.72 3.72 i b 41.61 41.61
Total Finanekal . . 4 A 3.143.69] 114369 ] 3 241405 241595
[ET S
Finareizl
limhilities
FR [T R ETRRET
Harrawings c El ’ | -3.801.92] 3,801.92 . 2,290.93 2.290.93
Current
Lizbility
Bararaings a 3 b -1 3.833.34] 3 Bi3.54 i - ) RN 216099
Asoal 31,03, 2024 Asat 31052023
Harg Byl anf F¥TIFLY FYTURT] . Aamartised Tuoral FVYTIFL] FYTOR] Aunoitiaed Tastal
hierarchy Cost| Camrying Cost| Camyving Value
Value
vl pavabkles o 3 - - TOX21 TO3.21 - - 1. 780,03 1.7
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| Adyarsce 2 3 2689 23650 33890 118,99
recarivid o
Hibisgribuers and|
1 hers
_-':"thirh‘.-'ﬂ"h'i a 3 R A 115871, 15807 T o #13.73 K13.73
|
Dvalers N 3 3 A 259,06} 254800 - ] 5.4 5.00|
FSccuny
T
fLinpial A 3 R 5| 167491 16749 R " 55.50 355
| Creditors
! 1 z % =
:f"h:n.'l'ul {5 3 - - L0 A - - TR T 2595, T
maluritics
ol leng-torm
Pl
| Tkl Taitaanesial - - - - 294475 254474 - - 1.19840% LGRS
linkilities

B. Fair valwe hierarchy

Lewvel 1: Quoded prices (unadjusted) in the active markets for identical as=ets and liabilities.

Lewel 2: Inpur other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either
directly (1.2, as prices) or mdwectly (e, derived from prices)

Level 3 Input for the pssets or Lisbility thot are not based on observable market data (unobservable input]

Motes:

. Fair valmtion of finamcil assets and hahilities with short term maturitees s considered as apprc:-tim::tc 8]
respective carrying amount due o the short-term maturities of these instruments.

b. Fair value of non-current financial assets bas not been disclosed as there is no significant differences
betwesn carrying value and fair value.

. The Fair value of borrowings have been disclosed at camrying value which is considered to approximate to
toir value

d.  Camying value of unquoted equity instrument has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value
because carrving value 1% considered as approximate o Gur value and carrving value represents the best
estimate of fair value within that range.

Reconciliation of the value
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Unlisted |':(,]I.I.i|!.' Instrument

Asat 01 Apnl 2022 11Ty

Awquisition -

Giains{losses ) recognized -

. J
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- in other comprehensive income -

Asat 31 Murch 2023 110749

Acquisition -

Giains/{losses) recognized -

- in other comprehensive incom.e -

As at 31 March 2024 | Lo T

There are no such transfers between Level |, Level 2 and Level 3 duning the year
C. Financialrizsk management

The Company?s activities expose it to market nisk, liquidity nisk and credit risk. The Company?s primary nisk
management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The
Company7s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analvze the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and contrels, 2nd to moniter such risks and compliance
with the same. Risk assessment and management pelicies and processes arereviewed regularly to reflect chanpes
in market conditions and the Company?z activities. The Board of Directorz and the Andit Committes iz
responsible for overseeing the Company7s risk assessment and management policies and processes.

Thiz note explains the sources of risk which the entity iz expozed to and how the entity manages the risk in the

financial statements: -
isk Exposure arising from Mleasuremenl Muanagement
Credit nisk Cash and cash equivalents, trade | Aging analysis [mversification of bank deposits and
receivables and finencial assets credit limits
measured at amortized cost
Lecpunchity risk Business commutment and other | Credit rating Availability of commatted credit hnes
Tk e arad hurr\c'-wlnj_i facthiies

Intenest rate nsk

The Company™s main interest rote risk anses from long-term borrosvings with varhle rates, which expose the
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Any rise in market rate of interest effecting valuvation of finoncial
instrements, Anancial assets and financial liabilities bave been regulasly analyzed for mitigational measure.
Exposure to interest rate risk

['he interest rate profile of the company™s interestbearing financial instruments as reported to the management 15
a5 fol lows;

[R5 in Liakhs)

Pamicula re Morminal Amount

31* March, 2024 31* March, 2023

Fimancal Assets Labalities

Wartahle -rate instruments

Long term borrowings 3 R0] 92 220093
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Shoet Term Borrowings 427363 246575

(Profit) or loss

Particulors 50 bp incresse 50 bp decrense

31° March 2024

fartable =rate Insiruments 21 610 [ 2 1.665)

31+ March 2023

‘ariable -rate instruments 2378 [23.78)

ilirﬂhulﬂniﬂﬂqrmhﬂhﬂmdmw

The Company does not have any fixed-rate Ninancial assets or financial lHabilities at fair value through profic or
loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates al the reporting date would not affect profit or foss,

1 Rizk IEmagement framework

The (.'L'tlnnﬂn}-'.‘% hlmrl.i ﬂf'dl'rul_'lurx Ims |:,'-'\.-1..'I'.'I.|t ru;spurmlb:!'i'ly I-l,;-r 1|'|-..: L;.'NIIII‘:-EI..‘,'I'IITIQTI1 and u\.‘ur.\ighl -;1|- l|:u.r
companys risk management frameoork. The Company™s risk management policies ane established o
identify and analyze the risks faced by the company, o set appropriate fisk limii and controls and 1o
menitor nsks amd adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are revieved regularly to
reflect changes in marcket conditions and the companys  activities.

The Companys awdit committes oversess how management monitors compliance with the companys risk
mansgement policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management tramework in
relation to the risks faced by the company. The audit committes is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit. Internal audit undenakes boath regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the resulis of which are reported 1o the audit cornmittes,

i) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss wo the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
Fanls to meet ils contracisal ubhgahuux, aml arises prlnl;lpu“:,- fromm the |,:|rr||.'|'|::113,-"'5 receivahles from
customers and loans. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

1) Trade receivables
The !_'u11'|pi|n"-,r hias established a crednt |'_||.:-|n:3.-' under which each new customer 15 ilnigl}'rml il'ld'i'\-'l:il.hil.l.l}' for
creditworthiness before the payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company™s review
includes external ratings, il they ane available, financial statemenis, eredit ageney information, industry
information and business intellipence. The Company evaluates the customer credentials carefully from trade
spurces before appoinument of any distributor and only Anancially sound parties are appoinied as
distributors. The Company secures adequote deposits from its distributor and hence risk of bad debt is
limited. The credit outstamding is sought to be limited to the sum of advances/deposits and credic limit
determined by the company.
The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated From top customer and top
I‘!'\-'l: Cuskomiers:

Particulars “ear ended Year ended
31.03,2024 31032023

Revenue from top Customer A O5%, 1594

Revenue from tep five Customer LR R 2%

L .
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The Company bazed on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts
available in relation 1o default and delays in collection thereof, the eredit risk for trade receivables is
considered low. The Company estimates its allowamee for trade receivable using lifetime expected credit
lozs. Individual receivables which dare known o be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrving
amount of trade receivable and the amount of the loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
within other expenses.

Concentration of vi_unﬂ"lc.u.nl  oredn risk

The ageing of cutstanding balance of receivables having more than [0% concentration of credit is within 30
days, and the tranzactions with them are at arm™s length, There is no risk of credit concentration as far as
tranzactions with them are concerned.

The following able provides information alourt the exposure to eredit risk and expected credit loss for rade

receivables:

Particulars Giross Cammying Loss allowance | Canmrying amount
amount

A1.03.2024

Lass than 6 months 197344 - 197544

More than & months S18.69 - 518.69
249213 - 249213

31032023

Less than & months 140026 - L i 26

bore than 6 monthsa ZUR03 - 298.03
L6 29 = 1. &uE. 29

iv) Cash and cash equivalents
The company holds cash and cash equivalents of 221312 lakhs at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:7:5 54
lakhs). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and cash on hamd

i

Liguidity Risk

Laguidity nsk 15 the nsk that the Company will encounter difTiculty in meeting the obligaticens associated
with its financial Habilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company s
approsch to manage liguidity 15 1o have sulficient 'quu:ldil}-' o meset it Habihties when 111:::_L' are due ., under
both normal and stressed circumstances, without incurring lesses or nsking damage to the Company™s
reputation

M.il.l'lilj;l;_:lﬂl_‘l‘ll TS the liguidity risk by I.'l'll_rl'lil,l_,'irll'lj_l cish How forceasts on a penodic basis and 111?|1|,|ri|:,r
profiles of financial assets and liabilities. This momitoring takes into account the accessibility of cash and
cash equivalents and additional undrmwn financing facilities,
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The following able provides details regarding the contraciual maturities of significant financial liabilities:

Particulars Less than I 1 5 yvears | More than 5 WEATs Toral
I year

31.03.2024

Borrowings {incheding 427563 3.6014.72 187.20 BOT5.55%

crerrent |r|.a.||.tr|t'i1.'1:|

Trade Payables TO3,21 - - Tz, 21

Other Finencial Linbilitics 165396 - - 1.653.96
GEGETT R 3.604.72 187.2 1,432.72

31032023

]!errqu-lnlgs. {lm,'ll,u_llnt; 246574 2. HEE TR 187,200 4. T56,67

currant maturitias)

Trade Payables 1,780,493 i - 1,789.93

Oiher Financial Liabilities 1.1537.71 - - 1.157.71
541338 2.103.73 187.20 T.T04.31

wit  Market Risk

Market risk 1% the nisk that i,'hil.l'll[l;s 1 market [\-ri-;;uh such as Fi,yrmf_:n cx::l‘umt;-;' rates amd imterest risted

will affect the company™s income: or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The objective of
markel risk management is o manage and conirol market risk exposures within acceptable parameiers,
while optimizing there turn

vitl  Foreign Currency Risk
The company™s policy is 10 ensure that the time gap between executing the transaction for import { expopt
aml the date for making payment / receiving payment 15 restricted o less than a week so that foreign
exchange currency risk is mitigated. The carrving amounts of the company™s foreign exchange monetary
items as at the end of reporting peried i3 nil and previous year was also nil
. Emploves Benelits

8, Assets and habilities relating to employee benefits

A oat 31 March As ol 51 March
g PALPR]
Hon-current
Liability for compensated absences - -
Current
Linbility for compensated absences 5.80 1.04
550 1.04
Current
Grratunty {mszet) 15.94 15.1%

For details about the related employee benefit expenses, nefer to note ne. 25,
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h. Defined contribution plan
The Company™s provident Tund scheme and employee™s state insurance (ESD) fund schemwe are defined
conteibution plans. The Company has pecorded expenses of © 22 47 lakhs (31.03.2022: ° [7.92 lakhs) undes
provident fund scheme and ° .73 lakhs (31032022 ° 7.63 lakhs) under ESI scheme. These have been
included in note 235 emplovees” benefils expenses, in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c.  Defined plan

Gratuity (funded)

The employees™ gratuity fund scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India is a defined benafit
plam, The present value of obligation is determined based on actuamal valuation using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefi
entitlement and measures cach umi separately 1o build up the final obligation. The Company made annual
contributions te the LI1C of India,

The above defined benefit plan exposes the Company to fallowing risks:

laterest rate risk:
The defimed bepefit obligation calenlated wses a discount rate based on poverniment bonds, 1F bond vields
fall. the defined benefit obligation will tend 10 increase.

Salary inflation risk:

Higher than expected increase in sslary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk:

This iz the risk of variability of results due 10 unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality,
withdrawal, disability and reticement. The efTect of these decrements on the delined benefil obligalion 15 not
straight forward and depemds upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting eriteria. [t
is important not lo overstate withdrawals because in the financial analvsis the retirement benebit of a short
career employes typically costs less per vear as compared to a long service employee.

The Company actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching
the expected cash outflows anising from the employves benefit obligations, The Company has not changed
the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods. The funds are managed by specialized team of
Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Funding

Gramity is a funded benefit plan for qualifying emplovees, 353% of the plan asserts are managed by L1C and
balance managed by the management, The assets managed are highly liguid in nature and the Company
does not expect any significant liquidity risks,

The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit plan as nequired under Ind-AS 19 - Employee
Benelis:

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit oblipation

Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023
Present value of ahligation at the beginning of the year 13.01 21.13

Benefits paid Current = .

Service cost 617 6.76
Interest cost 0.9z 148
Actuarial losses{gains) 270 (16,36}
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 22,80 13.01
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Reconciliation of the present value of plan assets
Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023
Fair valye cyf]ﬂqn as=ets at the th'inning of the year 637 5.93
Contributions - -
Interest Incomse 046 043
Benefits paid - -
Acturial Gain'( Losses) 0.03 .01
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 686 637
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars Year ended 31 Yoear ended 31
March 20024 March 2023
Current service cos 6.17 6.76
Interest cost 0.92 .48
Interest ineonme {1461 (0,43}
Previous year Adjustment - (T.81)
Expenses recognized in profit and loss account 6.63 -
Remeasuraments recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023
Actuarial gaindloss on the defined benefit obligation {2700 16.36
Return on plan assets exchuding inferest income 0.03 0.01
Adjustments 267 (1637)
Amount recognized in other comprehensive incone — -
Plan azsels
Plan assets of the Company are held as bank balance and under LIC of India
Actuarial assumplions
Particulars MAsat As at
31 March 2024 (Per 31 March 2023 (Per
Annum} Amnum
Economic assumptions 5.00%, 6.00%
Discount rate 6.95% 7200
Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on Indian Assured Lives Mortalioy (TALM) (2012-14)
rates,
>,
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Sensitivity analysis

Reesonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounis shown

helow,

PARTICULARS As at 31 March 2024 Asat 31 Marcch 2023
Increase | Drecrease Imcrease | Decrease

Dizcount rate {0.50% movemeat) (1.15) 1.24 (4.53) 488

Future salary growth mate (0.50% movement) 1.1% (L.15} 332 4.1

The above sensitivity analysis is based ona change in an azsumption while holding all other assumptions
constant, In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the asswmptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same methods (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method
at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefin liability
recoptized in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared 1o
the prior period.

Expected benefit paymenis
Undiscounted amount of expected benefit paymenis for next 10 years:

Particulars As at 31 March Asat 31 March
2024 2023
Year | Q.17 0.56
Year 2 0.19 120
Year 3 0.39 0.6%
ear 4 167 0.57
Year 5 3.29 1.14
Year 6 1o 10 12.87 &.03

E. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

As per Ind AS 24, the disclosune of transactions with the Related Parties are given helows;
Felated Partivs Disclosures:

Holding Company - MNIL
Subsidiary Company » NIL
Key Managerial Personnel o b Samdeep Jain (Chairman)

Me. Mohat Jain {Director)

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Rajput {Exective
Director)

Mrs. Shubhi Jain (Non-Executive Director)
Murs. Ampu Jain (Non-Exceutive Pircctor)
M Arvind Dixit (CFOY

Mr. Shivam Sharma {CS)

\ HRelatives of KMP v Mrs. Meelam Dixit

THIRTY SECOND ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 (150}



(H“lll" MOHIT PAPER MILLS LIMITED
( ™

Corporate Entities : M/s Centurion Industries Private Limited
M/s Centurion Rubber
M5 Centurion Paper & Board
Mis. Mohit Tissues Private Limited

Managerial Remunerationl

Femuneration paid to Managing Director/Whole Time Director & KMP or their relatives for the year ended 314
March 2024

(Bs. in Lakhs)

Mame Dresignation Femumeration

Sandeep Tam Managing [Director (W}
Mohit Jain Director 4980
Pradeep Kumar Rajput Whale Time Director 360
Shivam Sharma 954 420
Arvind Kuomar Dixa [ 554

Directors Sitting Fees

{Rz. in Lakhs)

Mame Designation Sitting Fees
Amnju Jain Mon-Exccutive Direclor 0.21
Shubhi Jain Mon-Executive Director 021
Sushil Kumar Tyagi Independent Director 0.31
Rachit Jain Independent Ddrector .30
Rakesh Juyal Independent Director 021
Sanjeey Kumar Jain [ndependent Director 0.51
Saurabh Mathur Independent Dirgetor .39

Unsecured Loans Balanee for the vesr ended 31,03,2024
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Name [esignation Loan Loan Balance for the year
rocetved Paid ended 3103, 2024
Sandeep lain Managing Director 45 Ko 115,95 15.56
Anju Jain Non-Executive Director 23277 23261 0.2
Mohit Tissue Private Limited | Mrs, Anju Jam and Mr, - - 200,00
Sandeep Jaim are Direclors
Shubhi Jain Non-Executive Director - - 040
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Other Related Party Transaction for the vear ended 31.03.2024
(Rs. in Lakhs)

5. |Name of Related Party Nature of contract/ Walue of Balance due/
Hao. arrangeiment Transaction {Recoverable) as on
31.03.2024
1 Centurion Industries Private Limited | Sale of Electricity 95.33 [14.11
2. |Centurion Rubber Sale of Electricity 22.2% 693
3. IMis Mohit Tissues Pyi, L. Sale of Electricity 40408 460,02
4 Anju Jain Rent Paid 15 18

T Additional disclosure’regulatory Information as required by nonfication no. GSR 207(E) dated
24032022 which are not covered in any of the notes above:
(1} Loan or advances granted 1o the promoters, directors and KMPs and the related parties:

Mo loan or advances in the nature of loans have been granted to the promters, directors, key managerial
persons and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with
any otler person that afe:

{a) rmepayable on demand or

(b)  without specifving any teems or pericdd of repasviment
(il Mo proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding anv benami property under

henami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitiony Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made
thereunder.

Gy Willful Defauler
Mo bank has declared the company as “willful defaulter™,
(1 Relationship with Struck oftf Companies:
There are no transaction with the companies whose name is struck off under section 248 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or section 360 of Companies Act, 1956 during the vear ended 31 March 2022 and the vear cnded
31 March 2023,
(v]  Regmstration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:
All applicable cases where pegistration of charges or satisfaction is required with Registrar of Companies
have been done.
Mo registration or setisfaction is pending at end of financial year 2023-2024.
(wiy Compliance with mumber of layers of companies
Mo lavers of companies has been established beyvond the limil preseribed as per above zaid section’ rules,
(vit) Compliance with approved Schemeis) of Arrangements

Mo scheme of arrangements has been approved by the competent authority in teems of Section 230 1o 237 of
the Companies Act, 2013,
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{viir) Utihization of Borrowed funds and share premium:

Particulars Desenption

Mo funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregete) have been Mo such transaction has
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or | laken place

any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or during the year

entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise. that the fntermediary shalll whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsogver by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the TUltimate Beneficiaries;

Mo funds Ewhich are material either individually or in the aggregate have been Mo such ransaction has
received by the Company from any person of entity] including foreign entity tuken place
(“Funding Parties™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or during the vear

otherwisel that the Company shalll whether divectly or indirectly  lend or invest i
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneliciaries™) or provide any puarantee, secunty or the
like on behalf of the rltimate Beneficianes

(ix) Undisclosed income

There is po such income which bas not been disclesed in the books of accounts. No such income is
sirrendered or disclosed ag income during the vear in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961,

(x} Details of Crypto Currency or Virual Curreney

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profit or loss on transactions 1'111.-'|_}Iv-i|1g Crypio Mo Such Transaction Mo Such Transaction during

currency or Wirtual Currency dusing the vear the year

Amount of currency held as at the reporting date | No Such Transaction Mo Such Transaction during
during the year the year

Deposits or advances rom any person Tor the Mo Such Transaction Mo Such Transaction during

purpese of trading or investing in Crypte Currency | during the vear the year

Svirtual eurrency

(xi) Unlization of Bormowings
The company has utilized the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the purpose for which

they were taken,

xiiip by Financial Ratios

Fatios Mumerntar Crenomingtor Fy [Fx fage Feason for Change

2324 [a022-23 |Changs

Current Batio (in |Cument Assels Current Liabilitics [N i.14 () | Decresse &5 & resuft of meecase i
tirmes) Shoni- Tenn Debe dusing the year
Db Exquiiny Total Debs Sharcholder”s Equity | LEL 117 L] lnerense due o addition lean
Hatio [in tirmes) obdained fior recovery plant
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[meht service Eamings for deby Dbt Bervice = 211 219 L] Decrease as a result of inerease m
COVEIMZE Ml servive = et profie Ingrest & Lease interest & principal repayments
(im timeess ) after faxes + MNoncash | Payments + Principal during the year

pperaking exp. 4 Hepnyments
Financa Ciost

| Betum om Met Met Profits alfler laxes Avrerage 1562 L2380 LB Impreece as a result of prafi
Wirth {*rage) Preferenoe Davidend Sharcholdder”s Equity warming dering the yoar
Inventory Cost of pomds sohd Average Inventary 4. T3 &A1) 1407 Decrease due trholding of exim
Turnaver {in INVEory 45 compan: o previows
U] Faa ]

| Dehiors Tiemover [MNet credin sales = Gross | Averame Trade 5 Al 1579 ey Deorense due oo decrense in sples
{im fimmes | credit sales - sales rebum [Receivahle as compane 1o kst year
Trade paynbles Met eredif purchasss = |Average Trade 1241 I8 [3.37) Ratboralrzstion of trade payabiles
Turnawer {in Ciroes eredit purchases | Payables far betier purchase fficiency
times1 - purchass retam
el capital Met sales = Totad sles = | Wioeking capital = 148 1H.63 | 6uBT) Decline in sales and current mtio
tirmvisier (in tirmess i sades refurn Cirrend assets — Ciomen

liahilities
et Prafit Met Profit ™ol snfies = Taotal sales =1 348 121 127 Improvement in profit eaming as
Mangin (Yeape) sales retum Compane Lo previcas year
|®etuem om Eamings hefone inerest  [Capitnl Employed = 9.7 1,5 {1.73) Decrense due v alditiomal loan
capital and tanes Tnngihle MNet Worth trken as compared Lo Inst voar
employed + Tolal Dicht -+
[Haape) Daoferred Tax Liabiliny
Rutum om Mt returm onnvestment [Cos) aof mveslnent A B A A -
liyvestmen

G, The outbreak of Corenavirus (Covid-19) globally and in India has impacted business and economic activities in
general, The Company’s sale during the year ended March 2022 was impacied significantly by the pandemic and
consequently capacity utilization of the plant was lower and is gradually mwoving toveards nornwl capacity. As
regards the recoverability of asseis, the Company expecis to fully recover the carrying amounts of the asscts. The
Conpany 15 closely monitoring any material changes to future sconomic conditions.

H. The previous vear figures are regrouped | reclassified wherever reguired to make them comparable to current year
figures,

Az per aur repart of even dste atiached

For PANEAJ B GOYAL & CO For amd oo behall of the Board of Dincctors
Chartered Accopntants

Razgisiraiim Na: (HGHRSC

A PANEA) RUMAR GOYAL Ranideep Jain Anju Jain Shivam Sharma AR Dexal
{ Pariner) _ )
[Managing [Mrector)  (Director) {Company Secnetaryy  (Chiel Financial Oicer)

Membership Mo 075828

Place: Muzaftarnagar
Drage: 25 Blay, 2024
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